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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

This year was a tough and difficult year for the Group. With the
deep global financial crisis in the later part of 2008, many of
the world’s economies, particularly the major ones, experienced
contraction. The Company’s businesses were also subject to
negative effects to a varying degree especially the travel and
hospitality business. The Group’s results have been adversely
affected. The Company recorded an audited loss attributable to
shareholders of HK$111.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2009 as compared to the net profit of HK$12.2 million for 2008.
As at 31 March 2009, the equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company and its subsidiaries was HK$427.7 million,
representing a decrease of 23.3% from HK$557.3 million for the
previous year.

The economic downturn seriously affected the finance, property
and travel and hospitality markets. Travel and hospitality spending
and related activities dropped significantly in the second half of
the financial year. In view of the drastic changes in the global
and domestic economies and business environment, the Group
discontinued its travel business by liquidating a Japan travel
company, Xpress Travel Ltd and realised its investments in Anglo-
French Travel Pte Ltd and Makino Air Travel Service Ltd. The
Group also closed its credit card division during the year to avoid
further losses and capital commitment.

In additional, the Company adopted effective initiatives aimed at
assuring survival by focusing on squeezing account receivables, as
well as costs and expenses. This initiative proved to be effective
in ensuring the liquidity of business capital, controlling operating
risks and further maintaining the safe and stable operations of
the Company. The Company also successfully raised long-term
equity funding of approximately HK$17 million after the year
ended date via the open offer to strengthen the Company’s
capital base and to enhance its financial position and net assets
base.

Up against the severe global economic crisis, the Company
expects to continue to face significant challenges in the near
future and see its business performance affected. The Company
is continuing to evaluate all the businesses of the Group to
determine its future plans and rationalize its business direction in
light of the current adverse financial and economic circumstances.
The Group is focused in property investment, securities
investments and hotel operation. The Group will continue to
implement cost control measures and margin management, as
well as allocate resources to effect healthy development of its
businesses.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

I would like to express my gratitude to our shareholders, my
fellow board members, customers and employees for their
continuous support for the Group. | hope the Group will continue
to have your strong support in the future.

CHAN HENG FAI
Managing Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 July 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$1,112.2
million (including continuing operations of HK$93.4 million
and discontinued operation of HK$1,018.8 million) for the year
ended 31 March 2009, representing a decrease of approximately
22.3% as compared to the year ended 31 March 2008. The
decrease in turnover was mainly due to the discontinued
operation of the travel business during the year. The loss
attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2009
was approximately HK$111.6 million as compared to the net
profit of HK$12.2 million in 2008.

The basic loss per share for the year was HK6.12 cents when
compared with the earnings per share of HK0.68 cents in last
year.

(a) Travel Division — Discontinued

The travel division operated through a number of
subsidiaries including Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd (“Anglo-
French™), Xpress Travel Limited (“Japan Travel”) and Makino
Air Travel Service Ltd. (“Makino”). During the year, the
Group disposed its interests in Anglo-French and Makino
and liquidating Japan Travel. These discontinued business
contributed revenue of approximately HK$1,018.8 million
and net profit of approximately HK$14.8 million to the
Group, being the operating loss of HK$15.5 million and gain
on disposal of HK$30.3 million.

(b) Hotels and Hospitality Division

The hotels and hospitality division operates through a
number of subsidiaries including:

e Sapporo Holdings Co. Ltd. (“Sapporo”)

Sapporo, a Japan company 100% acquired in July
2006, was established on 8 March 2004 for the
purpose of operating investments, inns and hotels.
Its principal asset is a hotel known as Hamilton Hotel
located in Chuo Ward, Sapporo City, Japan.

Hamilton Hotel is an eight-storey building erected
over a one-level basement. It comprises a total of 103
guestrooms of various types including a Japanese
room, a meeting room, a haircut salon, a Japanese
restaurant and esthetic saloon. The total gross floor
area of Hamilton Hotel is approximately 3,209 square
meters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

(c)

° Hotel Plaza Miyazaki Co. Ltd. (“Hotel Plaza Miyazaki”)

Hotel Plaza Miyazaki is located at Southern part of
Japan Kyushu Island, Miyazaki City is the second
largest city on Kyushu Island. It is one of the well-
known hotels situated at the center of city, 10 minutes
from Miyazaki Station along Oyodogawa riverside. The
hotel has 164 rooms provides full service including 15
different size banquet rooms, 4 meeting rooms, a river
view sky restaurant/lounge, 2 Japanese restaurants, 1
karaoke room, 1 bar and 1 lobby lounge. In addition,
the hotel has a natural hot spring spa facility with in
and out door hot spring bath, sauna and massage
service open to staying guest and day use visitor.

. Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya (“Aizuya”)

Aizuya is a traditional Japanese hot spring inn located
at Nasu, Tochigi prefecture, a famous mountain resort
area which is approximately 2 hours drive from Tokyo
downtown. It has a total of 22 rooms including 2
rooms with hot spring open bath. It can accommodate
over 60 guests at one time. Facilities include 2 large
hot spring baths, 2 private hot spring open baths for
staying guests exclusive use at charter base, 2 massage
rooms serve female clients only, 1 restaurant serving
dinner & breakfast and 1 souvenir shop including
Aizuya private label item such as Sake, Soba (Japanese
noodle) etc.

The turnover of the hotels and hospitality division in 2009
was HK$61.5 million, representing an increase of 25.9%
from last year. The segment loss was HK$3.2 million, down
57.9% from last year.

Financing and Credit Card Division

The credit card business of the Group was operated through
Xpress Finance Limited (“Xpress Finance”). During the year,
the Group closed its credit card division and focused on the
corporate and consumer finance. This division contributed
revenues of HK$8.5 million and net loss of HK$7.8 million
to the Group.

(d) Securities Trading

Suffering from the continued de-leveraging of financial
institutions and the United State recession, the global stock
market has meltdown. Despite the Group had diversified
its investment portfolios into different regions and financial
instruments, the Group’s security investments got hammered
and recorded a loss of HK$28.1 million compared to a gain
of HK$24.4 million in 2008.

(c)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

(e) Property Investments

During the year, the Group leased its office premise located
in Singapore and reclassified it as investment property. In
addition, the Group operated Aizuya hotel and such hotel
property was reclassified from investment property to
property, plant and equipment. This division contributed
revenues of HK$11.0 million and net loss of HK$2.2 million
to the Group, including a fair value loss of HK$12.3 million
compared to fair value gain of HK$69.7 million in 2008.

() Other Investments

As at 31 March 2009, the Group held approximately 32%
of SingXpress Ltd (“SingXpress”), a Singapore listed associate
of the Group. During the year, the Group share of loss of
approximately HK$10.4 million from SingXpress.

As at 31 March 2009, the Group held approximately 30%
in RSI International Systems Inc. (“RSI”), a Canada listed
associate of the Group. During the year, the Group share a
loss of approximately HK$0.2 million from RSI and made an
impairment loss of HK$3.6 million for RSI.

As at 31 March 2009, the Group held approximately 13%
in Novena Holdings Limited (“Novena”), a Singapore based
listed company known as a consumer lifestyle player in
furniture and beauty products.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

During the period under review, the Company raised
approximately HK$1.2 million from the exercise of options and
warrants resulting in the issue of approximately 18 million shares.
As at 31 March 2009, the Group had bank balance and cash
amounted to approximately HK$56.8 million (31 March 2008:
HK$223.3 million) mainly dominated in US dollars, Hong Kong
dollars, Singapore dollars and Japanese Yen. The Group had
borrowings of approximately HK$74.1 million mainly dominated
in Hong Kong dollars, Singapore dollars and Japanese Yen (31
March 2008: HK$171.5 million). As at 31 March 2009, the
Group’s current ratio was 3.0 (31 March 2008: 1.8) and had a
gearing ratio of 3.0%, defined as the ratio of total borrowing less
cash balances to total assets when compare with the net cash of
approximately HK$51.8 million in 2008.

(e) YEKRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

(@) During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the disposal of the 56.46% equity interest
in Makino Air Travel Service Co. Ltd. (“Makino”), a travel
service company operating in Japan, at a consideration of
approximately JPY30 million.

(b) During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the disposal of the 60% equity interest
in Anglo-French Travel Pte. Ltd. (“AFT"), a travel service
company operating in Singapore, at a consideration of $$2.1
million.

(c) During the year, the board of directors of Xpress Travel
Ltd (“Japan Travel”), a Japan subsidiary of the Company
resolved to file a petition for the liquidation of Japan Travel
in Japan. After the filing of the petition, a liquidation trustee
appointed by the court will properly deal with the rights and
claims that creditors have against Japan Travel.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had authorized and
contracted capital commitments of approximately HK$54.9
million, which was related to capital expenditure for the
acquisition of investment properties in Singapore.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Substantially all the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, U.S. dollars, Canadian
dollars, Japanese Yen and Singapore dollars. Due to the currency
peg of the Hong Kong dollars to the U.S. dollars, the exchange
rate between these two currencies has remained stable and thus
no hedging or other alternatives have been implemented by
the Group. Going forward, the Group may formulate a foreign
currency hedging policy to provide a reasonable margin of
safety in our exposure in Japanese Yen and Singapore dollars
transaction, assets and liabilities.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s credit policy defines the credit extension criteria,
the credit approval and monitoring processes, and the loan
provisioning policy. The Group maintains tight control on loan
assessments and approvals and will continue to exercise a
conservative and prudent policy in granting loans in order to
maintain a quality loan portfolio and manage the credit risk
exposure of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

HUMAN RESOURCES

Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference to
prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors. Apart from
salary payments, there are other staff benefits including provident
fund, medical insurance and performance related bonus. At the
balance sheet date, there were approximately 190 employees
employed by the Group. Share options may also be granted to
eligible employees and persons of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had pledged bank balances
of approximately HK$4.0 million as a security for banking
facilities granted to a subsidiary and as securities for the credit
card business transactions with MasterCard International Inc. The
Group's borrowings of HK$74.1 million were mainly secured by
the investment properties and land and buildings of the Group
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$230.6 million.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
PROFILE

DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Heng Fai, aged 64, is the Managing Chairman of
the Company. He has been a director of the Company since
September 1992. Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall business
development of the Group. His experience and expertise are in
the finance and banking sectors. He is the spouse of Ms. Chan
Yoke Keow.

Mr. Chan Tong Wan, Tony, aged 34, is the Managing Director
of the Company. Mr. Chan began his career by working in two
international companies as an investment banker specialising in
Asian equity financial products. Subsequently, Mr. Chan worked
for a finance and technology company in the United States as the
Chief Operating Officer with a focus on its investment banking
and merchant banking activities. Mr. Chan joined the Group
as a non-executive director in January 2000, was appointed as
an executive director in September 2002 and was appointed as
Managing Director in August 2003. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor
of Commerce degree with honours, with a Finance specialization,
from the University of British Columbia. Mr. Chan is the son of
Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

Mr. Chan Tung Moe, aged 30, the Chief Executive Officer
and a Director of the Company, is responsible for the overall
management of the Group’s business. Previously, Mr. Chan was
in charge of the overall management of Xpress Finance Limited.
He also has experience in technical and business development
in the finance and technology industries. He holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration with honours, a Master’s
Degree in Electro-Mechanical Engineering with honours and a
Bachelor’s Degree in Applied Science with honours. Mr. Chan is
the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow, aged 60, has been a director of the
Company since January 1992. She is responsible for the general
administration and financial planning of the Group. She has over
25 years’ experience in financial management and administration.
Ms. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. She is
the spouse of Mr. Chan Heng Fai.

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann, aged 38, has been a director of
the Company since 1995. Ms. Chan is involved with the securities
operations. Ms. Chan has previous experience with one of the
leading banks in Hong Kong where she was involved in sales and
marketing as well as relationship management for the Regional
Securities office. Ms. Chan is the daughter of Mr. Chan Heng Fai
and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
PROFILE

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen, aged 60. Mr. Fong is a Director of Fong
Law Corporation, a legal practice. Mr. Fong graduated from the
University of Singapore with a LL.B. (Honours). In 1976/77 he was
awarded the Colombo Plan Award to attend the Government
Legal Officer’'s Course in the United Kingdom. In 1986, he
attended the NITA Advocacy Programme at Harvard Law School.
He was appointed to the Board in 1995. He served as Chairman
of the Disciplinary Committee of SGX-ST from 1995 to 2007 and
was member of the Securities Industry Council between 1992
and 2003. He was also a Council Member of the Law Society of
Singapore from 1990 to 1992. He is a director of several public
listed companies.

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter, aged 67, has over 32 years
experience in the fashion industry including distribution, sourcing,
overseeing manufacturing and exporting to international clients
in France, the United Kingdom, Germany and the United States.
Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive
director in September 1998.

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo, aged 58, has over 20 years’ experience
in human resources, China trade and real estates industry. Mr. Da
Roza was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
the Company in July 2004.

Ms. Chian Yat Ping, lvy, aged 44, obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree from the State University of New York at Albany.
She is a certified public accountant admitted to practise in USA
and had eight years working for international CPA firms. She is
an international affiliate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Chian was appointed as an independent
non-executive director in September 2006.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
PROFILE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung, aged 38, is the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group and responsible for the financial and management
reporting of the Group, including internal control and policy
review, taxation, audit, legal and regulatory affairs. Mr. Wong is
the Chief Financial Officer of SingXpress Ltd., the shares of which
are listed on the Singapore Exchange. He has 15 years in public
accounting, taxation, and financial consultancy and management
in Hong Kong. He worked with an international accounting
firm prior to joining the Group in 2001. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Business Administration and is currently practicing as a
certified public accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Mr. Yuen Ping Man, aged 45, is the joint Company Secretary
and the Chief Operating Officer of the Group and responsible
for the corporate secretarial function and business operations.
Previously, Mr. Yuen was the Chief Operating Officer of Xpress
Finance responsible for compliance, human resource, operations,
sales & marketing, customer service and general administration
of Xpress Finance. Mr. Yuen has over 15 years’ managerial
experience in corporate secretarial, business development, human
resources and general administration. Prior to joining Xpress
Finance in June 1997, Mr. Yuen worked in two listed groups
and a financial institution. Mr. Yuen holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration. He is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (UK) and of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a senior member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, a member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute, the Hong Kong Institute of Human
Resource Management, the Chartered Institute of Marketing
(UK), the Hong Kong Institute of Purchasing & Supply and Society
of Registered Financial Planners. Mr. Yuen is also a certified risk
planner.

Mr. Lui Wai Leung, Alan, aged 38, is the Senior Accounting
Manager of the Group. He is responsible for the financial
reporting of the Group and focus on the financing operations,
securities & treasury investment. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Business Administration and he joined the Group in 1997.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in
notes 20 and 21 respectively to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 32.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in notes 17 and 19 to the financial statements,
respectively.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group at 31 March 2009
are set out on page 151.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company are
set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves of the
Group and the Company are set out in note 38 to the financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:
Chan Heng Fai

Chan Tong Wan

Chan Yoke Keow

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann
Chan Tung Moe

Non-executive directors:
Fong Kwok Jen

Independent non-executive directors:
Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Da Roza Joao Paulo

Chian Yat Ping

Alternate directors:
Lau Kwok Fai (alternate to Chan Heng Fai)
(resigned on 16 January 2009)
Wooldridge Mark Dean (alternate to Fong Kwok Jen)

In accordance with Articles 78 and 79 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-
ann retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. The term of office of each non-executive director
and independent non-executive director is the period up to his
retirement by rotation and each one of them can be re-appointed
in accordance with the above articles.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 March 2009, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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=
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEEREE
Long positions HE
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (a) ALATEREEOIBITZ2EER
Number Percentage of
of issued the issued
ordinary share capital
Name of director Capacity shares held of the Company
EEHR g4 e T HAEATE
ZERHA BITIRA
Baok
%
Chan Heng Fai Beneficial owner 344,494,647 18.75
PR B 1 E=lEA A
Chan Yoke Keow Beneficial owner 34,580,802 1.88
PR L1 EnEA A
Held by trust (Note 1) 65,706,960 3.58
LMEsERE (Mat1)
Held by controlled corporations (Note 2) 592,925,547 32.27
Frizsl 2 Ralisha (fiz2)
693,213,309 37.73
Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann Beneficial owner 1,146,832 0.06
=t EmEAA
Held by spouse (Note 3) 3,416,000 0.19
BEMBRA (Hi3)
4,562,832 0.25
Chan Tung Moe Beneficial owner 15,370,000 0.84
PRATE EnHEEA
Fong Kwok Jen Beneficial owner 7,328,000 0.4
BB et EnHEEA
Chan Tong Wan Beneficial owner 5,423,837 0.3
PR e EnHEEA
Wong Dor Luk, Peter Beneficial owner 280,000 0.02
FE1% EnHEEA
Da Roza Joao Paulo Beneficial owner 4,800 0
EnEEA
Held by spouse (Note 4) 360,000 0.02
REERA (it4)
364,800 0.02
1,071,037,425 58.31
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(b) Share options

Name of director

EEpg

Chan Heng Fai
BRiEE

Chan Yoke Keow
REIE

Chan Tong Wan
BREtE

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann
BRRE

Chan Tung Moe
BRETE

Fong Kwok Jen

BB

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
B2

Da Roza Joao Paulo

Chian Yat Ping
H—F

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Date granted
B AH

1.11.2004
15.11.2004
22.5.2006
1.11.2004
15.11.2004
18.2.2009
15.11.2004
22.5.2006
18.2.2009
15.11.2004
15.11.2004
22.5.2006

15.11.2004

15.11.2004

27.5.2005

21.12.2006

Exercisable period
A FATRER

1.11.2004 - 8.5.2013
20.11.2004 - 8.5.2013
22.5.2006 - 8.5.2013
11.1.2004 - 8.5.2013
20.11.2004 - 8.5.2013
18.2.2009 - 8.5.2013
20.11.2004 - 8.5.2013
22.5.2006 - 8.5.2013
18.2.2009 - 8.5.2013
20.11.2004 - 8.5.2013
20.11.2004 - 8.5.2013
22.5.2006 - 8.5.2013

20.11.2004 - 8.5.2013

20.11.2004 - 8.5.2013

28.5.2005-8.5.2013

30.1.2007 - 8.5.2013

EEEHSE

(b) FEAEE

Exercise
price
per share

BRATREE
HK$
BT

0.1600
0.1616
0.1566
0.1600
0.1616
0.0698
0.1616
0.1566
0.0698
0.1616
0.1616
0.1566

0.1616

0.1616

0.1500

0.1566

g

Number of  Percentage
share options of the
outstanding as issued share
at the Latest capital of
Practicable Date the Company
REEWUTES AFLQFE
e RATHE 2 BITRAE
BREHA BAL

%

15,000,000 0.82
147,000,000 8.00
120,000,000 6.53
15,000,000 0.82
35,000,000 1.92
18,000,000 0.98
15,000,000 0.82
5,000,000 0.27
18,000,000 0.98
5,000,000 0.27
5,000,000 0.27
5,000,000 0.27
4,500,000 0.24
3,000,000 0.16
2,000,000 0.11
2,000,000 0.11
414,500,000 22.56




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEgREE

() Warrants () RBEE

Percentage of

Number of Issued share
Number of underlying  Capital of the
Name of director Capacity warrants held shares Company
EEHE 514 FERREREE HEROHE HELTE
BITRABED
%
Chan Heng Fai Beneficial owner (Note 5) 172,000,000 172,000,000 9.36
PRiENE BB AH75)
Chan Yoke Keow Beneficial owner 1,133,280 1,133,280 0.06
PRE1E BE=HAA
Held by trust (Note 1) 5,973,360 5,973,360 0.33
LAMERER A (M7t 1)
Held by controlled corporations 34,800,529 34,800,529 1.89
(Note 2)
Frizml . Ralsa (it2)
41,907,169 41,907,169 2.28
Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann  Beneficial owner 2,564 2,564 0.00
=1 EnEEA
Held by spouse (Note 3) 341,600 341,600 0.02
mACBREEE (A15t3)
344,164 344,164 0.02
Chan Tung Moe Beneficial owner 1,499,000 1,499,000 0.08
BRI EnEEA
Fong Kwok Jen Beneficial owner 382,800 382,800 0.02
BRE1E EnEEA
Chan Tong Wan Beneficial owner 525,214 525,214 0.03
PRt EnEEA
Wong Dor Luk, Peter Beneficial owner 28,000 28,000 0.00
FZ#% EnEEA
Da Roza Joao Paulo Beneficial owner 480 480 0.00
EmEEA
Held by spouse (Note 4) 46,000 46,000 0.00
BEBRAE (Hit4)
46,480 46,480 0.00
216,732,827 216,732,827 11.79
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Notes:

1. These shares/warrants are owned by a discretionary trust,
HSBC Trust (Cook Island) Limited. Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow
("Mrs. Chan") is one of the discretionary objects. Mrs. Chan is
the spouse of Mr. Chan Heng Fai.

2. These shares/warrants are owned by First Pacific International
Limited and Prime Star Group Co. Ltd., in which Mrs. Chan
has 100% equity interests.

3. These shares/warrants are owned by Mr. Wooldridge Mark
Dean, the spouse of Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann.

4. These shares/warrants are owned by Ms. Josephina B. Ozorio,
the spouse of Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo.

Options

Particulars of the Company’s and subsidiary’s share option
schemes are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share
options in issue during the year:

ESEREE

Bt -

1. ZERHG/RBEFH-EZEET
HSBC Trust (Cook Island) Limited# & * i
BREBLZ L ([BRZE ) BELIZEA
2 Rt RFRIEIES A 2 RS -

2. ZERD /RBREFELERLTEE IR
K HE % Z First Pacific International Limited
K Prime Star Group Co. Ltd. & °

3. EERGRREEBBRRE LT BB
Wooldridge Mark Deansc 4 & °

4. ZFR1 R ¥ F B Da Roza Joao
Paulost 4 2 fid #8Josephina B. OzorioZ +
%A -
BRE
EAN/NETS )N G e e T i
WKW FE3T7 -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
Name of director Date granted Exercisable period
E4i3] RtAH TFERE

Category 1: Directors
R ER
Chan Heng Fai
RisE

Chan Yoke Keow
RIE

Chan Tong Wan
R4E

Chan Tung Moe
R4

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann

BRSE

Fong Kwok Jen

RER

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
%%

Da Roza Joao Paulo

Chian Yat Ping
47

Total for directors

B

Category 2: Others
SR EMAL

Total for employees

[ERLY

Total for all categories

el

1.11.2004
15.11.2004
22.5.2006
13.2.2009

1.11.2004
15.11.2004
18.2.2009
15.11.2004
22.5.2006
18.2.2009

15.11.2004
22.5.2006

15.11.2004

15.11.2004

15.11.2004

275.2005

21.12.2006

15.11.2004
22.5.2006
18.4.2007

1.11.2004-85.2013
20.11.2004-8.5.2013
225.2006-8.5.2013
13.2.2009-85.2013

1.11.2004 -8.5.2013
20.11.2004-85.2013
18.2.2009-8.5.2013
20.11.2004-85.2013
2252006-85.2013
18.2.2009-8.5.2013

20.11.2004-85.2013
22.5.2006-8.5.2013

20.11.2004-8.5.2013

20.11.2004-85.2013

20.11.2004-8.5.2013

285.2005-85.2013

30.1.2007-8.5.2013

20.11.2004-85.2013
225.2006-8.5.2013
18.4.2007-8.5.2013

price

per share

&R
i

HKS
AT

0.16
0.1616
0.1566

0.068

0.16
0.1616
0.0698
0.1616
0.1566
0.0698

0.1616
0.1566

0.1616

0.1616

0.1616

0.15

0.1566

0.1616
0.1566
0.29

EE

Exercise  Outstanding

EHREE

Granted Exercise  Cancelled Outstanding
at during during during at
1.4.2008 the year the year theyear  31.3.2009
R-BENE  FARE  EROE FREE R-2RAE
BA-B ZB=1-H
AT AT

HK§

B
15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
147,000,000 - - - 147,000,000
120,000,000 - - - 120,000,000
- 18,000,000  (18,000,000) - -
15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
35,000,000 - - - 35,000,000
- 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
- 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
4,500,000 - - - 4,500,000
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
378500,000 54,000,000  (18,000,000) - 414,500,000
13,840,000 - - (1,840,0000 12,000,000
11,000,000 - - (6,000,000 5,000,000
7,500,000 - - (6,000,000 1,500,000
32,340,000 - - (13,840,0000 18,500,000
410,840,000 54,000,000 (18,000,000 (13,840,000 433,000,000
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The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately
before 13 February 2007 and 18 February 2009, the dates
on which the share options were granted, were HK$0.068.

At 31 March 2009, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme was 433,000,000, representing
23.57% of the share of the Company in issue at that date.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

(a

On 3 July 2007, a service contract was entered into between
the Company and Mr. Chan Heng Fai (“"Mr. Chan”) for a
term of two years commencing from 1 February 2008. The
service contract provides for the payment of a salary of
HK$185 per month. In addition, Mr. Chan is also entitled to
receive an accommodation allowance of HK$160,000 per
month. On 20 November 2008, a supplementary agreement
was entered into between Mr. Chan and the Company
for reducing the accommodation allowance to HK$30,000
per month which is deemed to have taken effect on 1
November 2008.

On 20 November 2008, a service contract was entered
into between SingXpress International Pte Ltd, a subsidiary
of the Company and Mr. Chan for a term of three years
expiring on 31 October 2011. The service contract provides
for the payment of a salary of $$25,000 per month which is
deemed to have taken effect on 1 November 2008.

The overall salary and allowance per month was reduced by
25% which is taken into effect on 1 March 2009.
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(b)

On 3 July 2007, a service contract was entered into between
the Company and Mr. Chan Tong Wan (“Tony Chan”) for
a term of three years and taken effect on 1 April 2007. The
service contract provides for the payment of annual salary
of HK$2 million, HK$2.1 million and HK$2.2 million for
the first, second and third years of services and Tony Chan
shall be entitled to an incentive bonus equivalent to 2.5%
of the audited consolidated profit of the Group before tax
at the end of every financial year or at such other rates or
on such other terms as may be determined and approved
by the Board. In the event that either party terminate the
service contract, the terminated party shall be entitled to
receive, and the terminating party shall pay and transfer to
the terminated party, as liquidated damages, a lump sum
equal to the sum which would have been payable by the
Company to Tony Chan as gross salary (excluding bonus, if
applicable), not to exceed 12 months of salary, in respect
of the unexpired term of the service contract on the date
notice of termination is given. Beginning 1 March 2009,
Tony Chan’s overall salary and allowance per month was
reduced by 25% and the incentive bonus was cancelled.

On 3 July 2007, a service contract was entered into between
the Company and Mr. Chan Tung Moe (“Moe Chan") for
a term of three years expiring on 2 July 2010. The service
contract provides for the payment of annual salary of HK$1
million, HK$1.1 million and HK$1.2 million for the first,
second and third years of services and Moe Chan shall be
entitled to an incentive bonus equivalent to 2.5% of the
audited consolidated profit of the Group before tax at the
end of every financial year or at such other rates or on such
other terms as may be determined and approved by the
Board. In addition, Moe Chan is also entitled to receive an
accommodation allowance of HK$20,000 per month. In
the event that either party terminate the service contract,
the terminated party shall be entitled to receive, and the
terminating party shall pay and transfer to the terminated
party, as liquidated damages, a lump sum equal to the sum
which would have been payable by the Company to Moe
Chan as gross salary (excluding bonus, if applicable), not to
exceed 12 months of salary, in respect of the unexpired term
of the service contract on the date notice of termination is
given.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2009, according to the register of interest in
shares and underlying shares and short positions kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and so far as is
known to or can be ascertained after reasonable enquiries by the
directors, the persons (other than the Directors of the Company
or their respective associate) who were interested in 5% or more

in the issued share capital of the Company are as follows:
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Number of shares/

Name Nature of interest underlying shares held %

£%8 EREME FERG1HERHEE Aot

Prime Star Group Co., Ltd. Beneficial owner 522,966,736 28.47
EnEA

Kingsway Lion Spur Technology Limited (Note 7)  Beneficial owner 119,600,000 6.51

Kingsway Lion Spur Technology Limited (#75#7) Ez5#EAB A

Festival Developments Limited Corporate interest 119,600,000 6.51
NSIE: 2o

SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited Corporate interest 119,600,000 6.51
NSIE: 2o

World Developments Limited Corporate interest 119,600,000 6.51
NSIE: 2o

Innovation Assets Limited Corporate interest 119,600,000 6.51
NSIE: 2o

Kingsway International Holdings Limited Corporate interest 119,600,000 6.51
NSIE: 2o

Jonathan Choi Koon Shum Corporate interest 119,600,000 6.51

B R NAIER

Lam Wong Yuk Sin Mary Corporate interest 119,600,000 6.51

MEER NSIE: 2o

First Pacific International Limited Corporate interest 104,759,340 5.70
NSIE: Lo



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Note:

(1) Kingsway Lion Spur Technology Limited is a company 100%
controlled by Festival Developments Limited which in turn is
100% controlled by SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. SW
Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited in turn is 74% controlled by
World Developments Limited which in turn is 100% controlled
by Innovation Assets Limited which in turn is 100% controlled by
Kingsway International Holdings Limited. Kingsway International
Holdings Limited is 46% controlled by Jonathan Choi Koon Shum.
Kwan Wing Kum, Janice is the spouse of Jonathan Choi Koon
Shum. Mrs. Lam Wong Yuk Sin Mary and the estate of Mr. Lam
William Ka Chung, her late spouse, beneficially own or control
approximately 40% of Kingsway International Holdings Limited.
Thus, the aforesaid interests in the Company duplicate each other.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, no person other
than the directors of the Company whose interests are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in
shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest
of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company, and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares that was
required to be recorded in the register of interest pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers respectively accounted for less than 30%
of the Group's total turnover and purchases.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant post balance sheet events are set out in note
48 to the financial statements.
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Z /A& M Festival Developments Limited 8l
SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited 58 & 1%
%l » SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited 8!/
World Developments Limitedi%®#174% - ifiWorld
Developments Limited Bll F Innovation Assets
Limited 52 242 %/ * MInnovation Assets Limited
BJ B Kingsway International Holdings Limited
5 & ¥£ §l ° Kingsway International Holdings
Limited B 5578 R 1E H46% - FABERERAR L
i 18 ° Kingsway International Holdings Limited
TEMEERZ T RAEMREBMRREEEZ
EEESERIITHIZ40% o Bt - FIR AR
ARz =T EMRER

B EXREEIN  R_EEAF=ZA=+—
B BREXNEFRERITBRABRES KA
R 2 s | AN ESRHA 2
mON MEEMALTECEAARARA D BT
BRA5% 2k A L #E as N B IRIE & 75 M A B 1R B
33610 A B Rt 2 By MR B R 100

PN
=

FREFRHER

HE_ZZNF=A=1T—HILFE  F5H
FAAREF REE D BME AR E S X A5 LK
fBRERTB30% °

BE - LhEIEELETHREE

FA - ARBRETAMBARMERE - b
EHBEIARFEA LHES

RERREE
BAE AR EIRABHAN I B RRM 48 -

23

« CETHEEH

Annual Report 2009



KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

24

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 March 2009 with the Code of Best
Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”), with exception of a few deviations. Detailed
information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in pages
25 to 29 of the Annual Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Lo and Kwong C.P.A Company Limited as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAN TONG WAN
MANAGING DIRECTOR

24 July 2009
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and strives to continually improve on its
governance processes as articulated in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out by the Stock Exchange.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is presently composed
of nine members, comprising five executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors. The Directors are, collectively and individually, aware of
their responsibilities to the shareholders. The Directors’ profile are
set out on page 10 and 11 of this Annual Report. The relationship
among members of the Board are also disclosed.

The Board members as at 31 March 2009 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Heng Fai (Managing Chairman)
Mr. Chan Tong Wan (Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Tung Moe (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza

Ms. Chian Yat Ping

The Board is responsible for directing the Group to success and
enhancing shareholders’ value by formulating the Group's overall
strategy, key objectives and policies. The Board monitors and
oversees the operating and financial performance of the Group
pursuant to these objectives.

To assist the Board in its functions, the Board established and
delegated specific responsibilities to two Board Committees,
namely the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
The respective roles and responsibilities of each Board committee,
their work and activities are included in this Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflicts of interest and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive Directors make positive contributions
to the orderly management and effective operation of the
Company.

The Board has also delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group'’s business to the management team.

CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer are segregated and their positions held by different
individuals to ensure their respective independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Chairman is responsible for providing
leadership to and overseeing the function of the Board while the
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer are responsible
for implementing the Board'’s strategy and managing the Group'’s
business and operations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently four non-executive Directors on the Board,
three of whom are independent. They have been appointed for a
specific term and subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and thus submit
themselves, on a rotation basis, for re-election by shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 February 1995 and
comprises the three INEDs:

Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Ms. Chian Yat Ping
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was formulated in
accordance with the requirements of the new Code on Corporate
Governance Practices. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
include the review of financial information, overseeing the
financial reporting system and internal control procedures as well
as maintaining a working relationship with the external auditors.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Audit Committee met
2 times to review, consider and discuss: the appointment, scope,
plan and fee of the external auditors; the external auditors’ audit
findings covering internal control and risk management issues;
the interim and annual financial results and statements and other
financial reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 30 September
2005 and currently comprises of the one executive Director and
two INEDs:

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee was
formulated in accordance with the requirements of the new Code
on Corporate Governance Practices. The primary objectives of
the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice
and conditions. The human resources department is responsible
for collection and administration of the human resources data
and making recommendations to the Remuneration Committee
for consideration. The Remuneration Committee consults the
Chairman and/or the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer
of the Company about these recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the year
to review matters mainly concerning a review on remuneration
and performance of executive Directors and senior management
of the Company, as well as directors’ fees.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

The Directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee meetings during the year are set
out below:

Directors )

Mr. Chan Heng Fai FRIEMECE

Mr. Chan Tong Wan BRE R

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow REBHT

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann [C =g

Mr. Chan Tung Moe BRAREE
Non-Executive Director FHTES

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BEE ST A
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter TEmkE

Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Rozaft &

Ms. Chian Yat Ping B—Fat

FRETERRHY

Number of meeting held during the year

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct throughout the year
ended 31 March 2009.
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Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held

HESBRNY BTEERE
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
Exg BREEE FHEES
5/6 N/A N/A
5/6 NERA NERA
5/6 N/A N/A
5/6 TNERA NERA
6/6 N/A 171
6/6 NERA NERA
4/6 N/A N/A
4/6 NERA NERA
6/6 N/A N/A
6/6 NERA NERA
6/6 N/A N/A
6/6 NERA NERA
6/6 212 171
6/6 212 171
6/6 212 11
6/6 212 11
5/6 2/2 N/A
5/6 212 TEHR
6 2 1
6 2 1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Directors have conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries, which has covered major and material
controls in areas of financial, operations, compliance and risk
management of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the accounts of the Group and that the accounts are issued
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the external auditors
provided the following services to the Group:

Audit services Z RS
Non-audit services FEIZERTS

— Other professional services —HE M EERTE
Total wmEt

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded
as “related parties” under the applicable accounting standards.
Details of these transactions are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated accounts.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ERESSTEMEHBEMBRAE

LO AND KWONG C.P.A. COMPANY LIMITED

AUDIT ¢ TAX ¢« BUSINESS ADVISORY

To the Shareholders of Xpress Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Xpress Group Limited % REEFPR Q7] (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 32 to 149, which comprise of the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 31 March 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements, in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Wah Wai

Practising Certificate Number: P02693

Room 1304, 13/F

Shanghai Industrial Investment Building
60 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai

Hong Kong

24 July 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2009

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income

Fair value (loss) gain on financial
assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value (loss) gain on
investment properties

Reversal of impairment losses on
trade receivables

Impairment losses on trade receivables

Bad debt recovered

Administrative expenses

Impairment losses on available-for-
sale financial assets

Gain on disposal on available-for-
sale financial assets

Impairment loss on interest in
an associate

Discount on acquisition of additional
interest in a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of associates

(Loss) profit from operations

Finance costs
Share of results of associates

(Loss) profit before income tax
Income tax expense

(Loss) profit for the year
from continuing operations

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Profit (loss) for the year
from discontinued operation

(Loss) profit for the year

REKERK
Yega
HERA

E7
Hip 2 EWA
BRHEF ARG
TREEZ
AHE(BR) RS
RENMEZDTE
(518 an
B3
RIEEEED
B SRR RERR
B eIz
TBFX
AfRHESRHEEL
RIEER
HEARHESR
BE WS
Sl ck=NCIL - S
RIEEE
WE—EHBLRZ
BIMER 2 TR
HEBE LR 2

e (B1R) M
DIEMERRRE

BRFTSBLAT (B8 A
RSB

REFACEXL
FE(FR)ER

BRIEREXE

REEREEERHZ
FREBMN(ER)

FE(BR) BRI

2008
“TENF
HK$'000
FHT

82,688
(13,772)

68,916
29,693

16,581

69,690

(1,431)
835
(142,349)

8,707

35,037
1,217

86,896

(14,263)
(5,671)

66,962
(9,079)

57,883

(48,568)

9,315



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2009

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

(Loss) profit for the year

(Loss) earnings per share for (loss)
profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company
during the year

From continuing and discontinued
operations
Basic
Diluted

From continuing operations
Basic
Diluted

JE1E -
ARRIHEREA
DYRCRER

FE(ER) &R

FAFDH
RESEA
FEfE (B51R) 372
ER(BR)EN
REFERE
RIEREXK
B YN
s

REFEBEXL
BEAR
wE

2008
“TENF
HK$'000
FHT

12,229
(2,914)

9,315

HK$0.68 centsi L

HK$0.57 centsi

HK$3.36 centsa{ll

HK$2.86 centsya{ll
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KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

BALANCE SHEETS

At 31 March 2009

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land leases

Investment properties

Interests in subsidiaries
Interests in associates

Long term deposits
Available-for-sale financial assets
Goodwill

Loan receivables

Pledged bank deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss
Loan receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amounts due from associates
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
and accruals

Borrowings

Finance lease payables

Convertible debentures

Tax payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amounts due to associates

34

EERGEE

FRBEE
mE - BERR
BNEELES
REME
RIMB AR s
RE SRR 2 s
e
AfHESREE
BE

FEE R
EHRIRRITIEN

RBEE

7E

5 REMBER
;R ReRk
BERNRIE
BATER ABS
ZEREE
EME R

BB 2 RIR K
B A B RR
BEMRITER
RehBeEEER

REBRE

B 5 M EMENRA

LEstER
&
RN ETRE R
AR E 7
PR HIR
R B R RFR
REREE RN RIFUR

Notes

P&t

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27

28

29
25
20
21
26
26

30
31
32
33

20
21

&
Ji——

Il
FH
[

_|_

D]

ThE

Group
&M

2008
“ZTNEF
HK$'000
T

67,272
28,031
268,490
24,460
15,671
36,290
28,620
901
3,900

473,635
676

180,844

46,313
2,233
7,775
5,030

223,315

466,186

166,005
35,522
562
45,358
16,539

263,986

Company

ARF

2008
—FT)F
HK$'000
Tt

2,102

1,200
4,647

6,313
24,792

367,349
1,924

156,344

556,722

4,536

139,077

143,613



BALANCE SHEETS

At 31 March 2009

Net current assets RBEEFE

Total assets less BEAER
current liabilities REBRE

Non-current liabilities FREEE

Borrowings TE

Finance lease payables ERRERERE

Amounts due to associates YN NCIE S

Deferred taxation IRIER IR

Net assets BEFE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR

Share capital A

Reserves &1

Equity attributable to equity A ERRAE
holders of the Company BEAEGES

Minority interests DERRER

Total equity XA

The financial statements on page 32 to 149 were approved and
authorized for issue by the board of directors on 24 July 2009

and are signed on its behalf by:

Chan Heng Fai
BRiEE
Managing Chairman

HITEE

Notes

P&t

31
32
21
34

36
38

& &
RZZTTNF=A=+—H
Group Company
F5E AN
2008 2008
—ET)N\F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
202,200 413,109
675,835 421,058
88,780 -
1,326 -
1,570 587
24,489 249
116,165 836
559,670 420,222
18,191 18,191
539,147 402,031
557,338 420,222
2,332 -
559,670 420,222

FERNEFIVEZHBRRER_ZTZNF L
A-tNHBESSEREETEE  Wh T
TEEREREE

Chan Tong Wan
BRiEE

Managing Director

BEFsIE
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Xpress Group Limited

36

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2009

Cash flows from
operating activities
(Loss) profit from continuing
operations before tax
Profit (loss) from discontinued
operation before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid land leases

Impairment losses on

— available-for-sale financial assets

— loan receivables

— property, plant and equipment

— trade receivables

— other receivables

— interest in an associate

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Discount on acquisition of
additional interest in a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of associates

Fair value loss (gain) on investment
properties

Equity settled share based payment
expenses

Interest income

Interest expenses on borrowings
and convertible debentures

Finance charges on finance leases

Share of results of associates

Excess of the Group's interests
in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost

Reversal of impairment loss on
trade receivables

Operating loss before working
capital changes

REGEERRERE

BRBEATZ SR E %
(B8 F

FRBEATC R IERE 25T
A (ER)

KT SHAR

e

BRNEE LS EH
BTN BRI RERE
- AHHESREE
—RBER
-M% - BERRE
—BHRKHR

—E b HRIR

— RS AR 2R
HENE - BE &
KR

Y B —FEPR B A RSN
L EaPAiE
HEMBAR 2 W
HEBE AR 2
REWF 2 A VHERE
(Uek)
DR A E 2 RID Y
ZFX

FEKA

EE R ARRES
FMEFX
BEREZHERR
DR ENRIRE
SENEKET 2
AEBIEE  BER
IARBENATFE
= A
BHRMFEL
RIEE BT

A
[l
4}:}1]12'
A
<
[
o £
||I'\':ﬁ'
L
m
=3
_FH
it

2008
“ETENF
HK$'000
FHT

Notes

B EE

66,962

(47,558)

19,404

7,142
661

o

1,359
1,196
1,431

Co Co Co Co Co Go

680
(35,037)
(106)
(1,217)
(69,690)

397
(10,733)

16,069
20
5,671

(11,976)

(74,729)




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2009

Operating loss before working
capital changes
Increase in loan receivables
Decrease in inventories
Decrease (increase) in amounts due
from associates
Decrease (increase) in trade
and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
(Increase) decrease in financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Increase (decrease) in trade
and other payables and accruals
(Decrease) increase in amounts due
to associates

Cash (used in) generated from
operations
Tax (paid) refund

Net cash (used in) generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from
investing activities
Decrease (increase) in pledged
bank deposits
Acquisition of an associate
Subscription of shares in an associate
Proceeds from disposal of an associate
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Purchase of investment properties
Proceeds from disposal of an
investment property with
deposit paid only
Payments for prepaid land leases
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Net cash outflow from
disposal of subsidiaries
Interest received
Payment of long term deposits

Net cash (used in) generated from
investing activities

ZIBEER

R EFRIE N

FERD

B REIR
W (g m)

B 5 M E A RAGIE -
e RIENFR
w2 hn)

BAHERABRR®Z
TREECRIHD

B 5 M EMENFEAR
FEERIE I OB D)

YN gNTIE ]
ORiA )&

rEXB(FRR)MERE

(B)EREHE

REEB(AA)ME
REeFHE

REFDZHERE
BARIRITIE SR L (3B )

Wi — B = 2 A
B — B QAR
HE— RS AT
HEWME - B Rk
S RIR
BAYE - BELRE

BAREME
HEENREIRENE
IS 5E

YREMN T EERS

WEBH B A E)

HEMBLRBRERH
R

B S

XN EHRE

RETE (BT )T
B FEE

n

> |l
[l
4}:}1]12'
A
<
[
o £
||I'\':ﬁ'
L
m
=3
_FH
it

2008
—EENF
HK$'000
T

Notes
FiaE

(74,729)
(1,035)
80

(1,198)

(19,405)

132,499
(3,989)

1,334

33,557
4,475

38,032

(4,545)

(3,479)
(16,225)

10,439

1,161

(14,230)
(27,284)

125,661
(7,935)
43 (2,468)
44 (127)
10,733

(8,007)

63,694
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KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 4R & 1 <

For the year ended 31 March 2009

Cash flows from
financing activities
Repayment of borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of
share capital
New borrowing raised
Capital injection from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries
Interest paid
Redemption / repurchase of the
convertible debentures by the Group
Increase in finance lease payables
Finance lease interest expenses
Repayment of finance lease payment

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

Analysis of the balance of cash
and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash

38

HE-ZTZ —HILFE
2008
—FE\F
Notes HK$'000
MEE FETT
METH HERE
BEEE (50,264)
BTSRRI
6,492
MERE _
MB AR EEELE
547
BRAFIE (14,796)
AEEERBO T aRES
(6,149)
ENEMNBERENE 311
BEMEFERY (20)
BEmsHamaE -
BE T2 FE (63,879)
ReRBLEEER
(R & inFE4E 37,847
RENZzRSRBLEEER
188,183
NESBUERE2FE
(2,715)
RERZHER
REEHEER 223,315
ReRBREEEER LRI
RITEGFERIRE 223,315
223,315




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

)

CHANGES IN EQUITY BE—Z Eﬂizﬂ S+—ALEE
For the year ended 31 March 2009
Minority Total
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company interests equity
RDFREREAREER JURREE  EGEE
Employee
Assets  Investment share-hased
Share Share  Warant revaluation revaluation ~ Translation compensation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
Wk
JRER  EEEf  REE4 %fiTEEZ
Rx  ROEE 1] 1] B HERE RERRE  ZiER &5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Hk$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Tin Tin Tin Thn Thn Thn Thn Th Th T TEn
At 1 April 2007 RZZTCERR-A 17,548 723,469 5,160 8,038 24112 25,208 31 (278073) 528583 39,024 567,607
Fair value change on AtiiEeEEEy
avallable-for-sae finandal assets A FEEE) - - - - 201 - - - 200 - 201
Exchange differences on transation RHAEES R MAE
of overseas operations JEREE - - - - - 16,895 - - 16,395 - 16,895
Net income recognised ERNERH
directly in equity LEHA - - - - 2012 16,895 - - 18,967 - 18,97
Profit fo the year EgEH - - - - - - - 1229 12209 (2914) 9315
Total recongised income and EERBIZEN
expenses for the year Rtk - - - - 201 16,95 - 1229 31,1% Q914 2828
Release of fai value gain on HETHIESRHER
disposal of available-for-sale JAHERRER
financial assets - - - - (8,3%6) - - - (8,386) - (8,386)
Reversal of fair value gain on ERANAIATE
acouisiton of an associate ligar4d
(note 21) izl - - B = (2,794) - - - (2,79) - (2,794)
Brercise of 2009 Warrants TE-TENETR
subscription rights (note 36@) B 7 5E
(Hiet36) 54 435 - - - - - - 4,8% - 4899
Brercise of share options (note 37) {7 ERTEH/:#37) 9 1494 - - - - - - 1593 - 1593
Transfer to reserves upon exercise  RTEEREER
of share option EhE - 81 - - - = (81) - - . -
Transfer o resenves upon REEEREES
cancellation of share option Eﬁéﬁ - - - - - - (62) 62 - - -
Share of reserve of an assodiate KBNS - - - - - 1,950 (100) - 1,850 - 1,850
Reduction in minority interests on H NG
acquisition of additional interest ~ E&EM2LERR
in a subsidiary BREd - - - - - - - - - (34325) (34325)
Capital contrbution from minority - B A E2 S 8RE
shareholder of  subsidiary HE - - - - - - - - - 547 547
Employee share-based compensation 22 M4
expenses recognised [BEZRERS - - - - - - 397 - 397 - 397
31 March 2008 et
=R=1t-H 18,191 729,39 5,160 8,038 15,004 44,053 3275 (26578) 557338 2331 559,670
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Xpress Group Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2009

At 1 April 2008
Fair value change on

avalable-for-sale financial assets
Exchange differences on translation

of overseas operations

Net expenses recognised directly

n equity

Loss for the year

Total recongised expenses
for the year
Evercise of 2009 Warrants

subscription rights (note 36(a))

Exercise of share options (note 37)

Transfer to reserves upon
exercise of share option
Transfer to reserves upon

cancellation of share option
Share of reserve of an associate

RUEEFHmEL

EHER

BRNERED
AR

ERBR

G )
zmw

BB
(Wit36a)
fiisERE 7

R REEE
Bk

[
gﬁﬁ

HEBEL TR

Employee share-based compensation Eu’EWPZLA RishF

expenses recognised

Arising from redlassfication of
property, plant and equipment
o investment properties

ERZHERY
RENAENE -

FRRitERRE

mEmEL

Avising from disposal of a subsidiary Bt E—FIHEAT

(note 44)

At 31 March 2009

40

WE E(/WE 44/J

R-BEAE
ZRzt-8

= A
(=]

HE_Z Eﬂizﬂ =+—HIEFE
Minority Total
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company interests equity
RLAREREARGRER JERFRE  ERAE
Employee
Assets ~ Investment share-based
Share Share  Warrant revaluation revaluation ~ Translation compensation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reseve  reserve reserve losses Total
WRe
hEE  EREH  REEM %fi7EZ
Bx  BiviE fife 1 BE  RERE EREE  ZiER 3t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR ThL T T T T ThT ThT AT
18,191 729399 5,160 8,038 15,004 44,053 325 (6578) 557,338 2332 559,670
- - - - (15,004) - - - (15,004) - (15,004)
- - - - - (20,239) - - (20,239) - (20239)
- - - - (15,004) (20239) - - (35,243) - (35,243)
- - - - - - - (111,587)  (111,587) - (111,587)
- - - - (15,004) (20239) - (I1587)  (146,830) - (146830)
- 3 - - - - - - 3 - 3
180 1,044 - - - - - - 1224 - 1224
- 900 - - - - (900) - - - -
- - - - - S 138 - - -
- - - - - - 105 - 105 - 105
- - - - - - 3097 - 3,097 - 3,097
- - - 12,767 - - - - 12,767 - 12,767
- - - - - - - - X N X 1)
18311 131,346 5,160 20,805 - 8814 4219 (376011) 427,704 3 421,135




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xpress Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The
address of the Company’s registered office and principal
place of business is 5th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King’s
Road, North Point, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) include investment
holding, property investment, hotel operations, securities
investments, treasury investment and financing business.
The Group was also engaged in travel related services, which
was discontinued during the year ended 31 March 2009.
(note 10)

The financial statements on pages 32 to 149 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"), in which the collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (”Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 24 July
2009.

—REHR

FEEEERAR(ARR ) RERBHE
MBS RIABBIERARFE 2 BR DT o &
NEZ MR & T B EEILNE
AL AEE2ES105EEAESE - AR
AIRNDEREHAERIMARLA (B
Prl) b e

AR REMBAR(HEIAER ) Z2E
DEEAREER MERE - BIEX
% BHEERE  MERERBEER - &
EEZ A B IREEERS - HERE
EoBEAFE=A=+—HIFELLR
2 (FIsE10) ©

FREEV9EZMBHERTIKRE LR
BomEEN (BB BRELE ] &5
MRREEEESMAe([HES6
NG ) 2 A E R AR B SR
SR BEGHER([FEEGER )
kB ((RE]))REBRATMEIZHRE
MRS - ¥BEHRENERBIAES LT
ARAT ETRAD 2 BREBERE -

BE_ZZhE="A=+—RHItEE70
BHRERER_ZEZENF LA+ HHELE
EeERTT -
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KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

42

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new standards, amendments and interpretations (the “new
HKFRSs") issued by the HKICPA, which are or have become
effective for the Group financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 April 2008.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets

(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction

The new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results
and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no
prior period adjustment is required.

The Group has not early applied the following new
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements’
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs!
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements?
HKAS 32, HKAS 39 Puttable Financial Instruments and
and HKFRS 7 Obligations Arising on
(Amendment) Liquidation?

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement — Eligible
Hedge Items?

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27  Cost of an investment in

(Amendments) a subsidiary, Jointly Controlled

Entity or Associate!

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations?

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Financial instruments: Disclosures
— Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments’

2.

—ETAF=R=+—HILFE
RATT BT E AU RS

ZR(TERMBREER )

RAFE » AEBEBERRBUTHER
SEfEIAgRM  R-_FTEN\FOA—H
Min FEHRLER - BREHDERA
SEPBRREMFEL - BF] R
([FETE BB EREEA]) o

BESIERE39% SREEENNE
REE RS ER
E75(EFTR)
BE(OBREREZEY) RBLERERE
—REE12%
%/;&(Eﬁﬁ%&mui% E@) E AEJF\‘ E‘J%w
-REE14% F-ARENZEE
LIRS - RIEER
HRENRIEEBE

el BB BREERT S LA HRE B
FE 2 EENIBRRZ REKR 2
SITABEAZE - At - BALBES
EELFEE o

AEE W ERFRA NIIERMERRE
M FER ~ BRI AN KRR

BEGHEAR R (BER]) HBHRRZZ5

BREHERE2R(BER]) BERA
BREHERF27R (BB fRa LBLHE
HER2
BBEEFN - mEEERTAR
BRGHERE3INRR AR BT
BRMBHREEETHR
(BFIA)
BEGEAFIR(EAR) SRTA : BAL
FHE-REREH
HR?
BENBREEAS R RIEAR - R
RERGHENE TR H B 5’#*2?

(BFIA) REZBARA
BENBREERBER BB — 58
(BFIA) foRtE Rt s

BENBREEAE3R FHam
(BET)

BENBREEAETR THTA: BE-
(BFIA) TRIAREL

P



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments’

HK(IFRIC)-INT 9 Reassessment of Embedded
and HKAS 39 Derivatives and Financial
(Amendments) Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement — Embedded
Derivativess
HK(IFRIC)-INT 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes3
HK(IFRIC)-INT 15 Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate!
Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation#
Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners?
Transfer of Assets from

HK(FRIC)-INT 16
HK(IFRIC)-INT 17

HK(IFRIC)-INT 18

2. RAFRIREETEBMBRE
ZR(TERMBREER D @)

BRMBHREERFSH 2D

EE(IBREREZES)
-REEGIRESS
B FE395E (BRI &)

BERAATETA
FERTIA : B2
R E-]RAANT

Customersé

Various — Annual Improvements to HKFRS 20087

Various — Annual Improvements to HKFRS 20098

ETAS
BE(MBREREZEe) FPBUMEE
—REZE13%
BE(UBREREZES) RERMENRE
—REZE15%
BE(MBREREZEY) NEEBENRETE
ui%ﬁéﬁ 1657 iT/EFA
BE(MBREREZES) HRFEHLEET
—RBEITR BEEAN
BE(MBREREZEs) ARFPERLE
-REZ18%

EEBE-—FFN\F

W7

A RE-—ZTNFER]

s

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October
2008.

5 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009.

6 Effective for transfer of assets from customers received on or
after 1 July 2009.

7 Generally effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2009 unless otherwise stated in the specific HKFRSs.

8 Generally effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010 unless otherwise stated in the specific HKFRSs.

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of these
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policy for the first period beginning after the effective date
of the pronouncement.

1

“ETNF-A B RHARZFE
HARR AR ©

“ETNFLA B RHARZFE
HARR AR ©

RIZRN\FLA-B &R ZFE
HARR AR~

RIZZN\F+A-—BR &R ZFE
HARR AR ©

> REZE=ZEZNFNA=THKZEILF
JEEAR AR

“ETNFLA-HIZREEERF
EREIEEEM -

B ERBMBMEL S EEAIN - —
BR-ZENF-A—HRIZRARZF
JEEPRRAERY

BRERBVHREENSEEAIN - —
BR_T—FF-A—HIZRARZF
JEEARRI AR o

AN REE B BRI A
AR A IR A 2 B EAIRE A
8 TR SRA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Among these new standards and interpretations, HKAS
1 (Revised) — Presentation of Financial Statements is
expected to materially change the presentation of the
Group's financial statements. This amendment affects the
presentation of owner changes in equity and introduces a
statement of comprehensive income. The Group will have
the option of presenting items of income and expense and
components of other comprehensive income either in a
single statement of comprehensive income with subtotals,
or in two separate statements (a separate income statement
followed by a statement of comprehensive income). This
amendment does not affect the financial position or results
of the Group but will give rise to additional disclosures.

In addition, HKFRS 8 — Operating Segments may result in
new or amended disclosures. The directors are in the process
of identifying reportable operating segments as defined in
HKFRS 8.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact of other new and amended HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the directors have preliminarily concluded
that the initial application of these HKFRSs is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for the investment
properties and certain financial assets and liabilities,
which are stated at their fair value and amortised cost
respectively. The measurement bases are fully described
in the accounting policies below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

3.2

3.3

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustment will be made to the
financial statements of the subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are excluded from
consolidation from the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

Business combinations (other than for combining
entities under common control) are accounted for
by applying the purchase method. This involves the
revaluation at fair value of all identifiable assets
and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of
whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On
initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary are included in the consolidated balance
sheet at their fair values, which are also used as the
bases for subsequent measurement in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment losses. The results
of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the
balance sheet date.

Minority interest represents the portion of the profit or
loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity
interests that are not owned by the Group and are not
the Group's financial liabilities.

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from the equity
attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
Profit or loss attributable to the minority interests
are presented separately in the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the Group’s results.
Where losses applicable to the minority exceeds the
minority interests in the subsidiary’s equity, the excess
and further losses applicable to the minority are
allocated against the minority interest to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation and is able
to make an additional investment to cover the losses.
Otherwise, the losses are charged against the Group’s
interests. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits,
such profits are allocated to the minority interests only
after the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed
by the Group has been recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B
7N
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XES:BEHBE®E)

POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates 3.4 BELg

Associates are those entities over which the Group
is able to exert significant influence, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of voting rights but which are neither subsidiaries
nor investment in a joint venture. In the consolidated
financial statements, investment in associates is initially
recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for
using the equity method. Under the equity method,
the Group's interest in the associate is carried at cost
and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the associate’s net assets less any
identified impairment loss, unless it is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). The consolidated income statement
includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the associate for the year, including
any impairment loss on goodwill relating to the
investment in associate recognised for the year.

When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest in the associate is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group's net investment in the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group'’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates (continued)

The goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment as
part of the investment. After the application of equity
method, the Group determines whether it is necessary
to recognise an additional impairment loss on the
Group's investment in its associates. At each balance
sheet date, the Group determines whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in associate is
impaired. If such indications are identified, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as being the
difference between the recoverable amount (note 3.11)
of the associate and its carrying amount.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement in the determination
of the Group'’s share of the associate’s profit or loss in
which the investment is acquired.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Where the
associate uses accounting policies other than those of
the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made, where necessary,
to conform the associate’s accounting policies to those
of the Group when the associate’s financial statements
are used by the Group in applying the equity method.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in an
associate is stated at cost less any impairment losses.
The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XES:BEHBE®E)

POLICIES (continued)
3.5 HBBRE

3.5 Foreign currencies translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At balance sheet date,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the balance sheet date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all the
individual financial statements of foreign operations,
originally presented in a currency different from the
Group's presentation currency, have been converted
into Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates
at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses have
been converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at the
average rates over the reporting period provided that
the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any
differences arising from this procedure have been dealt
with separately in the translation reserve in equity.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation have been treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates.

Other exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are taken to shareholders’ equity. When
a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises of the fair value for the sale of

3. TEETERBE®R

3.6 WarEsR

W BmHEEm R ERG R EAM

goods, rendering of services, the use by other of the
Group's assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends,
net of rebates and discounts. Revenue is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@) Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of
the significant risks and rewards of ownership to
customer. This is usually taken as the time when
the goods are delivered and the customer has
accepted the goods.

(b) Sales of air tickets are recognised upon issuance
of the air tickets.

(c) Sales of tours are recognised upon departure of
the tour group.

(d) Sale of hotel accommodation is recognised upon
issuance of the hotel vouchers.

(e) Credit card service income is recognised when
services are provided.

(f) License fees are recognised over the license
period.

(g) Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

(h) Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance from properties under operating leases,
is recognised on a straight line basis over the term
of the lease.

(i)  Revenue from hotel operation is recognised upon
provision of services.

() Interest income from credit card receivables is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on an accrual basis, except where a debt becomes
doubtful, in which case, recognition of interest
income is suspended until it is realised on a cash
basis.

(k) Other interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Borrowing costs

3.8

3.9

All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred during
the year.

Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill
arising from acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for
goodwill arising from acquisition of investment in an
associate is set out in note 3.4.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment over the Group's interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. The cost of the
business combination is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination or investment.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 3.11).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in consolidated
income statement.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on
disposal.

Prepaid land leases and property, plant and
equipment

Prepaid land leases represent up-front payments to
acquire long term interest in the usage of land. They
are stated at cost and charged to consolidated income
statement over the remaining period of the lease on a
straight-line basis net of any impairment losses.

Freehold lands are stated at cost and related carrying
amounts are not depreciated as there is no definite
useful life for freehold land.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Prepaid land leases and property, plant and
equipment (continued)

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
prepaid land leases, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
prepaid land leases at the inception of the lease, and
other items of plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives or the term of the relevant
lease, if shorter.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost over their
estimated useful lives, on the following bases and at
the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the lease
term or 2% on straight
line method

Leasehold Over the term of the lease or

improvements 6.67% — 20% on straight-

line method, whichever is
the shorter
Furniture, fixtures and  20% — 25% on reducing
motor vehicles balance method

The assets’ estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

The gain or loss arising from retirement or disposals
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XES:BEHBE®E)

POLICIES (continued)
310 REY=E

3.10 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are on freehold land/owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it was held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. The carrying amounts recognised
in the balance sheet reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property is included
in the consolidated income statement for the period in
which they arise.

Property which is held by the Group for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes is classified as owner-
occupied property. The Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated in note
3.9 for buildings and prepaid land lease elements
of the owner-occupied property respectively. When
the owner-occupied property subsequently becomes
an investment property that will be carried at fair
value, any decrease in the carrying amount of the
property is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. However, to the extent that an amount
is previously included in revaluation surplus for the
owner-occupied property, the decrease is charged
against that revaluation surplus. Any increase in the
carrying amount is recognised in consolidated income
statement to the extent that such increase reverses a
previous impairment loss and any remaining parts of
the increase are credited directly to assets revaluation
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Investment properties (continued)

On subsequent disposal of the investment property
which was previously an owner-occupied property,
the revaluation surplus included in assets revaluation
reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

For properties held for sale which subsequently become
investment properties that will be carried at fair value,
any difference between the fair value of the property
at the date of change in use and its previous carrying
amount will be recognised in consolidated income
statement.

3.11 Impairment of assets

Goodwill arising from an acquisition of subsidiary,
property, plant and equipment, and interests in
subsidiaries and associates are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, unless
the relevant asset is carried at revalued amount under
the Group's accounting policy. The recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions
less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XES:BEHBE®E)

POLICIES (continued)
3.11 ZBERIE (&)

3.11 Impairment of assets (continued)

Goodwill in particular is allocated to those cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from
synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill.
Any remaining impairment losses are charged pro rata
to the other assets in the cash-generating unit, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

3.12 Leases

An arrangement, comprising of a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Leases (continued)

3. TEETERBE®R

312 74 (%)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases, which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 3.10); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon, at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease (see note 3.9). For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets
are included in fixed assets and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
finance lease payables.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance
lease agreements corresponds to those applied to
comparable acquired assets. The corresponding finance
lease liability is reduced by lease payments less finance
charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to consolidated income statement over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XES:BEHBE®E)

POLICIES (continued)
3.12 749 (%)

3.12 Leases (continued)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the
lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured
and presented according to the nature of the assets.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in consolidated income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable.

3.13 Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than investments in subsidiaries and associates
are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

—  financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- loan and receivables

— available-for-sale financial assets

ERFEEAZKEHREERER

HEAEBEE AR EHERBERE
Z (LR - LWHEFH N RE
IR EAOERT AR A iR - 1EEA
H—REEERMREEEETENT R
BEANEERRSN - PIEE SRR TSR
BUERERREFHEEE &

{/‘\ °

EREHEARBEEHEHERE

RELEHEEREZBENREEN
BENEY - ERER AL EH
ERELZVFERRAMAEEE
EZERmE  REOFIREESI
ABREERZ R o

REQEHEMBAEZHEERA - T5
NBEARERBL MR E 2 IR ELR S
WERARTERR - MW S — B EE R R R
MEEEMBRZ MRS - PR
ZHEEBEINGE WaERTHER
TEREYOFRE TR — 8D -

313 eHEE

AEEREREE(TEERNEA
AIMBERRZIRE) 2B BRE
BB o

TREEDERATER

— BRAFEAABZZEREE
- ERRkEKRIEA

- A EEREE

57

« CETHEEH

Annual Report 2009



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B
7N
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:BEBE®E)
POLICIES (continued)

313 EHEZE )

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

KEEEERAT

Xpress Group Limited

58

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments expire
or are transferred and substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred. At
each balance sheet date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is determined and recognised based on the
classification of the financial asset.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
includes financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments or
financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B
7N
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:BEBE®E)

POLICIES (continued)
313 2HEE (&)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following
criteria are met:

—  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis; or

—  the assets are part of a group of financial assets
which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy and
information about the group of financial assets
is provided internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

— the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
consolidated income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
and transaction cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

3. TEETERBE@R

313 EHEZE ()

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are either designated
to this category or do not qualify for inclusion in any
of the other categories of financial assets. All financial
assets within this category are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gain or loss arising from a change in
the fair value excluding any dividend and interest
income is recognised directly in equity, except for
impairment losses (see the policy below) and foreign
exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity would be recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Upon disposal, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
transferred to the consolidated income statement.

For available-for-sale investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, the impairment
loss is measured and recognised as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XES:BEBE#E)

POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued) 313 2HEE &)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost BREBERRYIRzEREE

A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and the default
of delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of
the loss is recognised in consolidated income statement
of the period in which the impairment occurs. When a
trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result
in a carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets in impaired. In the
case of equity securities classified as available for sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered as an indicator that
the securities are impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognised directly in
equity and there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, an amount is removed from equity and
recognised in the consolidated income statement as
impairment loss. That amount is measured as the
difference between the asset’s acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment losses on that
asset previously recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in
the consolidated income statement. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised directly in equity.
Impairment losses in respect of debt securities are
reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can
be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.

3.14 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and applicable selling
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XES:BEBE#E)

POLICIES (continued)
3.15 i Est EE

3.15 Accounting for income tax

Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise of
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period,
that are unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are
calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of income tax expense in the consolidated
income statement.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward
as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Accounting for income tax (continued))

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated income statement or
in equity if they relate to items that are charged or
credited directly to equity.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For cash flow
statement presentation, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

3.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares are deducted from share
premium (net of any related income tax benefit) to the
extent they are incremental costs directly attributable
to the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XES:BEBE#E)

POLICIES (continued)
3.18 BIRFFRL KR 42 HifE 5 75 71

3.18 Retirement benefit costs and short term

employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
several defined contribution plans.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its Hong Kong
employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries operate
in Singapore and Japan are required to participate
in the defined contribution plans regulated and
managed by the local government. The contributions
to the defined contribution plans are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period to which
the contributions relate.

Short term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

3.19 Share-based employee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted after
7 November 2002 and not vested on 1 April 2005
are recognised in the financial statements. The Group
operates equity-settled share-based compensation
plans for remuneration of its employees.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Share-based employee compensation (continued)

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are measured
at their fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the share options awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in the consolidated income statement with
a corresponding increase in equity (employee share-
based compensation reserve). If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that
the number of share options expected to vest differs
from previous estimates. No adjustment to expense
recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in employee share-
based compensation reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

3.20 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, borrowings, finance leases payables, amount
due to associates and convertible debentures. The
Company'’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and amounts due to subsidiaries.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual agreements of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
as an expense in finance costs in the consolidated
income statement.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XES:BEBE#E)

POLICIES (continued)
320 @A E (&)

3.20 Financial liabilities (continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Finance lease payables
Finance lease payables are measured at initial value less
the capital element of lease repayments (see note 3.12).

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.

Convertible debentures

Convertible debentures issued by the subsidiary of the
Company that contain both financial liability and equity
components are classified separately into respective
liability and equity components on initial recognition.
On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible debentures and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the call option for
conversion of the debenture into equity, is included in
equity as convertible debenture equity reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities (continued)

Convertible debentures (continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component will remain in equity until conversion
or redemption of the debenture.

When the debenture is converted, the convertible
debenture equity reserve and the carrying value of
the liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the debenture is
redeemed, the convertible debenture equity reserve is
released directly to retained earnings.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

3.21 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

3. TEETERBE@R

320 EHEE ()

AR ES ()

BER D KRB ERN R R
PRANDIER - sy i EFER
BERRENEST

WEFEERE - PR ES R
B RN ERE B ER D ZREEE
BERAREDREESDEITRD
ZRE - WEFREE - R ATRARE
FREmFENERBRART G

B2 RHEMBENRE

B 5 MEMENFIER YRR A TE
MR - HRIZBERA A E AR H
PRI

321 B KABEBRUNREE

WARBEEBEEEELBABER
CEERHET ) R AR B EEN
M AEEET - MzEB 22/
THEREGE - BT IAMRERE - HE
ERRECHEBEAE @ AREER
EBFERMAZRESERE -

FrAEREENEBEGE RERHN - 1K
AEBARBRIRAE RER-R -

HARBHEZRLEBEN SN EFCHE
REEREMEMRT - RSB RERSSIEX
REE - QBN R Z AT IR
EERIERIN - AIREEBE D IIELR
BEFRF—MHIULTET2ES
BTG RAEBREFEEOEHLE
TOARER, - MERER SR Z AR
RAKE QBRI -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B
7N
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XES:BEBE#E)

POLICIES (continued)
321 75  BAREERAAEE&F)

3.21 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

assets (continued)

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination. They are initially
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in a comparable provision as
described above and the amount initially recognised
less any accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

3.22 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group's policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in consolidated income statement on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in consolidated income
statement over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
under the guarantee and the amount of that claim on
the Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

3.23 Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical segments as the secondary reporting
format.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Segment reporting (continued)

In respect of business segment reporting, unallocated
costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets
consist primarily of investment properties, property,
plant and equipment, available-for-sale investments,
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
and, trade and other receivables, and mainly exclude
corporate assets. Segment liabilities comprise of
operating liabilities and exclude items such as corporate
borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises of additions to property,
plant and equipment, including additions resulting
from acquisitions through purchases of subsidiaries.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue is
based on the country in which the customer is located
and total assets and capital expenditure are where the
assets are located.

3.24 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the
Company / Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Company that gives it significant influence over
the Company / Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Company / Group;

(i)  the party is an associate;
(iii) the part is an jointly-controlled entity;

(iv) the party is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Company;

(v) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of the Company /
Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Company / Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EESHGTRHE

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experiences and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3.11. The recoverable amounts of the relevant cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates.

Estimate fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of the Group’s investment
properties is current prices in an active market for similar
properties. In the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(i) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts, and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the price of the
specific investment are taken into account. The Group also
takes into account other factors, such as industry and sector
performance and financial information regarding the issuer/
investee.

Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
investment property. In making its judgment, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only
to property but also to other assets used in production or
supply of goods or services.

Some properties comprise of a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use for administrative purposes. If these
portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately
under finance lease), the Group accounts for these portions
separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the
property is accounted for as an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use for administrative
purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as investment property. The Group considers each
property separately in making its judgment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 7 Bt &
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE_ZTNAF-A=Z+—HIFE
5. REVENUE 5. W=
Revenue, which is also the Group'’s turnover, represents total Wz (TME A S B X588 BT e g3
invoiced value of goods supplied and income from provision FEERIRERE WA - FRRER 2K
of services. Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: E N
2009 2008
—EBIF —ETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Continuing operations BEEEER
Financial interest and Service income BEEBNE RRBUA 8,533 9,993
Dividend income & EMA 8,613 7,022
Other interest income H bR S A 3,735 6,026
Rental income e A 7,259 10,809
Income from hotel operations B G ZEFSUA 65,259 48,838
93,399 82,688
Discontinued operation ORI
Sale of air tickets and tours HEME N IRTTE 1,018,819 1,347,979
Other interest income EL A SN = 46
1,018,819 1,348,025
Total revenue F gy 1,112,218 1,430,713
6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. DEER
Primary reporting format — business segments TEZ2HEN - EBSE
The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into five (2008: REE22REB S RTME(Z /\

six) main business segments: financing operations, securities
trading and investment, treasury investment, property
investment and hotel operations.

provide financing to individuals
and acquiring services for
members

Financing operations

Securities trading
and investment

trading of securities

Treasury investment

asset management and cash

operations
Property investment — letting properties
Hotel operations — hotel operations in Japan

In the previous year, the Group also engaged in travel
related operations. This segment was discontinued
during the year ended 31 March 2009. Further details of
discontinued operation under the travel related operations
business segment are set out in note 10.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.
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Z+—BHULEFEERIEEE - BRI
HEAES T 2R IEEEER M
15 S0

DEE SRR T EFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

An analysis of the Group'’s revenue, contribution to loss from
operations for the year ended 31 March 2009 and 2008
and certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information

regarding business segments are as follows:

7= B &
—ERAE=A=t-ALERE
DEER #)

NTHIAEBEBEE_TTNFN—
NE=ZA=1— Htifz*ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ’z"*
ZWak -~ BIECEEBBUARETEE
BENMAXER

For the year ended 31 March 2009 BE-_ZENF=A=+—HLEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BALL
FESEER HEETS
Securities
trading Travel
Financing and  Treasury  Property Hotel related
operations investment investment investment operations Elimination  Sub-total ~operations Total
588 M
HEEH RRE HERE NERE  EEEN B Nt EBER a5t
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
T Tén Thn T T Tén Tén T T
Revenue &
- External sales -$MEE 8,533 8,613 3,735 11,020 61,498 - 93399 1,018819 1,112,218
- Inter-segment sales -DHEHE - - h 1,032 - M) - - -
Total &t 8,533 8,613 43,946 12,052 61,498 (41,243) 93399 1,018819 1,112,218
Segment results PG (1785) (8089) 3735 (2176)  (3.225) - (37540)  (13809)  (51,349)
Unallocated revenue *PoikE 15,193 29 152
Unallocated expenses *FoREY (83,930) - (83930)
Finance costs BEHRA (5726)  (1,162)  (6.888)
Unallocated share of results of % FORE(LE
associates INGES (10,595) - (1059)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  (H EMBA A - 3030 30320
Unallocated impairment losson &k FAE—RE4 A F]
interest in an associate BEREBE (3,600) - (3,600)
(Loss) profit before income tax ~ PRET/EHAT (558 ) &7 (126,198) 15378  (110,820)
Income tax expense FERTH (208) (559) (767)
(Loss) profit for the year EE(ER) R (126,406) 14819  (111,587)
Segment assets NHEAE 5783 115,062 5700 279,945 48,689 - 455179 - 455179
Unallocated associates ATAREELE 8,306 - 8,306
Unallocated assets AFHREE 114,587 - 14587
Total assets i 578,072 - 57807M
Segment liabilties PHERE (1,136) - (17637)  (53660)  (17,708) - (90,141) - (%0,141)
Unallocated liabilities FFOREE (60,196) - (60,19)
Total liabilites L (150,337) - (150,337)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2009 (continued)

BEZ—_EZNE=A=1+—RHILLEE(HE)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BALL
RESERR ez
Securities
trading Travel
Financing and  Treasury  Property Hotel related
operations investment investment investment operations Elimination  Sub-total operations Total
REEE it
MEXE RRE HERE  NXRE  EERE H N OREER h
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
T T Tén THR T Tén Tén THR T
Capital expenditure BREY - - - 319 109 - 3,301 2,256 5,557
Unallocated capital expenditure & FHEBARS 381 - 381
Total capital expenditure EARY % 3,682 2,25 5,938
Depreciation ik 958 - 516 1,483 2,730 - 5,687 2,350 8,037
Amortisation of prepaidland ~ BAEE LS
leases LB - - - 655 - - 655 - 655
Impairment loss on avallable-for- AR ESBEE
sales financial assets HEEE - 8,140 - - - - 8,140 - 8,140
Impairment loss on loan EUEFZ
receivables HEEE 163 - - - - - 163 - 163
Fair value loss on financial ROTEARSE Y
assets at fair value through SREEY
profit or loss LTERE - B - - - - B - B0

75

« CETHEEH

Annual Report 2009



2

/)

REEEAR

Xpress Group Limited

76

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2008

BE-—ZEEN\E=A=1+—HLEE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
AL
S30EEE #25h
Securities
trading Travel
Financing and  Treasury  Property Hotel related
operations investment investment  investment  operations  Elimination  Sub-total operations Total
., ERER , I .
REEE  RRE  BERE  DERE  EEER Fggz NG REER @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn T T TR T T T TiEn T
Revenue W&
- Extemal sales -He 9993 T0Q 607 10809 48838 SR 1347979 1430713
- Inter-segment sales ~DHEHE - - 33806 1,208 - (35,060) (4) 46 -
Total 5 9,993 1022 39,878 12,017 43838 (35,060) 82,688 1348025 1,430,713
Segment results PR (13,162) 24,366 6,072 57,232 (7611) 5239 72,136 (48,569) 23,567
Unallocated revenue KPAEE 92,951 2,731 95,682
Unallocated expenses *FOREY (78,191) - (78191)
Finance costs BERR (14263)  (1,826)  (16,089)
Unallocated share of results of & AR E(5E:4
asociates T (5671) - (5671)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary LE—EMEAT
pdi - 106 106
Profit (loss) before income tax B EFERATAT () 66962 (47558) 19,404
Income tax expense FrEmz (9079)  (1,010) (10,089
Profit loss) or the year ERRT(ER) 57883 (48568) 9315
Seqment assets APRE 5% 8603 64 30968 156 AT ST B
Unallocated associates KPHIEELA 24,460 - 24460
Unallocated assts RIPEAE 451,906 - 451,906
Total assets BELR 881,983 57838 93981
Segment liabilties AHAE (2.569) - (822)  (5723) - - (©14)  (49237)  (58351)
Unallocated liabilties *FoRak (321,800) - (321,800)
Total liabilities -t (330914)  (49,237) (380,151)
Capital expenditure EREY U - - 4 454 - 5,199 6,129 11328
Unallocated capital expenditure X FARERER 2,902 - 2,902
Total capital expenditure ERRYEE 8,101 6,129 14230
Depreciation & 976 - 684 715 2,468 - 4,843 2,299 7142
Amortisation of prepaid land ~ EffEE 7S
leases Wz i - - - 661 - - 661 - 661
Impairment losses on loan &S
receivables HEEE - - 1,359 - - - 1359 - 1,359
Impairment losses on property, 1%+ BEREEL
plant and equipment HEBE - 1,19 1,19




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $§ & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE_ZTNAE=ZA=+—HILFEE

6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6. DHEPERI#)

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

The Group's operations are located in four (2008: four) main
geographical areas. The following table provides an analysis

REZ2#HA - HES

AEBEEXBEIERNTE(ZZTNE
M) e - TREHARBEIRBE TS

of the Group's revenue by geographical market, irrespective DI 2WEST - TR RERERBR

of the origin of the goods and services. EEH o

2008

ZTENE

Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operation Consolidated

S BRIE
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR
Hong Kong &k 26,450 - 26,450
North America EEM 6,200 - 6,200
Singapore AT 1,200 681,004 682,204
Japan B 48,838 667,021 715,859
82,688 1,348,025 1,430,713

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets and capital expenditure, analysed by the EEFTTEHE D47 -
geographical areas in which the assets are located.

Segment assets SEEE

AT Ry MEEZ RHEREAFIZE

2008

ZTENE

Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations  operation Consolidated

BE BRIE
RExH KEXK wa
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FHT FHT
Hong Kong B0 499,964 - 499,964
North America FEEM 51,624 - 51,624
Singapore AT 132,083 55127 187210
Japan AR 198,312 2,711 201,023
881,983 57,838 939,821
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $§ & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2009

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

(continued)

Capital expenditure

Hong Kong BE
North America JEEM
Singapore AT
Japan B

7. FINANCE COSTS

Continuing operations
Finance charges on finance leases
Interest charges on financial liabilities
at amortised cost:
— Bank loans and overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years
— Bank loans not wholly repayable
within five years
— Convertible debentures (note 33)
— Other loans

Discontinued operation
Interest charges on financial liabilities
at amortised cost:
— Bank loans and overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years

Total finance costs

BE_SEAF=A=+—HILER

2 RPER ()
KREZ2#H A — HE7E5 (4)

BEXRMAX
2008
—ZRN\F
Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operation Consolidated
S 2RI
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR
2,608 - 2,608
4,739 81 4,820

754 6,048 6,802

8,101 6,129 14,230
7. BERAK
2008
—EENF
HK$'000
FAT
BEGE$
RPEMAEY Y 20
R ATIRR 2
cRMEEIE
—ERAEFRNEZEEER
ZEBITERRER 922
—BEREFREH
BB ZIRITER 6,219
— AR EH (AiE33) 7,101
—HMER 1
14,263
CRIEEEER
RN AT BR 2 8t
BEIMNE
—BARRAFREHEEZ
BITERRES 1,826
BB R A 4R EE 16,089




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

8.

(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

(Loss) profit before income tax
is arrived at after charging

(crediting):

Operating lease charges on

land and buildings
Depreciation
- Owned assets
- Leased assets

Amortisation of prepaid land leases
(included in administrative

expenses)
Impairment losses on

available-for-sales financial assets
Impairment losses on loan receivables
Impairment losses on property,

plant and equipment

Impairment losses on trade

receivables

Impairment losses on other receivables

Impairment loss on interest in

an associate

Loss (gain) on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Auditor's remuneration
- Current year

—Under provision for previous year

Staff costs including directors’
emoluments (note 14)

Exchange loss (gain), net

Excess of the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost

Rental income from investment
properties less outgoings of
HK$1,801,000 (2008:

HK$1,621,000)

PR (R 18)
EHEB R,/

GFEAATRE::

THRETEERE
FIX

ik

-BREE

-HEEE

AT B
BELHEEZ
B

AfLESREEL
REBE

RYWERZRERR

nx  BERREZ
REBE

EARNEL
REBE

A EAFEZ
REBE

R—EBE AR
EHZRERE

HENZE  FER
R BRMER)

2 Gl

-KER

-BREREHETR

BERA(BEES
We)(fiiz14)
B3R (et )24
EFMRIEER 2
HAEE  BER
IRBBNATFE
BRI
REMERL WA
41,801,000 7T
(ZZTN\F:
1,621,000 7T)

B %R R M

BE_TTAF=A=1t—HILLFE

8. BRATISHBLAI(EER)EF

Continuing operations

BECCER
2008
“TE)N\F
HK$'000
THT

2,979

4,180
705

4,885
661

1,266

1,431

72,404
(11,492)

(11,976)

Discontinued operation

BALEERE
2008
“3I)F
HK$'000
7

12,693

2,257

2,257

93

1,19

(3,881)

174

174

66,824

Total

@
2008
“EEN\F
HK$'000
TAL

15,672

6,437
705

661

680

3,294

3,294

139,228
(11,489)

(11,976)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2008: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profit
tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of

assessment 2008/2009.

Continuing operations HEREER
Current tax ZRERFLTE

- Hong Kong —&E

— Overseas — g

Deferred tax (note 34) EIEFRIB (M 5E34)
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Current tax ZRHEAF IR

— Overseas — 8o

B %R R M

BE_TTAF=A=1t—HILLFE

FriSBi

BRI AF E A ERE R FIE
16.5% (ZZZTNF : 17.5%) 2T R
BE o BINEFRIBERIZFRARER
s AR A EEE L EBERATAR X

= o
>t

NZEENESNAZ+H  BELFE
BBZTENFRAKAER - BREM
BREERI175%AEE165% B-F
TN ZETNFERHEEER -

2008
“TENE
HK$'000
FHIT

23
7,692
1,364

9,079

1,010

10,089




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

9.

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

K

9.

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit from continuing and discontinued operations before
income tax per the consolidated income statement as

follows:

(Loss) profit before income tax
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operation

Tax at Hong Kong profits income tax rate
of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised
tax losses utilised this year

Other temporary differences not recognised

Tax effect of share of losses of associates

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Income tax expense

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

B %R R M

—ERAF=ZA=t—HLFE

FRri8Hix '.:H (&)

%ﬁﬁw%ﬁ&ﬂ%tﬁ#%ﬁ@myﬁ
FlmT

2008
—EENF
HK$'000
FHBT

R ETS AT (E518) a7l

—BEREER 66,962

— BRI T (47,558)

19,404
BEBEHEE16.5%

“EENF 17.5%)

FTE 2 FIA 3,396
TR H 2 R 2 20,073
BERBMA 2 RG22 (14,852)
KERRBBARBEBEZ

SNy 3,946
FRBAFERER

HIBEEB G TE (193)
ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁz RERFER 6

DEHE A REE RIS E 992
EEM R EE

MEARMERTR 2 FE (3,279)
B 10,089

10. ORISR EK
REBE_ZZNEF=A=1+—RHILFE

During the year ended 31 March 2009, resulting from the
disposal of the subsidiaries which carried majority of the
Group's travel related operation business, the Group ceased
operation of its major travel related operation in order to
focus the Group's resources in its remaining businesses. The
profit (loss) for the year from the discontinued operation is

analysed as follows:

Profit (loss) for the year from discontinued
operation

FEORIEREEB

A (E51R)

RREAKEAR D MEHERBES KB A
AIEHRHE  Hit - AEERKILEZEKR
BB RS - WESTHEREEAR
SEEBER - FECRIELERK %
M(EFHR) DMTEAT

2008
ZETNF
HK$'000
FiBT

(48,568)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $§ & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2009

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The results of travel related operation business for the year
ended 31 March 2009, which have been included in the

11.

BE_SEAF=A=+—HILER

10. BERIEREXE F)

BRENRE RESRAZRERBEBEE
“EENF-A=tHLEFEZEEN

consolidated income statement, were as follows: N
2008
ZEENF
HK$'000
FAT
Revenue Wz 1,348,025
Cost of sales $HE RN (1,276,874)
Gross profit EH 71,151
Other operating income Hh & EWA 7,739
Fair value loss on investment properties WEWE 2 N HERE (1,196)
Administrative expenses THRE > (123,211)
Impairment losses on available-for sale b ESREERE
financial assets &8 (321)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT 106
Profit (loss) from operations g s (E18) (45,732)
Finance costs &R AR (1,826)
Profit (loss) before income tax BT R AT A (&) (47,558)
Income tax expense FriS iz (1,010)
Profit (loss) for the year from discontinued FEDRIEEEER
operation Zm A (E1E) (48,568)
Cash flows from discontinued BRLREERZRSRE
operation
Net cash flows used in operating activities KBTS
FIREME (2,871)
Net cash used in investing activities K& EEFT A
FIREME (10,574)
Net cash generated from (used in) mEEEE(FTA)
financing activates FREME (18,351)
Net cash flow FREME (31,796)

(LOSS) PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

11. %ﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁk@ﬁ(&?ﬁ)?ﬁ

Of the consolidated loss attributable to the equity holders
of the Company of approximately HK$111,587,000 (2008:
profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
of approximately HK$12,229,000), a loss of approximately
HK$83,268,000 (2008: profit of approximately HK$5,912,000)
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

ARaREEBEARLEEAEEAY
111,587,000 TT(ZZEZNF : AARIK
A AEGEEF 412,229,000 7T)
M /A% #183,268,000/8 T2 BB (-2
J\EFE % H495,912,00008 7T) B EEAR 7
2 RER PRI o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

12. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share is based on
the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$111,587,000 (2008: profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$12,229,000) and on the weighted average number of
1,822,029,000 (2008: 1,807,472,000) ordinary shares in F

issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted (loss) earnings per share is based
on the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
approximately HK$111,587,000 (2008: profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$12,229,000) and on the weighted average number of
1,832,763,000 (2008: 2,128,370,000) ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share

is based on the following data:

(Loss) profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company, used in the basic and
diluted (loss) earnings per share calculation

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of the basic
loss / earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Share options
Warrants

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of diluted
loss/earnings per share

B %R R M

BE_TTAF=A=1t—HILLFE

12. BR(EE)EF

FFHERCRILEERT

BREAR(EE) B TVIRARAFRER
BATE(REIE#)111,587,0008 0 (=
TNF  ARERERFE ABRMEEFL
12,229,000 70) R FNEEHITE @sz
DN#E S 15 801,822,029,000 % ( = Z =\
1,807,472,0000% )51 & o

STEEREE(EE) B8R REA QK
A AEEETE49111,587,0008 7L (=
T N\F - ARFIRERE ARG L
12,229,000/ 70) R F W B BT E @A N
REF19%01,832,763,0000% ( —TZ )\ £
2,128,370,0008% )5t & -

BRER N EE (ER) BN TR AT 8UE

2008
—EZNF
HK$'000
FHBT
RN EIRRIERE B AL
(EB)&aH - BUEE
EFRREARREE(EE) BT 12,229
BHOEE
2008
—ETNF
‘000
T
STEEREANER B2
T AR hnaE 19 £
1,807,472
EBIEHEEE 2 L@k
HE A 43 179,900
SRS RS 140,998
STEEREESE B
TR ANRE B
2,128,370
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

12. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share from continuing operations attributable to equity

12. R (EE)BF @)
FEREREY

ARBBEFEAREZHEREELTS

PR EA N 5% (B 18 ) B TR A T BURE

holders of the Company is based on the following data: 5
2009 2008
—EEBNF T NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Loss) profit attributable to equity holders RN FIIERS B AL
of the Company, used in the basic and ()& F - BUETE
diluted earnings per share calculation BIRERNEERT (111,587) 9,315
Less: Profit (loss) for the year from W FEERIESEER
discontinued operation A (E18) 14,819 (48,568)
(126,406) 57,883

BE_ETNER-_TEEN\F=HA=+—

KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008 has stated as above.

From discontinued operation

The computation of basic and diluted loss per share
for the discontinued operation is based on the gain for
the year from discontinued operation of approximately
HK$14,819,000 (2008: loss for the year from discontinued
operation of approximately HK$48,568,000) and on the

B IEFE 2 @8 E R £ XE

5l o

BRUZEFXH

BRI E R s SIREA RS EEER T
BFEERIEREERINE4914,819,000
BIL(ZZEENF  FEECRILELEER
BB #948,568,000/8 7T ) & | X Al 3@

Bz IRt E -

weighted average number ordinary shares stated as above.

HE_ZTAER - TTENF=ZA=1+—
HIEMEFE - BRAREMBARRIT
2 IR MR ESEAEE 2 TR
(BE)RMNNE AREE  HEkEE
(BR)AMRMEFERTERERE -

As the share options and convertible debentures of the
Company’s subsidiaries outstanding during the two years
ended 31 March 2009 and 2008 were anti-dilutive to the
Group's (loss) earnings per share, diluted (loss) earnings per
share were not adjusted in this respect for both years.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING

14.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

13. EERANA(BEEEMS)

Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Total
BELSEEY BRILEEEY EH
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“ZENFE —2T)\F ZBENE _ZT)\F ZBBAFE _TT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiEx TR FET T TiEx
Short term employment benefits 2 EEEREF
- Basic salaries -EAFe 43,494 67,353 41,627 59,629 85,121 126,982
~ Housing allowance -FEEH 5,326 3232 4,872 5,636 10,198 8,868
Share options granted to directors RTEFEREEZ
and employees it 3,097 397 - - 3,097 397
Pension costs - defined REBHBA
contribution plans — BT E 1,181 1,422 1,434 1,559 2,615 2,981
53,098 72,404 47,933 66,824 101,031 139,228
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 14. EEFE

The remuneration of each director of the Company for the
years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008, disclosed pursuant

to the Group is analysed as follow:

For the year ended 31 March 2009 HBZ=—BEhF
ZA=t-HLEE

Executive directors YITES

Mr. Chan Heng Fai S =PEs

Mr. Chan Tong Wan BRERE

Mr. Chan Tung Moe BRaR L

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow BREBTL

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann BRREZ T

Non-executive director FHTES

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BElia % &

Independent non-executive directors B FEH{TEE

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter Tk

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao PauloZtA4E

Ms. Chian Yat Ping, Ivy H—¥rt

BE-2ENFR-_ZE/\F=A=+—
AIEFE  REAKEMREZARRZ

EEHMOTHT ¢
Salaries, Contribution
allowances  to defined
and benefits contribution
Fees in kind* plans Total
e 28 HERHR
e  REWER  EzHXR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TAL AL BT
- 2,770 23 2,793
- 3,350 97 3,447
- 1,221 15 1,236
- 6,847 127 6,974
- 864 65 929
118 - - 118
118 - - 118
88 - - 88
267 - - 267
591 14,188 262 14,450
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B
7N
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 14. EEFHFMN (&)

KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

86

Salaries, Contribution

allowances  to defined
and benefits contribution
Fees in kind* plans Total
Fe 28 HERHR
e  REWERr  EzHXR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET TET TAT
For the year ended 31 March 2008 HEZZT)N\&F
—AZ+-BLEFE
Executive directors PIES
Mr. Chan Heng Fai BRIEEEE - 21,103 112 21,215
Mr. Chan Tong Wan BREELAE - 2,396 98 2,494
Mr. Chan Tung Moe (note a) BRRRLE (W ita) - 1,133 28 1,161
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow BEBRL - 9,529 132 9,661
Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann R E L+ - 896 67 963
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BBl %A 120 - - 120
Independent non-executive directors BV ITES
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter TEREE 120 - - 120
Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulost 4 120 - - 120
Ms. Chian Yat Ping, Ivy BE—Fzt 210 - - 210
570 35,057 437 36,064

* This includes the amount calculated under HKFRS 2 “Share-
based payment transaction” that is attributable to the
directors.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration in respect of the years
ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

During the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

Note:

(@  Mr. Chan Tung Moe was appointed on 3 July 2007.

* REREEEMERE AR ARS
(3% 5 R E 3R -

BE_STZNER_TEENF=A=1—
AIEFERNEEBER T ER L HEARE
KA EMEEMAME o

BE_ZEThhER_TETZNF=A=1+—
HIEFE - REERE ME SR
& EARFEEMBENAMBARERRZF
® - HERBEREE -

Hist -

(@ BREREER-_ZTLFLA=HEZ
(520



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

15. SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year included four (2008: four) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
in note 14. The emoluments payable to the remaining one
(2008: one) individual during the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind*
Contributions to defined contribution plans

The emoluments of the remaining one (2008: one) highest
paid individual fell within the following band:

i < 5 [E]
1,000,001 L&
1,500,00077T

Emolument band
HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000

* This includes the amount calculated under HKFRS 2 “Share-
based payment transaction”.

During the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008, no
emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

16. DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company does not recommend
the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March
2009 (2008: Nil).

o R REDEN
HE R E2 HR

15. BREBAEME

BERBHFHAL

FEEARMEAREHALBENS
—2ENF NR)EE  HBSHER
B U1 AM 2512 IR - FRRH T
Hp—2(CEENE  —%)ALZES
T

2009 2008
—ETAF ZETN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET TAT
1,445 1,290

12 12

1,457 1,302

BT—Z(—EENE —Z)BSHEAL
ZHENFTIIEE

Number of individuals

AE
2009 2008
—ZETAF —EENF
1 1

* BEREFEEMBMELRE25RARD
NHZ 5 12 %E

HE_ZTTAER - TTNF=ZA=1+—
BItFE  AEEMERAERSHTAL
IS EBRIBTEA - IIAAER
R AEEN 2 55E) - BB -

16. RS
AAREEEUTZERBE—TTNE
ZAST-ALFERABEE(ZTEN
FE) .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

At 1 April 2007
Cost

R-_ZELFMA—A
A

Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment
Carrying amounts AREE

Year ended 31 March 2008

HE_TTN\F

ZA=T—HIEEE
Opening carrying amounts HRERE
Additions NE
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 43)  WHHB AR (#1:743)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 44) B E—RHB AR (HiF44)
Disposals HE
Impairment B
Depreciation nE
Exchange realignment 0 3
Closing carrying amounts FIRREE

At 31 March 2008

RZEENF=ZF=1—H

Cost D%

Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment

Carrying amounts RHEE

Year ended 31 March 2009 BZ_ZThE

ZA=+-BLFE

Opening carrying amounts FOREE

Additions NE

Transfer from investment properties S B AW (H519)
(note 19)

Transfer to investment properties BRI EMENE19)

(note 19)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44)
Depreciation
Exchange realignment

EEWJ%’AET(WE}M)

5 %

Closing carrying amounts FREEE

At 31 March 2009 R-ZEEAFE=A=+—H

Cost AR

Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment

Carrying amounts BREE

17. V¥ - BERRE

AEH
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
Land and improve-  and motor
buildings ments vehicles Total
it HE B
nEgF MEHE RERAE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TR TEL
12,595 4110 30,411 47,116
(766) (1,880) (22,073) (24,719)
11,829 2,230 8,338 22,397
11,829 2,230 8,338 22,397
2,629 6,482 5,119 14,230
28,103 4214 1,487 33,804
- - (66) (66)
- (1,377) (464) (1,841)
(1,196) - - (1,196)
(1,124) (1,106) (4,912) (7,142)
5,207 1,223 656 7,086
45,448 11,666 10,158 67,272
49,148 14,621 34,271 98,040
(3,700) (2,955) (24,113) (30,768)
45,448 11,666 10,158 67,272
45,448 11,666 10,158 67,272
- 3,431 2,507 5,938
9,915 - - 9,915
(2,480) - - (2,480)
(124) (5,564) (4,887) (10,575)
(1,139) (2,036) (4,862) (8,037)
(183) (326) 259 (250)
51,437 7171 3,175 61,783
54,463 12,045 25,326 91,834
(3,026) (4,874) (22,151) (30,051)
51,437 7171 3,175 61,783




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

B %R R M

BE_TTAF=A=1t—HILLFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. Y% - MERRE &)

The carrying amount of land and buildings held by the
Group are analysed as follows:—

In Hong Kong, held under REBREZ
medium term leases HERFELY

In Singapore, held under RETINERE 2
long term leases REIMHL

In Japan, freehold =P

As at 31 March 2009, certain of the Group’s land and
buildings with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$51,437,000 (2008: approximately HK$45,448,000) has
been pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings (note
31).

As at 31 March 2008, the carrying amounts of furniture,
fixtures and motor vehicles included an amount of
HK$2,313,000 in respect of assets held under finance leases.

AREHE 2 L RET 2 BEEH TN
T

Land and building
THREF

Company
YN

Group
iy 3

2008 2008
—TI)\F “FINF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tt
10,312 -
2,815 -
32,321 -
45,448 -

N-ZEENF=A=+—0  XEHEE
H{E#%51,437,0008 L ( Z T N\F : 4
45,448,000 70 ) v & T L REFE IR
LRSS AL E 2 RTTER(KIFE3) »

‘r‘l:t“““

RZBEZENF=ZA=+—8 ' R
FAEMERERE —ZERERETHEE
&E2,313,0005 7T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BERRE @)
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(continued)

Company

/N

Furniture,
fixtures and

motor vehicles

& £E
RARE
HK$'000
FTAT
At 1 April 2007 R-ZEET+FMWHA—H
Cost (D% 4,075
Accumulated depreciation BEthE (3,027)
Carrying amounts BREE 1,048
Year ended 31 March 2008 HE_ZTZ N \F=A=1T—HILFE
Opening carrying amounts FHAREE 1,048
Additions RE 1,949
Disposals k= (210)
Depreciation e (685)
Closing carrying amounts FREEE 2,102
At 31 March 2008 R-ZETNF=A=+—H
Cost AN 4,237
Accumulated depreciation ZTE (2,135)
Carrying amounts BRmEE 2,102
Year ended 31 March 2009 BE-_EFAFE=ZA=+—RHLEE
Opening carrying amounts FYREE 2,102
Additions NE 6
Depreciation e (516)
Closing carrying amounts FAKRAEE 1,592
At 31 March 2009 R-ZBEZRF=A=+—H
Cost B#:N 4,243
Accumulated depreciation 2FHiE (2,651)
Carrying amounts REE 1,592



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

18. PREPAID LAND LEASES

Group
The Group's prepaid land leases and their carrying amounts
are analysed as follows:

B %R R M

B

—EEAFSASt—ALLFE

18. E{JHELHES

FEME
REBZENHET NES REKEED
T

2008

ZEENF

HK$'000

FHTT

Medium term leases held in Hong Kong REBRE 2 F LY 20,221
Long term leases held outside Hong Kong ~ RAEEAINEE 2 SHIFHLY 8,478
28,699

Opening carrying amounts FHIREE 20,751
Additions NE 7,935
Amortisation of prepaid land leases TENFAE + st A & B Y (661)
Transfer to investment properties (note 19) BRI EYEE (H1:7119) -
Exchange realignment bE 5 AR 674
Closing carrying amounts FHRIREE 28,699

Prepaid land leases FENHAELmAS

— Non-current portion —IEmENERD 28,031
— Current portion (hote) —RBNEB D (ML) 668
28,699

Note: The current portion of prepaid land lease included in trade
and other receivables, deposits and prepayments (note 28).

As at 31 March 2009, the Group's prepaid land leases of
HK$19,692,000 (2008: HK$20,221,000) have been pledged
to secure the Group's bank borrowings (note 31).

Kt - ENEETHHEE 2 RBBI BT AE
SREMBIWGRIE  Ee RIENHE
(Pff&E28) 1 »

MNZZBZAFE=A=+—8  KEEENF
FAE L £19,692,0008 L (—ZEZN
F 120,221,000 70) E BB LAEE A&
B2 RITEE (MFE31) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $} & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE_ZETENF=A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REWF
All of the Group's property interests held under operating REE A AR ER 58 UBREGE
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes SWASEE TR BER G 2 MEERE A
are measured using the fair value model and are classified ANFEENGE WO ERBREWEAN
and accounted for as investment properties. R o
Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the balance EEEABRPEIZREEZ ST
sheet can be summarised as follows: U

2008
—EENF
HK$'000
FHTT
Fair value ATE
Carrying amounts at the beginning REY 2 BREE
of the year 275,705
Additions INE 27,284
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 42) UG BB P B A A (Hfat42) 9,316
Transfer from prepaid land leases (note 18) R BIENHE +HHE
(Hizt18) -
Transfer from assets revaluation reserve e B EE LR -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EE S Y% -« BE MR
(note 17) (Htat17) -
Transfer to property, plant and equipment — EE Y% « BE MR
(note 17) (Htat17) -
Disposals HeE (125,661)
Net (loss) gain from fair value adjustments A T(EFE > (F18) U5 %58 69,690
Exchange realignment M 5, R 12,156
Carrying amounts at the end of the year RELL 2 BREE 268,490
The Group's interests in investment properties are held REBRBETIBEOFHFE 2IREWE
under the following lease terms: -
2008
T NF
HK$’000
FHET
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong BAEZHEELD 36,052
Long-term leases outside Hong Kong BAEIN RETER 145,098
Freehold outside Hong Kong EBLAINZ K A R 87,340
268,490
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value DNFE
Carrying amounts at the beginning REY) 2 ERAE
of the year

Net (loss) gain from fair value adjustments
Carrying amounts at the end of the year

The Company’s interests in investment properties are held
under the following lease term:

Medium-term leases in Hong Kong

The investment properties in Hong Kong, Canada, United
State and Singapore of the Group and the Company
were revalued as at 31 March 2009 by Messrs. Malcolm
& Associates Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuer who hold recognised and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of the investment property being valued, on an
open market basis based on recent market transactions.

Investment properties situated in Japan were reassessed
as at 31 March 2009 by Hokkaido Kantei Co. Ltd., an
independent professional valuers who hold recognized and
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the location and category of the investment property
being valued, on an open market basis based on recent
market transactions.

Rental income earned by the Group from its investment
properties, which are leased out under operating leases,
amounted to HK$7,259,000 (2008: HK$10,809,000).

No income or direct operating expenses were recognised
during the year for investment property that was unlet
during the year (2008: Nil).

As at 31 March 2009, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with carrying amount of HK$159,480,000 (2008:
HK$193,618,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s
bank borrowings (note 31).

ATEBE 2T (HE) s

RERZIRHEE

REBZTFHEO

AL
19. REWMFE (&)
Company
ZAYNE|
2009 2008
—EBhF —ETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
1,200 900
(150) 300
1,050 1,200

RRRMRIE FIEOFRFA ZREME

s
2009 2008

—ssnE T Nf

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

1,050 1,200
AEEREADNES - NEA - 2

RFMP 2 REMER_ZEZNF=A
=+ —HHBEBILEEHETMalcolm &
Associates Limited?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ@@%
MHAMSER SEITEMN - ZEETHER
FAARBEERER  WERTHNES
R EMERTE N BB E  HEL

MNRBEBAZERENER-_TTNF=A
=+ — B H¥8 3Z & % {4 {8 17 Hokkaido
Kantei Co. Ltd. 4% /A 7 T 45 B E W AR &30
MR ZETER - ZAETHAE
FARBEREMRER U BNOMAREE
HRGEEVMFEAEW R RABRYE ZGER

NEBREREYEMBRI AT RAL
7,259,000/ 70 (ZZZ A4 : 10,809,000
BIr) c MABIREYEZEEENA
tlj o

FABER 2D SRE L Z R EMRER

FARARBEELERS(ZETNF
/) o

R-EZAF=RA=+—§H " ZISEI%JF
BRE 1B A159,480,000/8 T ( —EE )\ £F :

193,618,000/ 70) 2 I E WD FHMA

AR B 2 RITIEE (MFE31) - 93
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $§ & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2009

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE

FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

Company

Investments at cost
Unlisted shares
Less: provision for impairment

Amounts due from subsidiaries within
one year
Interest bearing at 10% per annum
Non-interest bearing

Less: provision for impairment

Amounts due to subsidiaries within one year

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2009 are

as follows:
Place/country of
incorporation/
operation and

Name kind of legal entity
ERAY EELE

£ BRREEERER

China Credit Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore, limited
liability company

IR BRAA)

BE_TFNFZA=+—ALEE

20 RMIB AR 2R HEBATX
(R MB A TRIE)

¥ NN
2008
—FENF
HK$'000
FHBT
W& AR

IE LT D 81,212
B ORERE (76,565)
4,647

—ERWEBRTIRK
WEFMZI10E B 351,329
®B 324,520
675,849
W R ERE (308,500)
367,349
—FRNERWBARFIE 139,077

R-ZZBETZNEF=ZA=+—HBZFEWER

AIERAT
Particulars of
issued share capital/ Proportion of
registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BRITRE/
EMERER Gl 4 5-0d7] IEXH
Group’s  Heldby  Held by
effective the sub-
interest Company sidiaries
158  ARDE  BNELE
BnER 2 kA
% % %
$$13,417.282 100 100 - Investment holding
13,417,282 M T REER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE

FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

e

China Xpress Pte. Ltd

eBanker USA. Com. Inc.

Global Growth Management, Inc.

Heng Fung Capital Company Limited
ERREABRAA

Heng Fung Capital (Canada) Inc.

Heng Fung Underwriter Limited

Ichi Ni San Enterprises Company

Limited

Japan Xpress Hospitality Limited

Place/country of
incorporation/
operation and
kind of legal entity

AL EREE

GEY oI

Singapore, limited
liability company

g - BRA

United States of America,
limited liability company

INEERE FRAF

Canada, limited
liability company

nex - BRAH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

& BRAR

Canada, limited
liability company

nex - BRAH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&5 BRAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

& BRAR

Japan, limited liability
company

AR BRAAE

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
BRIRE/
EMEAER

$$5,670,002
5,670,0023T % T

Common stock
US§115,487

One Series A
preferred stock
LR 1154875
—RAZIBER

US$1,000
1,000%7

HK$2
2R

%1
Evv

HK$2
BT

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

JPY495,000,000
495,000,000

Proportion of
ownership interest

Gl 4 3:0d7)
Group’s  Heldby  Held by
effective the sub-
interest Company sidiaries
5@ @A0E  BNELT
BREL L B
% % %
9.8 - 9.8
81.8 - 82
100 - 100
100 100 -
100 100 -
100 100 -
100 100 -
100 - 100

BoRzER HWEARAR
(B RHEDRFE) (&)

Principal activities

IREH

Investment holding

RERR

Financial investment
ERRE

Property investment

MERE

Securities investment

EHRE

Property investment

mERE

Securities trading

#nEE

Property holding
NERE

Investment holding

RERR
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& BRAR

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE  20. A B AR 2w, HE QTR
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) R (XM B D BRIE) ()
Place/country of
incorporation/ Particulars of
operation and issued share capital/ Proportion of
Name kind of legal entity registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
BalAYe-+3. Ve BRITRE/
£ BXREEERER EMEAER it s TEXH
Group’s  Heldby  Held by
effective the sub-
interest Company sidiaries
158 AR0R  AWEAR
ERELR 2 K&
% % %
Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya Japan, limited liability JPY30,000,000 100 - 100 Hotel holding
company 30,000,000 Company
BE - BRAA BERRAR
Keng Fong Foreign Investment United States of America, US$250,000 100 - 100 Property investment
Co. Ld limited liability company 250,000%7T and development
ENEATRE  BRAR NERERER
Sapporo Holdings Inc. Japan, limited liability JPY3,000,000 100 - 100 Hotel holding
company 3,000,000H company
BE - BRAA BEERAR
Singapore Service Residence Pte Ltd  Singapore, limited $§1,250,000 100 - 100 Property holding
liability company 1,250,000 A13% 7T S
g BRAT
SingXpress Investment Pte Ltd Singapore, limited $$800,000 %38 - 100 Investment holding
liability company 800,0005T 1% T REER
g BRAT
SingXpress International Pte Ltd Singapore, limited 592 100 - 100 Property holding
liability company BT NERE
g BRAT
Suntec 23 Floor Pte Ltd Singapore, limited $$2,600,001 100 - 100 Property holding
liability company 2,600,001 37 IR 7T S
g BRAT
Sure World Capital Limited British Virgin Islands, US$50,000 100 100 - Investment holding
limited liability company 50,0005 T RERER
ERRAEE  ERAF
Wai Kin Investment Company Limited - Hong Kong, limited HK$600,000 100 100 - Investment holding
BREXERNLA liability company 600,000 7T B



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7 MY &F
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE_ZTNAF-A=Z+—HIFE
20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE  20. A B AR 2w, HE QTR
FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) R (HERHEDERE) ()
Place/country of
incorporation/ Particulars of
operation and issued share capital/ Proportion of
Name kind of legal entity registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
EMAY EEE BRITRE/
£ BXREEERER EMEAER Vit L3t TEXH
Group’s  Heldby  Held by
effective the sub-
interest Company sidiaries
158 AR0R  AWEAR
ERELR 2 B
% % %
Xpress Credit Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$1,260,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
liability company 1,260,0007C RERR
&k ARAR
Xpress Finance Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$133,866,230 72 - 72 Financing services
liability company 133,866,230/ 7T SRR

&5 BRAR

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

There were twenty-one of the subsidiaries of the Company,
which were incorporated in Hong Kong, were inactive and
has completed the procedure of deregistration during the
year.

FRIHEERRIBREAREARFE
EESBRAMDFEEZARBMNBR
A BEERA - WAL ERRER
HERRBENTTE

ARBHE —+—BEFBEMLAM
BARRERYS  WERFATKIUHE
MEgiEF o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRG  BRAE
Share of net assets PEEEFE
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEE S
Less: impairment loss W OREEE
Amounts due from associates NS

within one year (—FREH)
Amounts due to associates —FREER

within one year kYN PO
Amounts due to associates —F P LR

over one year NSIE ¢

As at 31 March 2009 and 2008, amounts due from
associates are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

As at 31 March 2009 and 2008, amounts due to associates
are unsecured, interest free and not repayable within one
year and over one year respectively.

B %R R M

BE_TTNF=-A=1T—HLFE

21. RFE DT 2B

Group Company
rEE VNS
2008 2008
—ZTT)NF —TEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
- 5,385
18,962 -
5,498 -
24,460 5,385
- (5,385)
24,460 -
7,775 1,924
1,570 587

N

R-BZNFR_FENF=ZA=+—
B BERRIRRIVERR - 28 KAR
BAEE -
RZBZNFR_FENF=ZA=1+—
B BEREERRFIRTERR 28 &
DRIBER—FAR—FIALERE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009 HIFFE
21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. REFE DT 2R (#)
Particulars of the principal associates at 31 March 2009 are as RIBTZNF=ZA=+—"BZ2ETEHHEN
follows: AERAT ¢
Particulars of Country of  Percentage of
Name issued shares held incorporation interest held
=g FEFERTROZER SERRYER FEEZEI L
SingXpress Ltd. (“SingXpress”) Ordinary share of no par value Singapore 31.9%
BHEZ SRR K
RSI International System Inc. (“RSI") Ordinary share of no par value Canada 29.8%
EEE B mEx

SingXpress is listed in Singapore, the market value of the
listed shares held by the Group as at 31 March 2009 is
approximately HK$6,635,000 (2008: HK$14,298,000).

RSl is listed in Canada, the market value of the listed shares
held by the Group as at 31 March 2009 is approximately
HK$846,000 (2008: HK$6,610,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2008, SingXpress offer
a rights issue to its shareholders on a pro-rata basis at a
price of $$0.05 per rights share on the basis of one rights
share for every one SingXpress shares. The Group's interest
in SingXpress was remained unchanged upon completion
of the rights issue. During the year ended 31 March 2008,
the Group disposed of its 14.71% interest in SingXpress. A
profit on partial disposal of the associate of HK$1,217,000
was recognized in the consolidated income statement during
the year ended 31 March 2008. During the year ended
31 March 2009, the Group increased its equity interest in
SingXpress from approximately 30.9% to approximately
31.9%.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group increased
its equity interest in RSI from approximately 19% to
approximately 30% and RSI was reclassified from available-
for-sale financial assets to interests in associates, and the
respective fair value gain of HK$2,794,000 included in the
investment revaluation reserve was reversed during the
year ended 31 March 2008. On acquisition of an additional
interests in RSI, goodwill of approximately HK$5,498,000
was recognized at the date of acquisition.

SingXpress Ty T I3 £ - ANEEFTHF
HEMBROHR_ZEZANF=A=+—B8
2 T{E%) 56,635,000 T( —2ZF )\ 4F ¢
14,298,000587T ) °

RSIVIRAMEXRLES - AEEMFE L
TROHRZZEZNF=ZA=Z+—"HEZ
MEA A846,000F L (T )\ F :
6,610,000/ 7T) °

REBEE_ZZENGF=HA=1T—HIEFE
A+ SingXpressi& Lk Il 37 LA 5 A% 4 % f% 17
0.05 pN T M H AR SR B E A - HER
58 — B SingXpress i 17 2 — B A% 3%
o REIRSERTE - ZNEE R SingXpress
CHRERTE RNEBEZTTENF=
A=+—HBLEFEAR AEBEEEERN
SingXpress 2 14.71% # %5 - 2815 &%
Bt & N R PR S04 411,217,000 TT IR AL
EZTEN\FZA=F+—HILEFEZELH
AEREERER - REBEEZTTNF=
A=+—HBLEFEA R"EBEEBFERN
SingXpress 2 IR AN #E s - HHAI30.9%EE
#131.9% -

REBEEZZZENF=ZA=1+—HLFE
N AREERRSIZ A A A 19% 15
£4930% ' HHRSIA AT L E S MEER
ENMFEBEARBE AT ZET - BBEFTA
HESHREE A FERZ2,794,000%
TEREE-_ZEZT)\F=A=1+—HI1tF
FEAREL - RIBERSIZBIMEZZ + BRI
88 A TR 2 495,498,000/8 7T °
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

21.

22.

100

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The summarised financial information of the Group’s
associates extracted from their annual reports as at 31
December are as follows:

Assets BE
Liabilities A
Revenues Wz

Loss for the year ended 31 December

ZIER

The associates of the Group listed above, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

SingXpress and RSI have a financial year end of 31
December which is not conterminous with the Group. For
the purpose of applying the equity method of accounting,
the financial statements of SingXpress and RSI for the year
ended 31 December 2008 have been used, and appropriate
adjustments have been made for the effects of significant
transactions between that date and 31 March 2009.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

On 28 August 2006 and 8 January 2007, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a vendor
to acquire investment properties in Singapore at a cash
consideration of Singapore dollars (“S$") 13,282,000
(equivalent to HK$65,748,000) and $$270,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,389,000) respectively. As at 31 March 2009 and
2008, the Group had paid approximately $$2,770,000,
(2008: $$2,770,000) equivalent to HK$14,095,000 (2008:
HK$15,671,000) as a deposit for this acquisition. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the transaction will
be completed on or before 30 November 2013.

22.

—EEAFSAS+ALERE
. REFE QB 2 RS ()

W AEEBE A RN+ -_A=+—H
ZEFERAEEMRELLT

HE+-_A=1+—HBILFE

2009 2008
—ETAF ZETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TAT
46,700 85,436
23,367 23,970
308,044 294,059
(21,955) (22,772)

FRIBEERRIBREAREARFE
KENENARBERARDFEEZAE
BEtE AT c EFRA - WEIIH RS
RAERHHERIRBRITR

SingXpress MRSIZ R FE B AEE + =
A=+—H " BRIRAEEHE - SingXpress
MRIEMEBHEZE_ZTZENF+A
ST ALFEZMBRRARE=ES
% WERZBE—SEAE=ZA=1—
BHIMMETEAR S 2 EERBEH
# .

REZES

RZIEERXFNAZTNABRERZ-ZZEZEL
F—ANB  XEBEHE-ZEAHFVLE
EREARBF MR ZREDE B
RAB 5 Bl 513,282,000% hnigk T (HE H
65,748,000/% 7T) }% 270,000 in3 7T (48
101,389,000/ 7L) c RZEZENF R
—EENF=ZA=+—H AEEBEEX
1 #92,770,000 1 I L ( Z T )\F
2,770,000 hn# 7T) - #HE 714,095,000
BIL(ZZZT)\F © 15,671,000/ 7C)1EA
WRE - AAREBERA  WERSHE
R-E—ZF+— A=+ HRARTTERK °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

B %R R M

BE_TFNFZA=+—ALEFE

23 M HESRERE

Group TEH
2008
ZEENF
HK$'000
FHTT
Non-current FETRED
Equity securities MR 55
Listed outside Hong Kong, at fair value REBAINET - B AFE 33,423
Unlisted, at cost FEETH - BAANE 64
33,487
Debt securities, at cost (note) BRES  HRANEWE)
Unlisted in Hong Kong REBI LT 1,425
Unlisted outside Hong Kong REBAINE LT 1,378
2,803
Total =t 36,290
Market value of listed equity securities FHARAFESEZTE 33,423

Note: The debt securities represent club membership which is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses as they do
not have a quoted market price in an active market and fair
value cannot be reliably measured.

et EBESEEEEDS LWEDS
WEzEMERE  EATERETSE
HETE - WIEKAR R FHRER R
BE o
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

24. GOODWILL

102

Group

During the year, the main changes in the carrying amounts
of goodwill result from released of goodwill due to the
disposal of subsidiaries. The net carrying amount of goodwill

can be analysed as follows:

At beginning of the year
Gross amount
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Carrying amounts

Net carrying amounts at beginning
of the year

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44)

Exchange realignment

Carrying amounts at 31 March

At 31 March
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated impairment

Carrying amounts

F11
HaE

Rt R E

FRE(E

REY 2 REFE

W EEB B N Bl (K17£43)
HEMB AR (HiE44)

b SR

KR=A=t+—HZzKHE

R=A=+—8
AR (B RR
RatRE

FRE(E

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the
following cash generating units in the annual impairment

test:

Travel related operations (note)
—in Singapore
—in Japan

Hotel operations — in Japan

Carrying amount

IR (A7)

— FT AR
—BR

BB — AA

FRE(E

B %R R M

BE_TTAF=A=1t—HILLFE

24, &

AEH

FR - FEZEEREZEZZHREET
EWBARMBREE - HEZEREEFE
DHAT

2008
ZEENF
HK$'000
FiIT

19,607
(652)

18,955

18,955
9,665

28,620

28,620

28,620

EEERENAT  BEZEREDS DR
EATHRSELEM

2008
—EENF
HK$'000
TAT

6,385
11,663

10,572

28,620




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

24. GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amounts for the cash generating units given
above were determined based on value-in-use calculations,
covering a detailed three-year budget plan, followed by
an extrapolation of expected cash flows at the growth
rates stated below. The growth rates reflect the long-term
average growth rates for the respective business operations:

The key assumptions used for value in use calculations

Growth rates BRR
Discount rates BLIE &

The Group’s management’s key assumptions for the Group
have been determined based on past performance and its
expectations for the market development. The weighted
average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts
included in industry reports. The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the cash generating units above, the Group’s
management is not currently aware of any other probable
changes that would necessitate changes in its key estimates.

Note: Travel related operations was discontinued during the year
ended 31 March 2009. (note 10)

24. BE#®)

LIRS EE B RO S ERE R
EiE - BEAAN=FEE S W
DT RSB RARE R - HRERR
HBEBRETHEER

MERBEFEMAZEIERR

Travel related operations

(note) Hotel business
IRBEARRA SR (MEE) L 1
2009 2008 2009 2008

“EERF —TT)\F “BBAF —TI)\F

- 4.70% 0% 0%
- 11.17% 5% 5%

AEE ETRRRALEEBRBEER
BREHIMSERBEMET - FIAZ
IFEF IR R R R RRE B 2 TR —
B oo FTAZBEIRRTIARMB N IR A
EBoBREZ S ERR -

BEE bR 6 2 A A 2 8 RS AT
ZRREES - AREERERE L TR
BIEMEM TR NNE - HHAEE
BB UENRE -

et IREREEFERBE_TTA

FZA=ZT—HLEFEARARILEE
2 (MEE10) o
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KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

25. LOAN RECEIVABLE
Group

Term loans — secured
Mortgage loans — secured
Installment loans — unsecured

Net carrying amount
Less: provisions

Less: amounts due within one year
included under current assets

Amounts due after one year included
under non-current assets

HItFE
25. EIRER
REE

2009 2008
—EThF —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHT
EHER - FEKIF 6,561 6,561
ZIBE R —HIEE 4,791 4,791
D EIE R — E KR 7,856 3,580
BREFE 19,208 14,932
W B (11,961) (11,798)
7,247 3,134

W HAREEEZ
—FREIERFIE (6,511) (2,233)

FAFERBEEZ
— &R HAZRIE 736 901

104

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group granted
a term loan to a minority shareholder of two subsidiaries
of the Company, namely Japan Xpress Limited and Japan
Xpress Travel Limited. The balance is secured by the equity
interests in these two subsidiaries held by this minority
shareholder, interest-free and repayable within twelve
months. The balance has been fully provided during the year
ended 31 March 2008.

The mortgage loans bear interest at 0.5% over prime
interest rates in Hong Kong (2008: 0.5% over prime
interest rates in Hong Kong) per annum and are repayable
by installments up to year 2011. The loans are secured by
mortgages over properties placed by the borrowers. The
mortgage loans are repayable on demand due to the default
on repayment by the borrowers.

The installment loans bear interest ranging from 17.25% to
39.72% per annum (2008: 11.76% to 20.04% per annum).
The repayment terms of the loans are negotiated on an
individual basis.

REBEEZZZE+F=—A=+—HLFE
W AEERARERENBRE (D
7l & Japan Xpress Limited &2 Japan Xpress
Travel Limited) 2 — & LR R HE H —I8
BEIER - SRR AZ L BUR R R 52
MEARMMEE 2 IRIEEERR - 2R KA
RTZEAANEE - REREZEZZ2TN
FoA=T—RALFEADZHEE -

BRI B R EERIE M0 5 (=
T\ EESEEFEN0SE) HF
e LAR-E——FHAHEE -
ZEER AR AR 2 D RIS (e
1o MRS AERER - MR
BRI -

DHAEFR TR FFENF17.25EF39.72
B(ZZEZENF  FRENF1176ERE
20.04fE )5t E - ZEE R ZERIPIEER
EAEFRT ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

25. LOAN RECEIVABLE (continued)

The maturity profile of the loan receivable at the balance
sheet date, which is analysed by the remaining periods to
their contractual maturity dates, is as follows:

Notes:

(@)  The ageing analysis of loan receivable that are not impaired is

as follows:
On demand ZiBA
Within one year —FR

In more than one year but not
more than two years
Over two years

HBiB R

(b)  The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of loan receivable approximate their fair values.

() The Group has provided fully for all loan receivable that
are determined not recoverable. Based on past experience,
the management believed that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of the remaining balances as there
had not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were considered fully recoverable. The movement in
the provision of loan receivables is as follows:

At 1 April REA—A
Impairment loss and allowances charged

to the consolidated income statement

2

KBl

At 31 March

BB —FEIRME

iR e U BRI Z R ARS8

W=R=+—H

B %R R M

E=FEAF=A=T—BULFE

25. BWER @)

RSN EE R Z B HERIRESKE
HIRZH THREL 2T

HiaF -
(@) HRREZERWERZ RN -
2008
—TTN\F
HK$'000
THET

809
1,424

901

3,134

() ARREFERREWEFIRAERENF
B -

(0 AEEBIIBTAIKELZ EUREFEEUE
HEE - EEEREBERLRAS AR
EEVSEBEEMNERNEEMARZEA
Wem - UL SR AR YE HIRE R - JE
WERBEESHIT

2008
—TENF
HK$'000
THEL
10,439

1,359

11,798
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

106

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:

Cash at bank and in hand RITRehFERS
Short-term bank deposits MERITER

Less: Pledged bank fixed deposits W EMEBEET

shown under non-current ERIRIRTT
assets TE BT
Less: Pledged bank fixed deposits W mBEET
shown under current assets ERIRIRTT
EHER
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEER

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and one
month depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposits at fixed rates ranging from 0.40% to 6.90%
(2008: 0.29% to 7.31%) per annum. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents and the pledged deposits
approximate their fair values.

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group is
HK$17,790,000 (2008: HK$15,975,000) of bank balances
denominated in US dollars (“USD") placed with banks in
US and Singapore, HK$1,213,000 (2008: HK$100,488,000)
of bank balances denominated in Singapore dollars (“S$")
placed with banks in Singapore, HK$2,089,000 (2008:
HK$12,261,000) of bank balances denominated in Japanese
yen ("Yen") placed with banks in Japan and Hong Kong.

B %R R M

BE-TRNFZAZ+—ALEE
26 RERBRECEERENSEAR

(REEN
RE AL SEER DFATEH -

Group Company
iy 3 ZYNE

2008 2008
“TTNE “FENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fis
40,983 3,011
191,262 153,333
232,245 156,344
(3,900) -
(5,030) -
223,315 156,344

TFRRIRIT RS IREET BRITHERR R
BREUFENFS - BIBAEELHEESF R
2UE - BT ERE B —EAE
RS - Do B BEVS HAG H T BT 5%
NTF040EZ6.90E(_ZTZNF : 0.29
EE73E) 2BEFHEFAHE2FE -
ReERRSEEHEEMEEBFERZER
EEFENTERSE -

FFAREBIRTRBESETARITER
17,790,000/ L ( = ZFZ A\ :15,975,000
BT - RET(MZET ) FHEXLAF RN E
B K i R 1T ¢ $R1TAE15 1,213,000
TT(ZZEZN\F : 100,488,000/87T) * %
03 oo ([N 7T ) sHE I 77 By 50
PWIRTT ¢ $R1T745172,089,0008 L (ZFE
J\EE 12,261,000/ 70) - = AE(THE )
FHEWF R B AR EBIRIT o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
=

For the year ended 31 March 2009

26.

217.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26 B&REEZEHEEBMSIEKAFR
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued) TERGE)
The current portion of pledged deposits represented the EERER 2 RBHAOREREEHRES
time deposits placed as securities for the credit card business ROGIERBEHFINZ EBRF o W KR
transactions. The pledged deposits are classified as current BESREERZTZEARNIE A
assets when the liabilities being secured will mature within EIRERDEEREEE -
twelve months after the balance sheet date.
Cash and cash equivalents include the following ReLREFEERBEATHS :
components:
Group Company
TEE b N
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ZZNE —TT)\F ZEBEAFE —TITN\F
‘000 ‘000 '000 ‘000
Fix Fhz Fix Tz
usb =7 1,797 1,184 1,289 47
S$ KT 229 17,142 13 16,705
Yen H 26,680 2,825 394 -
INVENTORIES 27. 7&
Group rEH
The amounts represent food and beverage and other ZHBEBEEBARE 2 BEREMEE
consumables for hotel operation. o ©
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $§ & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE_ZTNAE=ZA=+—HILFEE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 28. EZ R HMEWRE - € KkHE
AND PREPAYMENTS ™ IE

Group Company
iy 3 ZYNE

2008 2008
ZET)N\F —ETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Trade receivables Z S EWE 108,669 -
Less: allowance for doubtful debts — J& : RERE (23,377) -
85,292 -
Deposits paid, prepayments and BfES - BRFER
other receivables E U R TE 94,884 6,313
Prepaid land leases (note 18) aftHAERS
(Hat18) 668 -
180,844 6,313
The directors of the Group considered that the fair values of TEBEEFRRE I RAMBEYHIEZ R
trade and other receivables are not materially different from FTEHHEEFOETESAZRE  ARSES
their carrying amounts because these amounts have short BEREEREREREA -
maturity period on their inception.
The average credit terms granted by the Group to its trade rEEGETHESEP 2 FHAREERN
customers are as follows: ™~
Hotel operations 60 days
BIEE 60H
Financing 30 days
BME 30H

At the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of the trade REER - B REWFIERER S T
receivables is as follows: N
Group
rEE
2008
—TTNF
HK$'000
FHTT
0 - 60 days 0260H 77,988
61— 90 days 61290H 4,122
Over 90 days 90HM 3,182
85,292

108



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group has not recognised a loss for the impairment of
its trade receivables during the year ended 31 March 2009
(2008: HK$1,431,000).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past due
but are not considered impaired as at 31 March 2009 is as
follows:

61%290H
90HR M E

61— 90 days
Over 90 days

Trade receivables that are not yet past due relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group and the Company.
Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group has hold collateral over these balances.

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are
determined not recoverable. Based on past experience,
the management believed that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of the remaining balances as there
had not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were considered fully recoverable.

fEEWFIE - RERTE

AEERBE-_ZTAFE=A=+—81t
FETEEREZEKRFEREEBE(=
TZT )N\ ¢ 1,431,00087T) °

RZZETNF=A=+—H@HERIER
Bz EZREFIBZ REDITT

Group

REE
2009 2008
—EBBNF T NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
44 913
5,435 898
5,479 1,811

HRBHZEZRYGKARBRAEIH
BAEHRGLEZEP BB THERE
ZESRBFIARBN — L EBAREE LA
RAVERFEELBZBIEP © RIEN
TR BEERETTAUFEHREE
BERE AEEEZRAEABZAR
RS 2BKE - AEEYN EREAZ
SRR Am

REEBT R TR E 2 U E R B
HEE - BEEERBBELRAS AR
EELEBELERAEAEHMAERDEA
Yo 3= - B B R AS SR R (E
e

109

« CETHEEH

Annual Report 2009



KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited e

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

28.

29.

110

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

B %R R M

BE_TFNFZA=+—ALEFE

28 ESRHEMEBERRIE - RERE
TRE )

2008
—EENF
HK$'000
THET
At 1 April REA—H 39,548
Bad debts written off IEBR M S (17,602)
Impairment loss and allowances (reversed) B 4R& W eSER (B0 1%
charged to the consolidated income ZOBEEE R
statement 1,431
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 23,377

At each of the balance sheet date, the Group’s trade
receivables were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties. Consequently, specific
impairment provision was recognised. The Group has hold
collateral over these balances.

REEGER - AEEZE S RIGIAY
S E R EEE RRIE o BBl E R YRR 8
HIRMBRE 2 X P AR - Fit - AR
ERBCERER - ARERARAXBRE
Z A ©

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 29 ZAFEFABBRZEHMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Group rEH
2008
ZEENF
HK$’000
FEIT
Listed securities held for trading BIEEE 2 FEH
Equity securities — Hong Kong BAFE S — BB 19,083
Equity securities — outside Hong Kong MRANTE 75 — BB LA 19,428
Market value of listed securities tWmEECHE 38,511
Financial assets designated at fair value WA EFABZRZ
through profit or loss CREE
— Equity link notes —RAEBERE 7,802
Total st 46,313




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 29 BRAFEAEBRZZ2EREE#®)

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Company NN
2009 2008
—EENEF ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed securities held for trading BIEEE 7 L&A
Equity securities — Hong Kong ARG & — BB 13,662 16,990
Market value of listed securities LWES 2 TE 13,662 16,990
Financial assets designated at fair value FBEABZRAFETA
through profit or loss Bms oREE
— Equity link notes — IR 39,191 7,802
Total wEt 52,853 24,792

The listed securities are held for trading purpose. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented
within the section on operating activities as part of changes
in working capital in the cash flow statement.

Equity link notes are designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition as it
contains embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract to be designed as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. Terms of the equity link
notes are as follows:

Principal amount

&

HK$85,875,000
85,875,000/ 7T

The equity link notes are subject to mandatory redemption
clauses at maturity dates depending on the market prices
of a Hong Kong listed securities underlying the equity link
notes. The equity linked notes will be redeemed based on
the original principal amounts. The equity link notes are
interest bearing.

J:ﬁgé 'ET/EE%?JEH?&? o TEZ\\EPTEE‘I»ATE
B2 ERMEERKL LS MINERER
BRAZEBRGHE -

HRRARBRERERANITETA
BEBGTEREIREFBRASHA
HIEERBRATESABGEZEREE
BRI R BNV SR IRIEE R
RNFEFABRGEZEREE - RAHBERE
BEZFEHIMT

Maturity
ZI8E

1 April 2009 - 31 May 2009
—ETAEFMA-BE
—EENFRA=1T—H

PR AR RAE TR H A 2RI E
fiRsR - ARG T R BRIERE &
BLEMESZME - RARBRBEGRIE
REAZTRERD o RARBERBME -
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

At maturity date, if the equity link notes, depending on the
market prices of the underlying equity securities and certain
predetermined price levels, are still outstanding, the equity
link notes will be redeemed by the issuer at the principal
amounts in cash or shares which may be lower than the
principal amounts.

The equity link notes are measured at fair value at the balance
sheet date. Their fair values are determined based on the
valuation provided by the counterparty financial institutions
at the balance sheet date. Accordingly, a fair value change
on equity link notes of HK$3,000 (2008: HK$80,000) is
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 March 2009.

30.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS
Trade payables B S ENTIE
Other payables and H A 73R8
accrued expenses fEEHER

The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods
ranging from 30 to 60 days (2008: 30 to 60 days). Based on
the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade payables
were as follows:

0 - 60 days 0£60H
-90 days 61Z290H
Over 90 days 90H M £

112

B %R R M

BE_TTAF=A=1T—HIFE
20 BAPEFABREZERMEE#)

REBE - HERAHBRE (R T HBER

AREHFTERETEEZBHRKFE)EHAK

1T IRABMIRBR BT ARARER

IR ER - EEZRE DL
SERAEHE -

AR EENEEBIRATENE - &
L7 RNFEDIBER 58 F I IEHIERME
Wé;ﬁaﬁﬂz{afﬁﬁﬁ?zm Ak -+ 3,000
BT (ZFZ )\ : 80,000/ 7T ) 7 A A H
HEEZAFEEGNEE-FE ﬁﬁ—
B=+—BItFEZEEBEEERPER

30. EZ R EMEMNRERESER

Group
ArEE

Company

ARH

2008 2008
ZETN\F ZEEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
ARG TAT
89,031 -
76,974 4,536
166,005 4,536

REE 2 HEHR T AEBREH30E60
H(ZZZ)\F : 30260H) - iREREAR
H - 5 RNRBRREDTOT

Group
rEE

Company
N

2008 2008
ZETN\F —TEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
88,084 -
352 -

595 -

89,031 -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $§ & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE_ZTZNF=-A=-+—HILFE
31. BORROWINGS 31. B8
Group
REE
2008
ZEENF
HK$'000
FET
Non-current IERE
Bank borrowings HRITIEE 38,516
Mortgage loans RIBER 50,264
88,780
Current TE
Bank borrowings R1TEE 30,165
Mortgage loans RIBER 5,357
35,522
Total borrowings BEE 124,302
At 31 March 2009 and 2008, the above borrowings were R_EENEFR_TEENF=ZA=1+—
repayable as follows: H - Lt EEEATFEHER
Group
REE
2008
—EENF
HK$'000
FHETT
On demand or within one year BB —FRN 35,522
More than one year, but not exceeding BB F BT RIBRE
two years 16,709
More than two years, but not exceeding HBIBMEE BB RS
five years 38,560
More than five years BT 33,511
124,302
Less: Amount due within one year shown B RBEET—FA
under current liabilities BIHf 2 508 (35,522)
Amount due after one year shown under ERBHEETN—FE
non-current liabilities BIHf 2 7R 88,780
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KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

31. BORROWINGS (continued)

As at the balance sheet date, the Group’s borrowings are
secured by certain of the Group’s assets (note 35).

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the borrowings are as follows:

Group

Bank borrowings
RITIEE

Mortgage loans

BBER

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$ BT
CAD pilikd
S$ ot
Yen H

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their
fair value.

114

B %R R M

BE_TTAF=A=1t—HILLFE

31. 18 &#®)

REEE  AKEZEETIAREEET
BEFEM(MFE35) -

EEZERANEBE(THERETHZ
)T

REH
2008
ZEENE
Fixed Floating
Rate Rate
EE FE

1% t0 5.50% 1.75%+SIBOR
1EZ25.50F (1 week)
1.75[B+3 0%

RITREIZE

FE(—EH)

4.13% t0 6.51% Prime rates in
4.13EZ6.51E Singapore
+0.5%/0.75%

or HIBOR

(1 month) + 1%

B EERE

0.5 /0.75E

A EBRITAE

KE(—EA) M E

EEZREBEN TIIEEREN

Group
REE

2008
—EENF
HK$'000
FBT

21,964

8,480
29,752
64,106

124,302

fEE 2 REEEE N THERS



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

32. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

Group

The analysis of the obligations under finance leases is as

follows:

Total minimum lease payments SIEMEEFRRRE

Due within one year —FNEH

In the second year B

Future finance charges on MEREREIBRAY
finance leases

Present value of finance lease MEMHEETRE

liabilities

B RBEET—FA
Bz 8

Less: portion due within one year
shown under current liabilities

Non-current portion included under ~ FI AJEREI & &~
non-current liabilities ERENE D

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group
entered into finance leasing arrangements for certain of
its office equipment and motor vehicles. These leases are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Japanese Yen and
Singapore dollars. The average lease term is 3 years and its
average effective interest rate was 2.8% per annum. Interest
rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered
into for contingent rental payments. The leases do not have
options to renew.

B %R R M

BE_TFNFZA=+—ALEFE

32. BNREEERE

FEME
BMEME T ZAEZDOMIT

Present value

Minimum lease of minimum
payments lease payments
REEERE BEEERERE
2008 2008
—TENF —TENFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
649 562
1,418 1,326
2,067 1,888
(179) -
1,888 1,888
(562)
1,326

REZE_ZZENF=ZA=+—HIFE
A REBREETHAEREMITER]
URERERE - ZFHONET - B
KR TR B AL o SFIHTROHIR3F
MPHERFENXR28E - BRAMET)
REMBRERE - MERNEREEEE
HH - BWEET I RAB SN RLHE - 18
EWHBBEH ZIRIFWE -
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KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

33. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

116

Group

The convertible debentures were issued at discount by
a subsidiary of the Company, eBanker USA.com Inc.
on 26 May 1998, bearing interest at a rate of 10% per
annum, which is payable half-yearly on each 1 February
and 1 August, with a nominal value of US$6,690,000
(HK$52,091,000) and was matured on 1 August 2008.
These debentures are convertible into shares of common
stock of the subsidiary at a conversion price of US$5 per
ordinary share of the subsidiary. During the year ended 31
March 2009, the debentures have been matured and fully
redeemed.

The convertible debentures recognised in the balance sheet
are calculated as follows:

33. AR ES

Fair value of convertible debentures REY R ES
at beginning of the year ZRFE

Equity component (note)

BEHMD

Liability component

Repurchase of convertible debentures
by the Group

Interest expense (note 7)

Interest paid ERFE
Redemption fEQ
Current liability component at 31 March R=A=

BESH
Note:

In accordance with HKAS 32, convertible debentures are required
to split between liability and equity components, on a retrospective
basis.

As the interest rate of 10% per annum of the convertible
debentures approximated the market interest rate at inception
of the convertible debentures for a similar financial instrument
without the conversion option, no equity component of convertible
debentures was recognised accordingly.

Interest expense on the convertible debentures is calculated using
the effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate
of 14% to the liability component.

ez Eb iy (Hat)

MBS (H1aE7)

AEH

A 8 I8 (& 5 B AN A 7] B B A &) eBanker
USA.com Inc. A— A ANFRA=-+75H
RHTERTT HEBXRA10E - §EFERN
“A—HENA—BRE—X ZEEEE
6,690,000 7T (52,091,000/87T) * 2
RZZEZNFNA—BEE - EFAIER%
BEAR SR BERSET2EBRESER
BZMBAR TR - REEZZTN
F=ZA=+—HLFER BFCIHT
EEER -

REEBBRERZ AHRRES T E
T

AEBEBE AR ES

2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
45,358 50,234
45,358 50,234
= (6,149)

1,508 7,101
(2,257) (5,828)
(44,609) -
= 45,358

Wit -

RBERR G ERIE2 - IMRESFARE
PEEMI D HABELERED -

H 7 AR AR (B 25 2 S M) 2R 1 0 [ B2 — IR 3F AT 40
Bk i 2 ALl e R T ANAT I Al AE S50
ZTISMERIEE - MO BRI B 2

A -

AR ESZ MBS It A E R R EERF
TERANA% 2 BIRFEGTE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

34. DEFERRED TAXATION

Group
The movements on the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised by the Group are as follows:

At 1 April 2007 RZZZLFMA—H
Exchange realignment I 5 %

Charged to consolidated income NafmaWEik(E9)
statement (note 9)

At 31 March 2008 RZZZENF=ZA=+—H
Exchange realignment BEE 3, S 2R

Credited to consolidated income ST AGAWEER(ATEY)
statement (note 9)

At 31 March 2009 R-ZEZEAE=ZA=1+—H

At the balance sheet date, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses of HK$239,626,000 (2008: HK$154,580,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit stream.
The whole amount of estimated unused tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

HIEFE
34. IEELEHIE
rEH
ATHASEERRAZ FEREREGEL
Fair value Other
gain on Revaluation taxable
investment of temporary
properties  properties differences Total
REMEZ HAtfERH
AVERE W EfYx  ERER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET FET
19,958 1,705 496 22,159
966 - - 966
1,364 - - 1,364
22,288 1,705 496 24,489
(1,595) - - (1,595)
(1,939) - - (1,939)
18,754 1,705 496 20,955
REER  AEBEBMBFARASAKEA

/€518 239,626,000 L ( Z = T \ F
154,580,000/ 7T ) ° A REES JE B &%
FSOIR - # 8 ph A 1B B B M SRR A R 1E
BE o hErRBAMIEBEZHSE &

PR ERAEE -
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &

For the year ended 31 March 2009 Y

34. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 34.
Company

The movements on the deferred tax liabilities recognised by
the Company are as follows:

7 B &
—ERAL=A=t-ALERE
SEFEBLE (1)

A AT

ADF R EER B E S B0
T~

Fair value

gain on

investment
properties Total

REYEZ
DNRERE st
HK$'000 HK$’'000
THET TAT
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZTLFMA—H 196 196
Charged to consolidated income statement {1 B4 & W 53 53
At 31 March 2008 RZEZENF=A=+—H 249 249
Credited to consolidated income statement 5t AZRA WS ER (25) (25)
At 31 March 2009 R-BEhRFE=A=+—H 224 224
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 7 Bt &
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=-A=1T—HIFE
35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. EEEH

Group TEH

As at 31 March 2009, the Group pledged bank balances
of HK$3,973,000 (2008: HK$3,900,000) as a security for
banking facilities granted to a subsidiary and as securities
for credit card business transactions with MasterCard
Worldwide (note 26).

As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s banking facilities of
HK$74,060,000 (2008: 124,302,000) (note 31) are secured
by:

— its land and buildings and prepaid land leases (notes 17
and 18) with carrying value of HK$71,129,000 (2008:
HK$65,669,000);

— its investment properties (note 19) with carrying value
of HK$159,480,000 (2008: HK$193,618,000);

Apart from the above, as at 31 March 2008, the Group’s
bank facilities are also secured by:

— its bank balances (note 26) with carrying value of
HK$5,030,000;

- assignment of rent of an investment property;

—  afloating charge over the asset of a subsidiary;

—  its securities with carrying value of HK$3,713,000;

—  its accounts receivables amounting HK59,937,000.

R-ZETZAFE=ZA=+—H A&EH
IR 1T 4515F3,973,0008 L ( ZEZEN
£ : 3,900,000/ 70) © LAEBE TH B
NAlZRITELE  RAEAE MasterCard
Worldwide 7 1 A RE %X SR (M 3
26) °

RZZEZAE=A=+—08 X&£ER

77 Rh & 74,060,000 T ( ZEZT N\ F -

124,302,000/ 7T ) (K33¥31) LA 775 4K

o

— BRmEEA71,1290008 (==
J\%F : 65,669,000/ 7T ) 2 £ i N 12
FLREMBEELHBES (HiE17 K%
18) s

— BRMEEA159,480,000/8 L (—EF
J\EE 193,618,000/ 7T ) 2 & W
(FfFsE19)

B EESN  RZTEENF=A=+—

B ANEEZRITBENRUATY S AIE

o

—  BRE{E 45,030,000/ T 2 SR1TETF
(PffisE26)

— HEREE-FMREWE
— WBRAREEZIZENEMR ;
—  BREEA3,713,0008 702 5

—  /B8159,937,000/8 7T 2 JEUFNIE -
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KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009 HIFFE
36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. BA
Number of
Par value ordinary
per share shares Amount
BREE LEREE £ ¢
HK$ HK$'000
BT TET
Authorised: AR -
At 31 March 2008 and 2009 RZZTN\ER
“ETNF=R=1—H 0.01  1,000,000,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid: E%ﬁ&ﬁ’%ﬁlﬂﬂxzﬁ
At 1 April 2007 R-ZZ+FNA—H 0.01 1,754,788,921 17,548
Exercise of 2009 Warrants TE_TTNFRRIEE
subscription rights (note a) R (HH3E) 0.01 54,440,545 544
Exercise of share options TR 0.01 9,860,000 99
At 31 March 2008 and 1 April 2008 ’EA_7 J\i A=+—H
k=ZZ\FMA—H 0.01 1,819,089,466 18,191
Exercise of 2009 Warrants ﬂi_ L NFREE
subscription rights (note a) R 2) 0.01 33,876 -
Exercise of share options I EERRE 0.01 18,000,000 180
At 31 March 2009 R-BENF=A=1—-H 0.01 1,837,123,342 18,371

120

(@) 2009 Warrants

@ ZFEAFZREE

Pursuant to a written resolution of the board of
directors on 16 August 2004, the Company approved a
bonus issue of new warrants (“2009 Warrants”) to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appeared
on the register of members on 5 November 2004 on
the basis of one 2009 Warrant for every ten shares held
by such shareholders. Pursuant to which 162,593,106
units of 2009 Warrants were issued to the shareholders
of the Company at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.09 per share as a result of the bonus issue of
new warrants. The 2009 Warrants will expire on 30
September 2009.

During the year, registered holders of 2009 Warrants
exercised their rights to subscribe for 33,876 (2008:
54,440,545) ordinary shares of the Company at
HK$0.09 per share.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
outstanding 102,419,915 (2008: 102,453,791) 2009
Warrants exercisable on or before 30 September 2009.
Exercise in full of such warrants would result in the
issue of 102,419,915 (2008: 102,453,791) additional
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

$ETJ*“E’\_? THFENA+ARBAZESR

EERFER - ARFHLERN —F
%@i—% Hﬂﬁ%ﬁlJﬂxﬁ%ﬂ%Z$
RAEIRREFETHRBEE( —FFTN
FREREE ) EESZERREH

BTEERNDAEEZE—H _FTAFR
PIERE © UL - BEITHTREAIERE Lfﬁ

ZREK0.098 T2 I REERAR

Tﬂxi?‘fm& 593 1060 —FZ A,

i*ﬂﬂxf“‘“ o ZETNFRRIEE
RIEZNFANA=THERIH -

FR - —EENFRBEEE ZER
A ATERE 2R - % 5/%0.09
BILRBARNRE3,876/(—ZEZ )N\
£ 1 54,440,5450%) @A o

REHER - ARFHE102,419,915(
ZEE)\F : 102,453,791 ) A A

“EENFNA=THRZRITEZ
MARITE T NFRRAEE o BE
ITE 2 FRRAEFE B AN T EEI
17102,419915(ZEFNF ¢
102,453,791 %) &R EE0.01/8 T 2
LB o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B
7N
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

36. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 36. BRA(#)
(b) 2006 Warrants (b) Z—EENFZREF

On 7 August 2006, the Company issued 172,000,000
unlisted warrants at the issue price of HK$0.03 per
warrant to Mr. Chan Heng Fai, an executive director
of the Company. Each warrant carries the right to
subscribe for one new share of the Company at initial
exercise price of HK$0.17 per new share, subject to
adjustment for, among other things, subdivision or
consolidation of shares, right issues, extraordinary
stock or cash distribution, and other dilutive events,
at any time during a period of 5 years commencing
from the date of issue of the warrants. Consideration
of HK$5.16 million was received in respect of warrants
issued during the year ended 31 March 2007. During
the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2009, none of the
warrants have been exercised.

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a) Company

On 9 May 2003, a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme"”) was adopted by the Company. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives and rewards to eligible persons who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for 10
years from that date, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended. Eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme
include any employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries (including executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants, agents,
advisers, shareholders, customers, partners or business
associates who, in the sole discretion of the board of
directors of the Company, have contributed to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted is such number of shares which, when
aggregated with shares subject to any other share
option scheme(s), must not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible person in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to the shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

RZZEERFEFNALH AAF
BN RBEE.0IBITLZHITE
MARRIENITE BREB A EETT
172,000,0001 3F =M RREAERE ©
1D RAR IR I T T B SRR R 31T
BT AFHA - BERIRTSTERE
BRF0.17B (A A (KPR EE)
R F4EE B - AR - 4RI X
Wk KEAEEEEmAE)R
BAQRR—BFR REZ-_ZT+
FZA=Z+—HIEFE  RETR
R #E 35 B W (5,160,000 78 © HA
BHE—_ZSNFR-_ZEZTNF=H
=+—HIEFE  ERREEET
fiF o

37. BIRETE
(a) FZRa

R-ZZFZ=FRANA - RRFEA
AR B ([ FERHERT &) - BBAX
R EREARE RS IR SLIE 353
BAERZ A BB AL T 588 & 82
B - FRIFREEHNMER] - BRI
A EHHZAE - EAMI0F -
R EIFTIE A ERALBREAR
REFEERAREARA R HE
TR ERRAMERMZ A RRISE
ERMB AR ZERES - TTHAR
SR B (BREAR R SEAMMH
BRALZAITRIFATES) RIEM
g « AR - 2 BRI
R -BEF  ABAREBEBHE -

IRIRE AT 8 - AR 2 RE AR
W7 BRNEE - B E R AR
FES R RN - RENGER
KRB NREEITRA10% o AE
Al 121 7 HA I AR 48 i i 4 T 1) B
BT SEERALEHITZRGE
B R - UARRGHEAERED 21T
D1% AR - ERE—FEHBEZ
PREE - B R BRI R A AR SR R & #it
& FAIELT o
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KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

122

(a) Company (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period, are subject to the shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determined by the directors, and commences on a
specified date and ends on a date which is not later
than 10 years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme,
whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors of the Company, but may not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of
the grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of
the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by
the Company in the share premium account. Options
which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date
are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

37. BREST B (@)

(a)

AKRA (&)

MARRES - TBITRAE - =2
AR SR Sl Al 1 5 2 B B8 A 3 B AR
W HERBARRBYIENTES
ZESHOE o AN - TEEE121E B
HARG © WA A R = B AR R 505
SMIERITEERIMFESF2HEAL
BHAABB ARG IR/ %
FTR%1D0.1% 2 BE AR 4 R 3R A A B A%
DR B ERATFEAERR
5,000,0007 7T + RIZEFFR% R A IR R
At ER - FAET

RERLBREATNEZ AHRE
B ARAEREAR XN EERE
BHUBT - BREBRE Z1TERHS
HEFET @ HETHEHEENER
REBIE R MR 10F HBRE
ArEERBE B ZRE R -

BREZITEENHARBESRE
EEAFERATRSE ()X
RABEMHREERHAM(BARR
2 B R X g B mER AT
B ()ARARMNERREER A
HIRT A AR 5 BN g A REXR
P g W m (B ¢ R A2 = D
EfE

KRB EEITER - NS HHL
TIT 2B A EEFIER MR
A B HRDEE ZRITEER
FEAB R ERR o 1T B HIAT R
AL B S B MR TT IR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Company (continued)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share option in issue under the Share Option Scheme

37. BRAESTE(®)
(a) AL al(#&)

TREBEARRFAREEBETE
PRE&TT 2 AN R RIRB AR RIS -

during the year:

31 March 2009 Number of share options
“EENFZR=1-H FRERE
Outstanding Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding
Share option at1 during during during at31
type  April 2008 the year the year the year  March 2009
RZBBNE RZBENE
Name or category mA-A =B=1+-H
of participant SEANTHERRER BREER  HAGE  FARE  FAEE  FATE  HAOE
(note)
(Hit)
Directors EZ
Mr. Chan Heng Fai REETE 2004(@ 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
2004(b) 147,000,000 - - - 147,000,000
2006(a) 120,000,000 - - - 120,000,000
2009(a) - 18,000,000 - (18,000,000) -
Mr. Chan Tong Wan ROELE 2004(b) 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
2006(@ 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
2009(b) - 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow REfat 2004(@ 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
2004(b)  35,000,000* - - - 35,000,000
2009(b) - 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann ~ FE &+ 2004() 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Mr. Chan Tung Moe RER AL 2004(b) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
2006(@ 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BEstE 2004(0) 4,500,000 - - - 4500,000
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter ToREE 2004(b) 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulost & 2005 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Ms. Chian Yat Ping, Ivy e e 2006(b) 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Sub-total 1t 378,500,000 54,000,000 - (18,000,000) 414,500,000
Employees and others EERHM
In aggregate &t 2004(b) 13,840,000 - (1,840,000) - 12,000,000
2006(@  11,000,000¢ - (6,000,000 - 5,000,000
2007 7,500,000%* - (6,000,000) - 1,500,000
Sub-total 15t
32,340,000 - (13,840,000) - 18,500,000
Total 2y
410,840,000 54,000,000  (13,840,000) (18,000,000) 433,000,000
Weighted average exercise ~ EEREME
prices of share options FHTEE
(HKS) (#7) 0.1620 0.0692 0.0680 02151 0.1527
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

124

37. BREST B (@)

(a) Company (continued) (@) ALa(E)
31 March 2008 Number of share options
“EZN\F=A=t-R BREZA
Outstanding Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding
Share option at1 during during during at31
type  April 2007 the year the year theyear  March 2008
R-2BtF R=ZENF
Name or category mA-H =ZB=t+-H
of participant SENLEELER BRESN  HATE FARE FrdE  ERTE HAGR
(note)
(Hit)
Directors EZ
Mr. Chan Heng Fai REBEE 2004(a) 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
2004(b)  147,000,000* - - - 147,000,000*
2006(@) 120,000,000 - - - 120,000,000
Mr. Chan Tong Wan RAELE 2004() 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
2006() 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow REBRL 2004@ 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
2004(b)  35,000,000* - - - 35,000,000
Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann -~ B E& T 2004(b) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Mr. Chan Tung Moe RARTE 2004(b) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
2006(a) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BEBLE 2004(b) 8,000,000 - - (3,500,000) 4,500,000
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter IHREE 2004(b) 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulo%t 2005 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Ms. Chian Yat Ping, Iy BTt 2006 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Sub-total it 382,000,000 - - (3,500,000) 378,500,000
Employees and others EERHM
In aggregate @5t 2004(b) 26,200,000 - (6,000,000) (6,360,000) 13,840,000
2006() 11,000,000 - - - 11,000,000
2007 - 9,000,000 (1,500,000) - 7,500,000%*
Sub-total et 37,200,000 9,000,000  (7,500,000)  (6,360,000) 32,340,000
Total &y 419,200,000 9,000,000  (7,500,000)  (9,860,000) 410,840,000
Weighted average exercise ~ BREMIE
prices of share options PHTEE
(HKS) 0.1597 0.2900 0.1873 0.1616 0.1620
Note: The weighted average share price at the date of MiaE - FRRITIR AR B B 2 R

exercise of share options during the year is HK$0.0680
(2008: HK$0.3877).

10,000,000 share options were outstanding as at
1 April 2007 granted to Mr. Chan Tung Moe (“Mr.
Chan") was reclassified from category “Employees and
others” as Mr. Chan is an executive director appointed
during the year ended 31 March 2008.

I H% B 50.06808 T ( —BE )\
% :0.3877%7T) °

R_ZELFMA—BETRS
B4 (TBR%4 1) 210,000,000
MERITEERESENDER
[MEE REA ]8R] - b Th R E
SHEPREREZE_ZTNE=A
T+ BIEFEREZT AT
FHo



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Company (continued)

Details of the share options are as follows:

HILFE
37. BRAESTE(®)
(a) AL al(#&)
Bl ZFRNT

Share option type  Date of grant Exercisable period
BREER ZHEH AFTEH
2004(a) 1 November 2004 1 November 2004 to 8 May 2013
—EEWF+—H—H “EEMF+—A—BEZT—=FHANA
2004(b) * 15 November 2004 20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013
—ETWE+—AThHA “EENF+—A-+HAE-_E—=FRANA
2004(b) *# 15 November 2004 20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013
—ETWFE+—AThHA “EENF+—A-THRE-_E—=FRANA
2005 27 May 2005 29 May 2005 to 8 May 2013
“ETRFAA-+tA “ELERFRAHNRES—=FHANA
2006(a) 22 May 2006 22 May 2006 to 8 May 2013
“ELERFRAZ+ZH “EEANFRAF-AE-E-—=FRANA
2006(b) 21 December 2006 30 January 2007 to 8 May 2013
ZRERETAZTB ZERFE-A=+HHEZZ-=F1ANAR
2007 ** 18 April 2007 18 April 2007 to 8 May 2013
ZETHFMAT\H “EREFNA+N\BES—=FHANA
2009(a) 13 February 2009 13 February 2009 to 8 May 2013
“ETNF-_A+=H “EENEF-_A+=ZHE-Z-=FHANR
2009(b) 18 February 2009 18 April 2007 to 8 May 2013
“EENF-_A+\H “EREFNA+N\BES—=FHANA
* The exercise of these options was subject to the *

condition that the audited revenue of the Group on any
financial year during the life of the Share Option Scheme
was not less that HK$1 billion, which is calculated based
on the accounting policies and presentation adopted
by the Group at the date of grant of option and the
preparation of the audited financial statements for the

year ended 31 March 2005.

**  The exercise of these options was subject to the *x
condition that the audited profit before tax of the
certain subsidiaries / associates of the Group for the
financial year ended not less than certain prescribed
amounts. When it meets the requirement, the share
option will be exercised in tranches of 20% per annum

for each achieve year.

= o
>t

# The exercise of these options was according to the #
following schedule: fi&
a. 20% of the option shares be exercisable at the a.
date of acceptance; and T &
b.  the balance will be exercisable in equal yearly b.

installments over 4 years with the first installment

commencing 1 January 2006.

Exercise price

1@

HK$0.16
0.16/87T
HK$0.1616
0.1616/E T
HK$0.1616
0.1616/8 7T
HK$0.15
0.15/87T
HK$0.1566
0.1566/& 7T
HK$0.1566
0.1566/& 7T
HK$0.29
0.29% 7T
HK$0.068
0.0687 7T
HK$0.068
0.0687 7T

T A2 S8 R 2 M A IR AN 52
) B B A 2t 31 8 O T (AT B K
FEZBERPREPFOR0EE
T I ThHR AR AN S O R AR IR
ERRRGREE-_TZERF=H
=t RLFEZEEZHHRE
W PAER A 2 & At R R 25 5 5t

T2 S RE R M A IR AR &
B2ETHEBLR,BE QRN
BF B 2 BB Z BB A R A5
RETHREDRE - GRBATATZE
ARELRE  BRESNESEER
FEASFEH20%TTE -

ZEBEETIRBENTRERT
HA20% B N ZAE B

BT 2B INERESE
DEEITE - FRITEE

H-TERE-HA—BRHSG -
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KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

37. BREST B (@)

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Company (continued)

The vesting period of other share options is the period
from the date of grant until the commencement of the
exercise period.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
350,500,000 (2008: 279,060,000) remaining
exercisable share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining
exercisable share options were represented to subscribe
for 350,500,000 (2008: 279,060,000) ordinary
shares in the Company at HK$52,984,000 (2008:
HK$44,879,896). The weighted average remaining
contractual life of these outstanding share options is
approximately 4 years (2008: 5 years).

18,000,000 (2008: 9,860,000) share options were
exercised during the year.

The fair values of options granted were determined
using the Black-Scholes valuation model. Significant
inputs into the calculation included a weighted average
share price of HK$0.05 (2008: HK$0.29) and exercise
prices as illustrated above. Furthermore, the calculation
takes into account of no future dividend and a volatility
rate of 95.21% (2008: 61.9%), based on expected
share price. Risk-free interest rate was determined at
1.9% (2008: 4.082%).

The underlying expected volatility was determined
by reference to historical data. No special features
immanent to the options granted were incorporated
into measurement of fair value.

In total, for the year ended 31 March 2009, employee
share-based compensation expenses amounted to
HK$3,097,000 (2008: HK$397,000) has been included
in the consolidated income statement which gave rise
to additional paid-in capital. As at 31 March 2009, the
estimated fair value of the option granted which was
included in the employee share-based compensation
reserve, amounted to HK$4,219,000 (2008:
HK$3,275,000).

126

(a) ERE](4E)

HibfERE 2z BB EmR L B8
EfTEIRAEE A LR

REE R - RIBERETEART
ERHEMERTEZERESE
/350,500,000 ( ZZEZE N\ F
279,060,00017 ) o BEITHE &R T A
F17{E 2 B - B1ALAS2,984,000
BIT(ZZZ\F : 44,879,896/ 7T)
2% 350,500,000f% (=2 Z )\ 4F

279,060,0000%) A A B LB - %5
AT 2 IR T AL
HIRABAF(ZZZT)\F 1 56F) »

imaﬁﬁm 000,000 BE B #E (=
ZE)\4F : 9,860,00017) °

Fri H BB R E 2 NP E T IR R e
EEENETE - ZEAFTAZEER
B BiEnEFEHRE.EIL(ZE
T\F 0298 7m) R EXFTRE 2
ITEME o AN - RZETE AT A BRI
ERERENRTERRETE 2 KIE
9521% (ZZFZN\F 1 61.9%) - T
ERFRTIEA1.9%(—TT)\F
4.082%) °

1HRE 2 TEER IR Th 2 IR IAE 2 BURE
TE o PRI 2 TR E 3
ARFEZFER

H= EANFZA=Z+—HLF
g Aﬂsd SEH?%E\ZW X
4 3,097,000 L (- = /\¢
397,000/ 7L ) B AT A4 & W

N AMEEBEIINEHER - ﬁéfg
THE=ZA=+—8 st AUBHX
¥ REE ZHERET ZETER
2 fEEHAFE A4,219,0007 7T( =
TET)\4F : 3,275,000/ 7T) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 37. BBRRRERTE (&)

(b) Subsidiary

eBanker

In January 1999, the board of directors of eBanker
authorised the eBanker 1999 Incentive and
Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan, with effective from 18
January 1999 through 17 January 2009, unless sooner
terminated. The eBanker’s board of directors granted
to certain eBanker’s directors, options to purchase
620,000 shares of eBanker’'s common stock at US$3.00
per share, exercisable immediately and for a period of
ten years.

The following table presents the activity for options
outstanding as of 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008:

= MY &
+—BLEE
(b) K& 2 A]
eBanker

R—NNLNLF—H > eBanker£Eg
i TeBanker— LN F 828 &2
IEETEREIERTE - BRIERATAR L -
GBAlE—AANFE—A+N\BEZE=
EENF—A++EBIFEBER -
eBankerZ =& (A% TeBanker£ £1%
FHARE  AJAGR3.00ETLZE
1% 32 B8 eBanker 620,000 % & i A% i%
7 ZEEREN Bz E BT FART
f# o

TREINR-_ZZAFE=A=+—H
R-ZENF=ZA=1+—BHREAKRTE
B 2 515 -

Number of

share options

BREZE

Directors = 600,000

Employees == 20,000
At 1 April 2007 and RZZEZLFMA—AK

31 March 2008 —EEN\EF=A=+—H 620,000

Lapsed during the year FRR (620,000)

At 31 March 2009 R-FFNF=A=1—H -

There was no movement in share options granted by
eBanker and no share option was exercised by the
grantees for both years. These options were lapsed
during the year.

38. RESERVES

Group

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2008 and 2009, investment revaluation
reserve represents aggregate changes in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets, while assets revaluation
reserve represents change in carrying amount of owner-
occupied property when it becomes an investment property
that will be carried at fair value.

RAESE A » eBankerf® H 2 B A%
MBI EE) - AR A TNEITE
ETEERRAE - ZSBREFRNEESKL
B e

38. &

FEME

RAFEIBEFE  ARBZFHEBLE
HYH2INMHRER GRS EIHK
A o

RZBENFR-_FTANF=ZA=1+—
El RESHEREIHLESREEL
NHERPEE MEEEGLFHRBEES
RMER SR A HEIIRZIRE MR
ZRRE{ERE)
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

38. RESERVES (continued)

128

Company

At 1 April 2007

Issue of new shares upon
exercise of bonus warrants
(notes 36(a) to (b))

Issue of new shares upon
exercise of share options
(note 37(a))

Employee share-based
compensation expenses
recognised

Transfer to reserves upon
cancellation of options

Transfer to reserves upon
exercise of share options

Profit for the year

At 31 March 2008 and
1 April 2008

Issue of new shares upon
exercise of 2009 warrants
subscription right

Issue of new shares upon
exercise of share options
(note 37(a))

Employee share-based
compensation expenses
recognised

Transfer to reserves upon
exercise of share options

Transfer to reserves upon
cancellation of options

Loss for the year

At 31 March 2009

2L FNA—H
RITERRAEE
MEITHR
(B36()Z2(b)
RITEBREM B TR
(H:E37(3))

ERERARN A TEE
ZBERX

RER SR TR
R ERRESRERE
FREH

RZETN\F=A=1—H
R-ZZ\FEA—-A
R - TN FRMMEE
2 RFEMBITHR

RT3 T 3T
(B1:£37(3))

ERRARNE TEE
ZERX

ATERREERE R
HERR RS AT
FEBR

—EEAF=A=1—H

38. R #®)
b NG|

Employee
share-based
Share compensation

Warrant Accumulated

premium reserve reserve losses Total
RG> A
FEEZ AR

RoaE - #ERE  EERE  ZHER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TAT TAT TET
723,469 3,139 5,160 (341,895) 389,873
4,355 - - - 4,355
1,494 - - - 1,494

- 397 - - 397

- (62) - 62 -

81 (81) - - -

- - - 5912 5,912
729,399 3,393 5,160 (335,921) 402,031
3 - - - 3

1,044 - - - 1,044

- 3,097 - - 3,097

900 (900) - - -

- (1,358) - 1,358 -
- - - (83,268) (83,268)
731,346 4,232 5,160 (417,831) 322,907




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
Group

(a) as lessee
At the balance sheet date, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
payable by the Group are as follows:

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

The Group leases a number of rented premises and
fixed asset under operating leases. The leases run for
an initial period of twelve months to five years (2008:
twelve months to five years). None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

(b) as lessor
At the balance sheet date, the Group had future
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of investment properties
which fall due as follows:

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

The Group leases its investment properties (note 19)
under operating lease arrangements which run for an
initial period of two to five years (2008: two to five
years), with an option to renew the lease terms at the
expiry date or at dates as mutually agreed between
the Group and the respective tenants. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals. The properties are
expected to generate rental yields of 6% (2008: 2%)
on an ongoing basis.

Company

The Company does not have any significant operating lease
commitments or any minimum lease receipts under non-
cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2009 and 31
March 2008.

F_EZERF(BREEMF)

F_EFHF(RREEMF)

H
+—

Bt >mm

E-FENF=AST-ALTE

30, KEHELH

rEH

(a) TEREMEA
KRG8 H - AEREREE NIHREE
mZ TREEEEHEM AN BERX
T2 REEEFIEMAT

2009 2008
—2ENF ZEE)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TAT
937 405

1,179 69
2,116 474

AEFRESLHERRETHEY
¥LEEEE MY AR+
HAZRAF(ZZEENF : + =@ A
Z2RHF) - BEAMNAHNBSHARE
F

(b) EBLHEA
REEH - AEBREE NIHREE
i TR BEHR B Y R G EHE M #
R BREE 2 BB EFIRT ¢

2009 2008
—EFNF —TT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TAET
7,684 2,337
8,508 2,299
16,192 4,636

AEBERBLEHELHHEERE
WE(ME19)  ZFERHZ2MTHE
HAMEEZRF(ZZETN\F : WF
ERF) > WHERHEIERB AR
SEEXHEFPHEEHE  HERE
#) o ZEMOBMBEIIARBESE - %
FY AR A FFERINE6% (ZTTN
F2%)ZEEOHR -

AN
RoEENEZA=+—AR-ETNF
ZA=+—A  AARREFATRBE
BRI W MEAZGEAEEE - 7
A3 e U MR 2 £ TR R -
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40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

41.

130

Group

The Group had the following capital commitments at the

balance sheet date:

Contracted but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements

Investment properties
Renovation

Company

The Company does not have any significant commitments as
at 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities of the Group

and the Company were as follows:

Guarantees given to a financial
institution in respect of banking
facilities granted to a supplier
of the Group

Guarantees given to a financial
institution in respect of banking
facilities granted to subsidiaries

The extent of the facilities utilized as at 31 March 2009
by the subsidiaries amounted to HK$63,080,000 (2008:

HK$28,110,000).

B %R R M

BE_TTAF=A=1t—HILLFE

40. EXEE

EH
REBNGEER 2 ERALEWT -

2008
—EZNF
HK$'000
FAET

BRIOBRREE T ETRE

B

"B 61,009
EE 1,547
62,556

AT

ARFR_ZZENF=A=+—HBHEZ-ZE
ZENF=ZA=+—HAEEMERALE -

41. ZREE
KEBEARARNGEEH 2 REBN
T
Group Company
rEE ¥ /N
2008 2008
—TENF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FEL
aﬂ“%$%@2{ tER
RITRVE M B TS
{’Edﬂa‘g%
12,912 -
RERTHBLARZ
RITRVE RIS HEE
fEHER - 80,566
HE_ZThF=ZA=+—H WBAR
EE%E%@QWQWEELJ?AE

28,110,000/ 7T) ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B
7N
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

42. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 42. RIRERIFTE

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (“Defined Contribution Scheme”) for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong and Singapore. The
assets of the Defined Contribution Scheme of Hong Kong
are held separately from those of the Group and are under
the control of trustees. Where there are employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by
the amount of forfeited contributions. The assets of the
Deferred Contribution Scheme of Singapore is regulated and
managed by the Singapore Government.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
the MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at the rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group in
respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from these schemes charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions paid or payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes.

No contribution was forfeited during the year (2007: Nil).

AEEREBAENRNNEAERER
khmﬁf%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ*ﬁfi
itEll) - BEERHIE A ZEERTR
%ﬂlﬁ$§@§E DRRAE - WiER
REGEHHRATR %S - R
] P DABUE AN R B P A5 2 AHE 3K ﬁMﬁm
BB 2 EERFINEETEE &
e

Q TETF+_F—H#E KEEAE
BITERB2MNBESHE - BB S
E*ETE?@%H’I‘iiL’AiFfé@éJr%‘Jﬂ%W'J * [E)5R I
NESFEEEBEM - afEesta g
EERIBN XA RS 5 A AR
EEEIAFE - BERBELTEZR
8 BEXREEEBEARAEE 2L RRA
B - AEEFRESHEIZH—&
TEF%?EEAJEUZ%EE( L3R o W R IR R
A A LARUE A SR F S 2 55K o

/\
I

/\\
\
EJr%

W BRHE - REBEASEERZ

% ERTEIEL ZRINE N E BT
AIENRENTES ZHREHE

FRYEHKBLR(—TTLEF  8) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

43. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(@ The Group did not have any significant acquisitions of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2009.

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group
acquired three companies, details as follows:

(i) On 1 April 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of Kabush Kaisha Aizuya (”Aizuya”),
a company operating hotel in Japan.

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment property

Trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Trade and other payables and
accruals

Net assets acquired

Purchase consideration
settled in cash

Cash and cash equivalents
in subsidiary acquired

Net cash outflow on acquisition

ReMRE
REWE

£@EEE

B 5 MEMEERIA
e MIEN R
B 5 MEMENRIAER

J& A5 IR

PrEEE % E

MRSz
BEARE
PSR B B

Az

ReMReFEEA

WRELZRS R FHE

The acquired businesses contributed revenues
of approximately HK$1,035,000 and net loss of
approximately HK$2,449,000, to the Group for
the period from the date of acquisitions to 31
March 2008. Due to a lack of HKFRS — specific
data prior to the acquisition of Aizuya, pro
forma profit or loss of the combined entity for
the complete 2008 reporting period cannot be

determined reliably.

132

RE-TEAF=A=T—AItF
& - AREYEEAEANBATZ
8

REBE-_ZTN\F=ZA=1T—HILF
B AEBECDWE=MAF] 50
T

Et

) MZZEZELFWA—A X%
E Uk B& Kabush Kaisha Aizuya
([Aizuya]) 2 100% A% A - H %
BTN ARG EHE

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
W B
ZREE DNE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
527 527
9,316 9,316
1,618 1,618
(10,204) (10,204)
1,257
(4,841)
527
(4,314)

mikERE T N\F=A=+—H
HAR - PTUE %15 AR E B R Y
1,035,000/ 7T 2 Wa A K 492,449,000

BT B ERFER o NI AizUya Al
W EBEBI I MELEL 2 FEBUR

BWEHERNEE_TT\F2HH
82 #E W AR T RE AT SEHURTE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

43, BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(b) (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(continued)

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill
are as follows:

Purchase consideration settled in cash
Fair value of net assets acquired

Goodwill 2]

I

On 1 June 2007, the Group acquired 100% of
the share capital of Hotel Plaza Miyazaki Co. Ltd.
("HPM"), a company operating hotel in Japan.

MRE N ZBERE
PIRBEEFEZ A TFE

43. ¥¥%56t®)

b) (%)

(i (&
iz EEFEREEFR

LN
HK$'000
TAT
4,841
(1,257)
3,584

iy RZZTEZLFA—H K&
B Y fEHotel Plaza Miyazaki Co.
Ltd .([HPM 1) Z 100% A& - E

EB AR AREERE -
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
WUEE
ZEREE ATE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KRG 31,830 31,830
Inventories FE 270 270
Trade and other receivables, B 5 M EH A EWGIA -
deposits and prepayments e RIENFRIA 3,189 3,189
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMEMNFIER
and accruals FEETR0E (3.419) (3,419)
Net assets acquired P& =% E 31,870
Purchase consideration settled NIRRT NZEERE
in cash and net cash outflow AR WEEEE 2
on acquisition REmt 58 (19,894)

The acquired businesses contributed revenues of
approximately HK$49,551,000 and net loss of
approximately HK$7,085,000 to the Group for the
period from the date of acquisitions to 31 March
2008. Due to a lack of HKFRS - specific data prior
to the acquisition of HPM, pro forma profit or loss
of the combined entity for the complete 2008
reporting period cannot be determined reliably.

RkERE-_ZTEZENF=ZA=+—
BEE  FIREEBALREET
K #9 49,551,000 7 7T 2 W A M &)
7,085,000/ 70 2 E51E)F 58 - B UL
BHPMRBIN B R B R 5 R 2 b
EHE A EERER_ZZEN
FEHBPE 2 HEZWEIRT B A] S it
SRTE °
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43, BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(b) (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

134

(continued)

The discount on acquisition arises from the
appreciation in assets value for the period
between the price negotiation and the acquisition
date when the Group took control over the
Company.

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill
are as follows:

Purchase consideration settled in cash MRS ZBERE
Fair value of net assets acquired FrEEER#Es A TE
Excess of the Group'’s share of the net REBSEEEFE
fair value of the net assets over the ZAHEFEBR
cost of acquisition W HE R AR

On 1 July 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of Crystal Travel Co., Ltd. (“Crystal”),
a company operating a travel service company in
Japan.

43. ¥¥%56t®)

(b) (#)

(ii)

(iii)

(&)
WEMEDELENERERE

B ZE R ER B AUS AN A AR B 4
ZWE RS EEE -

7 e B 2 8 B R P B
o

HK$'000
TAT

19,894
(31,870)

(11,976)

RZEZLFLA—H8 " £&
g B& Crystal Travel Co., Ltd.
([Crystal]) Z100% & A - E
AR E IR ARTS A A o

Cash and cash equivalents
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
Taxation
Trade and other payables
and accruals

Net liabilities acquired

Purchase consideration
settled in cash

Cash and cash equivalents
in subsidiary acquired

Net cash inflow on acquisition

R MREFEER

ERN TN E

B 5 R EAM IR -
we MIANFKIA

IR

B 5 R EA R IR K
FEET IR

PriEE B (&5 88

MRES N2 BERE

FBEEMB AR 2R e
kR eFERHE

WREL 2 RERAFEE

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount Fair value
WS
ZEREE ATE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAT
25,057 25,057
1,974 1,974
26,750 26,750
187 187
(56,732) (56,732)
(2,764)
(3,317)
25,057
21,740
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

43, BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(b) (continued)

(iii)

(continued)

The acquired businesses contributed revenues of
approximately HK$101,162,000 and net profit of
approximately HK$4,198,000 to the Group for the
period from the date of acquisitions to 31 March
2008. Due to a lack of HKFRS - specific data prior
to the acquisition of Crystal, pro forma profit or
loss of the combined entity for the complete 2008
reporting period cannot be determined reliably.

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill

43. ¥¥%E6t@)
b) (&)

(i) (&)

HWERZE -_ZTZTNFE=H
=+—BHE - KB ESA
REEHRA101,162,00078 7T
Z YA K #74,198,0007% 7T 2 45
F o m A UL BE Crystal g IF 48 &
75 B I R A 2E BN 2 R E B
HMAEHEENER-_ZSZN\F
SR HBE W IRTER
FEHIRTE ©

PrkEC EEFELREEHE

are as follows: N
HK$'000
FHET
Purchase consideration settled in cash NEEYNEERE 3,317
Fair value of net liabilities acquired FTEEEFE 2 ATE 2,764
Goodwill e 6,081
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
For the year ended 31 March 2009 Y
44. DISPOSAL OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 44.

Year ended 31 March 2009

On 14 November 2008, a Japan subsidiary of the Company,
Japan Travel Limited (“Japan Travel”), filed a petition for
the liquidation of Japan Travel in Japan in shortly after, a
liguidation trustee was appointed by the court to deal with
the rights and claims that creditors have against Japan
Travel. Up to the report date, Japan Travel is still under the
liquidation process. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, it is unlikely to have material adverse financial
impact on the Group. The fair values of net assets of Japan
Travel attributable to the Group as at the date of disposal of
Japan Travel were as follows:

—EEAFSAS - ALERE
HETENB LA

BE-ETNF=ZA=+—-HLEE

RZZEZENF+—A+MNA - KAFZH
75 [} |8 A 7] Japan Travel Limited ([ Japan
Travel |) £ B AN 42 5 A B Japan Travel)s %

2% WHEEEEARZEFRIFEA -

KK ERE A apan Travel B 2 1
FREE - HERE B - Japan Travel
MERBERRERF - ARRIEFRAE - HT
KA Be g H AR E B ERTHN 2 B
2 o JA & Japan TravelE B » NEEES
Japan TravelZ BEFHEAFEDAT

HK$'000
FHTT
Net liabilities disposed of FrtEaE#E
Goodwill RS 11,663
Property, plant and equipment E YN ] 7,488
Trade and other receivables, B 5 R HAMESGIE -
deposits and prepayments e RIENFKIE 60,938
Cash and cash equivalents RekAeEEEE 2,785
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 R EAM R FIE R EFT FIR (99,523)
Borrowings B (40,545)
Finance lease payables FEN R ERERIE (1,125)
(58,319)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB AR Z M 20,432
Total consideration (B (37,887)
Satisfied by: SR
Debts forfeited by the Group BAREE R 2 &S (37,887)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEE RS ML FE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HECHREES KRS EEEE (2,785)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
For the year ended 31 March 2009 Y
44. DISPOSAL OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 44.

(continued)

Year ended 31 March 2009 (continued)

On 14 November 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purpose agreement for the disposal of the 56.46% of the
issued and paid-up capital of Makino Air Travel Service Co.,
Ltd (“Makino”) at a consideration of JPY30 million. The fair
values of net assets of Makino attributable to the Group as
at the date of disposal of Makino were as follows:

Net liabilities disposed of

Property, plant and equipment

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables and accruals

Borrowings

Finance lease payables

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Other receivables

Debts forfeited by the Group
Cash

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:

Cash consideration
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

7= B &
—ERAE=A=t-ALERE
HETEWMB LB (#)

BE-_SZhFE=ZA=1+—RHLEE
(#)
RZZEZENF+—A+WEA » AEBEFT
B E W 0 BA30,000,000 B Bl Z KB
€ Makino Air Travel Service Co., Ltd
([ Makino |) 2 56.46% B2 3 17 & 1 & I
R oo A E Makino®s H - ANEEE
MakinoZ BEEFEAFENT ¢

HK$'000
FET
FrtEaE#E
Y - BB Mk 854
A ESREE 684
BAFE AR

ZEREE 4,060
B 5 REMbEKE -

& RIE IR 20,355
ReMRESEEER 2,365
B 5 N B A FOR K FERT RUR (27,763)
BE (13,539)
FENRERERIR (595)

(13,579)
HEMRBARZ WS 13,579
BRE -
SIEE
H b U EIR 1,835
EAREERR ZER (2,293)
R 458
HEEE RS RILFEE
HeRE 458
HEZRENRIBSEEER (2,365)
(1,907)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

44. DISPOSAL OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Year ended 31 March 2009 (continued)

On 11 December 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purpose agreement for the disposal of the 60% of the issued
and paid-up capital of Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd (“Anglo-
French”) at a consideration of S$2,100,000. The fair values
of net assets of Anglo-French attributable to the Group as at
the date of disposal of Anglo-French were as follows:

44, HEXTENB AT (&)

BE-ZENAF=ZA=+—-HLHEFE
(#&)

RZZBBENF+ZA+—H  A&EEFTV
BEE W - 142,100,000 I3 T 2 R (E
£ % Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd ([ Anglo-
French]),260% B 31T REEARAR - A
& Anglo-French® B + <& B F& {5 Anglo-
Frenchz BEFEAFENT :

HK$'000
FHTT
Net liabilities disposed of FrtEaE#E
Goodwill RS 6,385
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 890
Property, plant and equipment E YA ] 2,233
Trade and other receivables, H 5 &k E A ERGRIA -
deposits and prepayments e RIENFKIE 28,437
Cash and cash equivalents Re kA EEEE 21,773
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 R EAM R FIA R EFT FIR (37,210)
Borrowings BE (5,152)
Finance lease payables FEN R ERERIE (54)
Minority interest DERRER (2,301)
15,001
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB AR ZEE (3,691)
Total consideration BRE 11,310
Satisfied by: S
Cash Re 11,310
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEE RS MLFE
Cash consideration BeRE 11,310
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HECREESRESEEEE (21,773)
(10,463)
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=

For the year ended 31 March 2009  EZETNF=A=+—HLFE
44. DISPOSAL OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 44, HEFEWB AR (#)
(continued)

Year ended 31 March 2008

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group disposed
of its entire interest in a subsidiary, Xpress Travel Holdings
Pty Ltd (“"XTH") at a consideration of HK$74,000. The fair
values of net assets of XTH attributable to the Group as at
the date of disposal of XTH were as follows:

BE-ZZN\F=ZA=+—-HLEE

HE-_TZN\FZA=+—HLFE -

NEE WL E HWEB A 7 Xpress Travel
Holdings Pty Ltd([XTH]) Z & &0 « R
B/R374,000/87C - RHEXTHE R » A%
EREEXTHZ EEFEATFENT -

HK$'000
FHTT
Net liabilities disposed of FrtEaE#E
Property, plant and equipment W - BB K& 66
Trade and other receivables, H 5 & E A ERGRIA -
deposits and prepayments e RTENFKIEAE 350
Cash and cash equivalents Re kFeEHEIEE 201
Trade and other payables 2 5 RHEMERFIE
and accruals MR RUR (649)
(32)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB AR Z M 106
74
Satisfied by: SRTE
Cash e 74
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEE RS MLFE
Cash consideration ReNE 74
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HECHREES KRS EEEE (201)
(127)
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

45.

46.

140

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
Group

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the year
ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

(a) Rental income of HK$226,000 (2008: Nil) received
from an associate of the Group, SingXpress and its
subsidiaries.

(b) None of the management fee income received from a
subsidiary of Singxpress Ltd., an associate of the Group
(2008: HK$1,200,000); and

(¢) During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group
disposed of its entire interest in subsidiaries, XTH,
to SingXpress Ltd. for a consideration of $$14,000
(equivalent to HK$74,000) (note 44).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risk such as
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, which result from
both its operating and investing activities. According to the
Group's written risk management policies and guidelines,
the financial risk shall be assessed continuously by the
management taken into account of the prevailing conditions
of the financial market and other relevant variables to avoid
excessive concentrations of risk. The Group has not used
any derivatives or other instruments for hedging purpose.
The most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed to are described below.

45.

46.

BEALRS

REE
%TﬁAﬁﬁﬁiﬁi‘%E@FFﬂ)ﬁéz*

o REBEE_TTENFER_TZ )\if

A=t—RLFEREEREEALET
SRS o

(@) BAREME BT AL SingXpress 2 B
B /B8 xR U ER 2 1 & WA 226,0007%
T(ZTTNEF &)

(b) % B &R B 2 B B A L Singxpress
Ltd. 2B ARWEREEBIRA(Z
TZ)\F : 1,200,000%7T) ¢ &

© HE-_ZZ)N\FZA=1+— E¢¢
& ANEE [\ SingXpress Ltd. & E
R B RARXTHZ 28 #EEE - RE
£14,00057 0% 7T (A8 E 7 74,0007
70) (MI3E44) ©

B EREE R R RBUR

$%l7¥<§\xE,ﬁ%%&&é{}E@JZyEW
R - flanmis R (BREINE R R
MEmERRERRR)  FERRR /)\L@J
AR - RIBAREZ EHARE LK
REIES - BEEERERESRMSEMR
HiBAEEE - AN EMERR - A8
RREBBESES o AREREREFAAR
2 TETAREMT A - REEER
ZEREREREAINT o
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

B %R R M

BE_TTAF=A=1t—HILLFE

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  46. MR EE B ERBK (4#)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Singapore, Japan
and USA with most of the transactions denominated and
settled in Hong Kong dollars, Singapore dollars, Yen and
United States dollars respectively. Foreign currency risk
arises from financial assets, liabilities and transactions which
were denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the group entities. The Group manages its
foreign currency risks by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates and will consider entering into
foreign currency forward contracts or other instuments to
hedge significant foreign currency exposure when necessary.

At the balance sheet date, foreign currency denominated
financial assets and liabilities, translated into HK$ at the
rates, are as follows:

Net financial assets (liabilities) CREE(BE)FE
Hong Kong dollars (HKD) T (ETT)

Singapore dollars (SGD) ansg T (R ansg )
Japanese yen (JPY) HE(BE)

United States dollars (USD) E(ET)

Australian dollars (AUD) SN T CRIT)
Renminbi (RMB) AREB(ARE)

SRR

AEBEENEE  HME - BARE
BEaR K*B"’\%L/{/%E ¥ 0
BT - AERETIEREE - SMNEREKR
HASESEREERIUINEEIIEZ
THMEE  REMRFEL - AEEEB
By GREREHERINERRE - WEH
2 WHEBIINEERRAGNHEMLT
RS EAINERR

REER  DINESIEZ eREERAR
BT DERBE KB -

Group
FEH

Company
YN

2008 2008
i “FENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fis
2,938 -
139,911 16,705

57 -

16,842 47
159,748 16,752
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

142

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to HKD, USD and SGD. The
following table details the Group’s sensitivity analysis, the
analysis assumes a 5% increase and decrease in HKD,
USD and SGD against the HK$, with all other variable held
constant. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates until
the next balance sheet date. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding items denominated in foreign currencies
other than the functional currencies of the group entities
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates.

HKD Impact USD Impact
-y 74 EnvEE
2009 2008 2009
SEENE CET)\F | CBEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T ThL T
Profit after taxation RiERR 40 146 510

46. BHEREEEERBEKR &)

SRR ()

REE T EAYERTT - RTRHIRITZ
R o TRFFIANEEZBREDIN © %
DI TT RTINS TT BT
R {E KORIES% - 1 PTA H A& 8RS
TE 5% RMEREREABRNILREIN
R FTE R 2 BURE LR - WRREE
BHEET E#ERRLEHEXRTRES
R Y - BUREDITEBRERAE
EXERNETEINSNESEZ R TR
BB WRFEES% ZERE SRR

PV

SGD Impact Total Impact
fimgr e gamit
2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZZI\E | ZRBAE C3E\F | CEEAR CE3)\E
HK$'000 | HKS'000  HK$'000 | HK$'000  HK$'000
Fhn TEn Fhr TEn Thm
842 2 6,99 941 7,984

As HKD is linked to USD, the Group does not have material
exchange risk on such currencies.

Interest rate risk

The Group income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings arranged at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. As at 31
March 2009, approximately 46% (2008: 79%) of the bank
borrowings bore interest at floating rates. The interest rate
and repayment terms of the bank borrowings outstanding
at year end are disclosed in note 31.

FETEIRTTR - ARERZEFERL
EERINERK

FIEm

REEZBPARKERSREERN LT
MSHESEBLE - REE 2 FIREfRE
TR EIRITIEE o UZENF R & EE =
TR IRITIEEFEBSASESRIAZRS
REMERREAFENERR -RZ_F
TNFZA=Z+T—H  #H46%(ZZTZ)N
F:79%) 2 RITBELVEBFIERGE -
RELERERZBITEE R EREER
AR FE3 1R IR o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B
7N
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE-ZETNF=A=

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  46. B EpEE B ZRBUEK (4)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s bank balances also expose it to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on the bank balances. The directors
consider the Group’s exposure of the bank deposits and
bank borrowings to fair value interest rate risk is not
significant as interest bearing bank deposits and borrowings
at fixed rate are within short maturity periods in general.

At 31 March 2009, if interest rates had increased or
decreased by 1% and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit after tax for the year and retained profits
would increase or decrease by approximately HK$595,000
(2008: HK$980,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure to floating interest rates of the floating
rate bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk arising from listed
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

Management'’s best estimate of the effect on the Group’s
profit after tax due to a reasonably possible change in the
relevant stock market index, with all other variables held
constant, at the balance sheet date is as follows (in practice,
the actual trading results may differ from the sensitivity
analysis below and the difference could be material):

Increase (decrease) in profit after tax
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index
+30%

-30%

+ 30%
-30%

Singapore — Straits Times Index
+20%
-20%

+20%
-20%

T 52 (A7)

HRRITREFRITHSHEKE - NEE
RITEFTEEARBSREN KRR -
BERE - AR ERITF R R EE X
AR LRI ANRE - RAKEZR
TERRBITEEMAI A THENXER
RERK °

R-ZERF=ZA=+—8  MAELH
H 1% - MAEEMEERFIE
AU ZRER B AN F [ RR B 18 0 F) SR AR B Ve M)
sk iR #7595,0008 T ( ZEZ )\ F -
980,000/ 7T) ° It F ZHRANEBEHE
BFIRRITEE 2 ZBFIRETE o

Efsm

AREBAZEMBRAFHERF ABEIL D
BREREEZLMRESIEZERRA

LA
o0
ZN

o

REEREEENERESFTSERNE
BEGCRC(ERMAEMESERTEN
BT ) B A SR ERR B 12 i M B0 S R 5t
WT(EERLE BEENRZHERM SR
NTHBRERMEDTERMEZERAEERE
AHER)

BR L1208 FISB A0 OBl
BB —BAEIER

NI — IRy ¥R 8L

U.S.A. — Dow Jones Industrial Average Index =B — i+ 38 T 2 19358

+20%
-20%

+20%
-20%

2009 2008
—EFNhF S
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT
4,125 5,725
(4,125) (5,725)
2,778 1,694
(2,778) (1,694)

18 1,318

(18) (1,318)
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

144

AND POLICIES (continued)

Fair value

All financial instruments are carried at amount not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2009 and
2008.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from associates and bank balances
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets. The carrying amounts of these
financial assets presented in the balance sheets are net of
impairment losses, if any. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, loan receivables
and amounts due from associates, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all debtors requiring credit and
loan receivables over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the debtors’ past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the debtors as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the debtors operates.
Trade receivables are due within 60 days from the date of
billing. The Group does not obtain collateral from customers
in respect of trade receivables, while for loan receivables,
collateral are usually obtained.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-ratings agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables and loan receivables are set out in note 28 and
25, respectively.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets represents the carrying amounts
of other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
amounts due from associates and bank balances. The
carrying amounts of these financial assets presented in the
Company’s balance sheet are net of impairment losses,
if any. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

46. BHEREEEERBEKR &)

AFH
RZBENFR-ZZBZENF=A=1+—
B FEeRTACRAERESEZAF
EEEREER -

=B

B REMBYGRIR - BKRER  BER
BIRFKMSRITHE T < RE AR AR EE L
EeRMEEMAZ ZBREERR - RE
EREXR2IIZZEFEREELKRAED
ERRERR(IE) - EEEBCEEER
B YEMARZZEEERRETHE

B o

FHE 5 R E M EUHIR - RS RSB
RARFME - BB EREENRERE
KRB —EHBEZEDETEMNEERF
ff o AFRHEZ ERIME T A EE R B
BTN MR S HYERBE S - W EEE
HZEBBRRETRERHZEHER
% - B RIFIABRE B E60RA R
Hi o RERERLE 2 BUGRL TN E P I
BERY) - MR ESRABEERS o

R R ZHF HHBEREEFRRENE
ZRERMRZRT RS MREEE
HBEZEERBRER -

NEBRFE 5 N E A fEUR B & E W E R
MEEZEERBZE—FTE2HHES
BIE R 528 5225 ©

AEERSREEMAT 2 HSEERR
BB WRIR - B ARR - B
RARARIRITREFLZIREE - RART
BEREBER2IIZZEEREECKRAE
EHRREER(INE)  ERECEEE
BB - XEAARZ EERBETR

2= B oo
BECYE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the directors monitor
and maintain a level of bank balances deemed adequate to
finance the Group's operations investment opportunities
and expected expansion. The Group finances its working

REERBESRBRM
%%EZ%E%@T§§H$;‘%IZ‘“%&éﬁ&‘\&ﬁ
HAPROR 2 SRITAETR/KF o
WMPﬁFEZﬁ%&%ﬂé}EiﬂttﬁmE%%ﬁ

46. BHEREEEERBEKR &)

BRI

REBEREB

capital requirements mainly by the funds generated IR BETRBEEMGE B BN EEE
from operations and from fund raising activities such as BRFER o
placement of new shares and issuance of warrants.
As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s financial liabilities have R-ZEZNF=ZA=1+—H  ~AEEER
contractual maturities which are summarised below: BEZAENFEARMAT
As at 31 March 2009 R-BEAF=A=+—H
Non-current
FEENA
Current  Afterone  After two
within  but within  but within Over
oneyear twoyears fiveyears five years
—F#% MEE
MEB—-FR ERAWMEAR EREFER LE%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables 85 REMENRIER
and accruals FEZH IR 38,514 - - -
Borrowings N 11,118 10,866 30,338 21,738
Amounts due to associates LR EEE N B FUR 1,387 - - -
51,019 10,866 30,338 21,738
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

146

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2008

Trade and other payables
and accruals

Borrowings

Finance lease payables

Convertible debentures

Amounts due to associates

The above contractual maturities reflect the undiscounted
cash flows, which may differ to the carrying values of the
liabilities at the balance sheet date.

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities recognised at the balance sheet date may
also be categorised as follows. See notes 3.13 and 3.20
for explanations about how the category of financial

B 7 Bt &
HE_ZTNAE=ZA=+—HILFEE
46. IKEREEEERBE &)
TEE LR ()
R-EBENF=A=+—H
Non-current
FEA
Current  Afterone  After two
within  but within  but within Over
oneyear twoyears fiveyears five years
-4 WEH
ME—FR ERWMER BREFRA LF#E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHIT FHT FAT
25 N EMEWEIE R
FEET IR 166,005 - - -
fBE 35,522 16,188 72,592 -
FERTRYVE HEFRIE 562 1,326 - -
AR ES 45,358 - - -
FY AN ] 1,570 - - -
249,017 17,514 72,592 -
FHEHRNEBAFUBRSRE S

instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

BRIRNEE Rz AER@E -

BEFIPIRZ e MEEHREHE

NEER  BRZAEESHEELERE
ZEEEASENT - AT T AN
HEBZHEZFE
ZRRIE

B Mi3E3.135%3.20
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

(continued)

(i) Financial assets

Non-current assets

Available-for-sale
financial assets

Loans and receivables:

- Loan receivables

- Pledged bank deposits

Current assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Loans and receivables:

- Trade and other receivables

- Loan receivables

— Amounts due from subsidiaries

— Amounts due from associates

- Pledged bank deposits

- Cash and cash equivalents

FRBEE
AfHESRERE

B M EYOR
—RAER
—BHEMRITER

REBEE
BAFERARDR
ZEHEE
B R EAGR
— B 5 R EMREYK
—ERER
VNGV
—BEDRRR

—BERRITER

-HekReFEER

B %R R M

BE-_TTHE-A=+—BILFE
46. R EEEERBE®E)

BEFIrztBEERREHE
(4&)

(i) £eREE
Group Company
AEH AR
2008 2008
“ET\F “ET)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET
36,290 -
901 -
3,900 -
41,091 .
46,313 24,792
137,599 4,559
2,233 -
- 367,349
7,775 1,924
5,030 -
223,315 156,344
422,265 554,968
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

47. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND

148

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

(continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost

- Trade payables and other

payables

- Finance lease payables

- Convertible debentures

- Borrowings

- Amounts due to subsidiaries

- Amounts due to associates

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost

- Borrowings

- Finance lease payables

— Amounts due to associates

PROCEDURES

The Group's capital management objectives are:

to ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern
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to provide an adequate return to shareholder
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2009

47.

48.

49.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES (continued)

The directors of the Company also balance its overall capital
structure periodically. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividend paid to shareholder, new shares issue as well as of
warrants. The directors of the Company will also consider
the raise of long-term borrowings as second resource of
capital when investment opportunities arise and the return
of such investments will justify the cost of debts from
the borrowings, finance lease payables and convertible
debentures.

47.

BEXERERREERF M)

ARRZEZNRERFOHEBEERR
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ENHEEBEERPERERERZE
HOR M % F R E 2 B AT A LAE L {5
5 EBNRERERBELAIBRKESZE
TERAR

2009 2008

—EERE ZEENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Debt aE 74,060 171,548
Less: cash and cash equivalents and B BekReEEER

pledged bank deposits AR B AIRITIF 3K (60,801) (232,245)

Net debt BEFE 13,259 (60,697)

Capital represented by total equity AR BEEZ - T
excluding minority interests DEIRR ERRERS 427,701 557,338
Gearing ratio BARBELE 3% 1%

The directors of the Company also endeavour to ensure
the steady and reliable cash flow from the normal business
operation.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 12 June 2009, one of the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company entered into formal sale and purchase
agreement with independent third party for the acquisition
of property located in Hong Kong at a consideration of
HK$24,000,000. The transaction has been completed on 3
July 2009.

Pursuant to the circular dated 4 May 2009, an open offer on
the basis of one offer share for every five existing shares of
HK$0.05 per offer share. The net proceed from open offer
was approximately HK$17 million. The certificate for offer
shares was dispatched on 27 May 2009 and commenced in
dealing on 1 June 2009.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with current year’s presentation.

48.

49.
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KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

FINANCIAL SUMMARY BB E
For the year ended 31 March
BE=RA=+—HLEE
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&) (E3))
2008 2007 2006 2005
—EENF —TTHF —TTRF —TTHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHT FAT FHET FAET
Results B
Revenue/Turnover ezt eEEEE 1,430,713 689,184 529,327 295,501
(Loss)/profit for the year — F[Z (E18), % F| 9,315 16,081 102,544 (17,180)
Attributable to: FEAG
Equity holders of RAEIIRAE
the Company BFAEA 12,229 40,112 53,138 (13,466)
Minority interests DEIRR R RS (2,914) (24,031) 49,406 (3,714)
(Loss)/profit for the year — FZ(E18), 34 F| 9,315 16,081 102,544 (17,180)
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2008 2007 2006 2005
—EEN\F —ZZTTLF —ZTERF —TERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAT FHT FAT
Assets and liabilities BENAE
Total assets BEE 939,821 923,583 650,856 622,684
Total liabilities waE (380,151)  (355,976)  (161,007)  (245,715)
Minority interests DB R (2,332) (39,024) (60,732) (10,000)
Shareholders’ funds RHRES 557,338 528,583 429,117 366,969
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

As at 31 March 2009

Location

ith 2

Investment properties

REME

No 239 Arcadia Road, #03-04
The Arcadia, Singapore 289845

No 237 Arcadia Road, #05-01 The
Arcadia, Singapore 289844

Strata Lot 7, 1281 Alerni Street,
Vancouver, British Columbia,
Strata Plan LMS3094, Canada

981 Nelson Street, Vancouver,
British Columbia, Canada

No.35 North Canal Road, Singapore

Units 3B, 4, 5A, 7, 8, 9, 5/F Island
Place Tower, 510 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

BB AREES05EEAESE
38-4-5A-7-89%

Apt 671-180-012-013-014-015-
016-017-018 in Riverside
County, California, U.S.A.

Car Parking Spaces Nos. 22, 23,
24 on Lower G/F., Inverness Villa,
No. 22 Inverness Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

BB NS L8225
JEXCRIZEH 22 - 23 ~ 24578 (L

Square
metre

BEE

6,566 sq ft
6,566 F IR

3,757 sg ft
3,757 F 7R

1,572 sq ft
1,572 EAR

9,537 sq ft
9,537F /R

4,843 sq ft
4,843F R

6,403 sq ft
6,403 R

67.5 acres/
2,940,300 sq ft
67.58,
2,940,300 /R

30sqm/
3225q ft
30FHK/
32FAR

A —FEE

Effective%
held
EREERE(%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type
il

Apartment
B

Apartment
B

Apartment
BT

Single-storey
ground floor
school/office unit

BRI TR

WAEEAL

Office premises
FIYNEX Y ES

Office premises
WREYE

Vacant land
TETH

Car parking
space

B

Lease term

=)

Long term lease

RHHELD

Long term lease

REATEA
Freehold

KAKE

Freehold
KAEERE

Long term lease

==Lk

Medium term lease

REIRD

Freehold
KA ERE

Medium term lease

REIED
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KEEEERAF

Xpress Group Limited

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

As at 31 March 2009

Location

ith 2

Hokkaido, Sapporo-shi,
Chuo-ku, Minami 1-jyo,
Nishi 15-chome, 1-238.

200 Jalan Sultan #08-11

Land and Buildings
TiREF

Unit 1-3A, 5B, 6, 10, 5/F Island
Place Tower, 510 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

BRI ABREES10%
BEANESE1-3A 586 10%

Aizuya Hotel, 733 Shiobara,
Nasu-Shiobara City,
Tochigi 329-2921 Japan

Miyazaki Hotel, 1-1, Kawahara-cho,
Miyazaki City, Miyazaki 880-0866,
Japan

152

Square
metre

BEE

3,209sgm
3,209F 5K

3,652 sgq.m

3,652F F K

13,687 sq ft
13,687 F HR

3,152 sq.m

3,152 7K

17,721 sqgm
17,721 7%

A —FEE

Effective%

held

BREEE(%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type
il

Hotel
BIE

Office premises

HE/NESYE

Office premises

N YES

Hotel

IR

Hotel
BIE

Lease term

=)

Freehold
KA FERE

Long term lease

REHED

Medium term lease

REIRD

Freehold

KA

Freehold
KAEETE



Countries of Operation:
Hong Kong Singapore Japan Australia United States Canada
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